
 

 

Agenda 
City Council Meeting 

20 Second Avenue SW, Oelwein 

6:00 PM 
October 09, 2023  

Oelwein, Iowa 
 

 

Mayor: Brett DeVore 
Mayor Pro Tem: Lynda Payne 
Council Members: Karen Seeders, Tom Stewart, Matt Weber, Dave Garrigus, Dave Lenz 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Additions or Deletions 

Citizens Public Comments - See Guidelines for Public Comments Below 

Consent Agenda 

1. Consideration of a motion approving the September 25, 2023 minutes. 

Public Hearing  

2. Public Hearing on the proposed sale of 9 1st Street Southwest to Shama Ministries.  

Resolutions 

3. Consideration of a resolution approves Pay Application No. 3 in the amount of $304,552.33 for Oelwein 
NE Sanitary Sewer Improvements project. 

4. Consideration of a resolution approving Final Pay Application No. 4 for Matt Construction on Plaza Park 
Improvements in the amount of $77,480.64. 

5. Consideration of a resolution accepting the completion of Plaza Park Improvement Project with Matt 
Construction. 

6. Consideration of a resolution approving Order No. 1 in the amount of $10,862.30 for the Event Center 
Parking Lot Improvement with Bacon Concrete. 

7. Consideration of a resolution approving Pay Request No. 1 in the amount of $121,629.02 for the Event 
Center Parking Lot Improvement with Bacon Concrete. 

8. Consideration of a resolution amending the Oelwein Personnel Policy Manual. 

9. Consideration of a resolution setting a Public Hearing for October 23, 2023 at 6:00 PM in the Oelwein 
City Council Chambers to allow for adoption of the Oelwein Comprehensive Plan. 

1



10. Consideration of a resolution authorizing the temporary closure of public ways or grounds for the 
Oelwein Chamber and Area Development Old Tyme Christmas on December 1, 2023. 

11. Consideration of a resolution approving the sale and transfer of citys owned real estate located at 9 1st 
Street SW, Oelwein, Iowa to Shama Ministries. 

12. Consideration of a resolution setting a public hearing for the sale of Parcel No. 1820402004 (Lot 6 Block 
6 Armstrong Addition) located on 12th Ave SW to Deanna Wenner on October 23, 2023 at 6:00 PM in 
the Oelwein City Council Chambers.  

Motions 

13. Consideration of a motion to direct staff to place an ordinance on the agenda for October 23, 2023 to 
allow golf carts to operate on city streets.  

14. Consideration of a motion approving the direction from the Planning, Finance, Enterprise, and Economic 
Development on the sale of Parcel No. 182042004 to Deanna Wenner. 

15. Consideration of a motion to move the Christmas Eve holiday to December 26, 2023.  

16. Consideration of a motion to move the December 25, 2023 City Council meeting to December 18, 2023. 

Committee Reports 

17. Report from Stewart on the September Airport Board Minutes. 

Council Updates 

Mayor's Report 

City Administrator’s Report 

A. City Administrator. 

Adjournment 

ii. Additional Information.  
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodation for Council meetings 
should notify the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at 319-283-5440 

2



 

Minutes 
City Council Meeting 
20 Second Avenue SW, Oelwein 
September 25, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Call to Order 

Mayor DeVore called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM 

Roll Call 

Present:  Weber, Lenz, Garrigus, Seeders, Payne, Stewart 

Also Present: Mayor DeVore, City Administrator Mulfinger, City Clerk Rigdon 

Absent:  NA 

Additions or Deletions 

A motion was made by Weber, seconded by Lenz to adopt the agenda as amended.  

 All aye.  Motion carried.  

Consent Agenda 

1. Consideration of a motion approving the September 11, 2023 minutes. 

2. Consideration of a motion to approve the Class E Retail Alcohol License for Fareway Stores, Inc 
#412. 

3. Consideration of a motion to approve the Class C Retail Alcohol License for American Legion 
Ross Reid Post #9. 

4. Claims resolution in the amount of $990,049.94.  

A motion was made by Garrigus, seconded by Weber to approve the consent agenda. 

 All aye. Motion carried.  

Ordinances  

5. Consideration of an ordinance amending Section 22-127 to update handicap parking utilization. 
- Third and Final Reading 

A motion was made by Weber, seconded by Lenz to adopt Ordinance No. 1208 on the third and 
final reading. 

Ayes:  Weber, Lenz, Garrigus, Seeders, Payne, Stewart 

 Nays: NA Motion carried. 
  

3

Item 1.



Resolutions 

6. Consideration of a resolution approving matching funds to the Northeast Iowa Regional Housing 
Trust Fund. 

A motion was made by Stewart, seconded by Lenz to adopt Resolution No. 5459-2023, matching 
funds in the amount of $20,000.00 to the Northeast Iowa Regional Housing Trust Fund. 

Ayes:  Weber, Lenz, Garrigus, Seeders, Payne, Stewart 

 Nays: NA Motion carried. 

Rachelle Howe Director, Upper Explorerland Regional Planning Commission, stated 45 projects 
were completed in 2022 totaling $448,319.00.  

7. Consideration of a resolution approving Change Order No. 4 with Matt Construction in the 
amount of $66,903.17 for the Plaza Park Reconstruction project. 

A motion was made by Weber, seconded by Stewart to adopt Resolution No. 5460-2023. 

Ayes:  Weber, Lenz, Payne, Stewart 

 Nays: Garrigus, Seeders Motion carried. 

Patrick Alvord from Confluence explained the additional work completed, the cost associated 
with it, and answered Council’s questions.  

8. Consideration of a resolution approving Pay Estimate No. 3 in the amount of $16,503.07 to 
AECOM for the Oelwein Municipal Airport Repavement Project. 

A motion was made by Seeders, seconded by Garrigus to adopt Resolution No. 5461-2023. 

Ayes:  Weber, Lenz, Garrigus, Seeders, Payne, Stewart 

 Nays: NA Motion carried. 

9. Consideration of a resolution approving the library roof repairs to Schwickert’s Tecta America in 
the amount of $21,005.00. 

One Bid was received: Schwickert’s Tecta America $21,005.00 

A motion was made by Garrigus, seconded by Stewart to adopt Resolution No. 5462-2023. 

Ayes:  Weber, Lenz, Garrigus, Seeders, Payne, Stewart 

 Nays: NA Motion carried. 

10. Consideration of a resolution scheduling a public hearing at Oelwein City Hall on October 9, 
2023 at 6:00 PM on proposed sale of city owned real property located at 9 - 1st Street SW. 

A motion was made by Seeders, seconded by Payne to adopt Resolution No. 5463-2023. 

Ayes:  Weber, Lenz, Garrigus, Seeders, Payne, Stewart 

 Nays: NA Motion carried. 

Committee Reports 

11. Report from Stewart on the August Airport Board Minutes.  

 For full minutes, please visit: https://www.cityofoelwein.org/bc-ab/page/airport-board-26 
  

4

Item 1.



12. Report from Payne on the September Library Board minutes.  

 For full minutes, please visit: oelwein.lib.ia.us 

13. Report from Garrigus on the September Park and Recreation Commission minutes.  

 For full minutes, please visit: https://www.cityofoelwein.org/bc-parks/page/parks-and-
recreation-8 

Council Updates 

Councilwoman Payne inquired if the city has received traffic camera funds, requested golf carts to be 
put back on the council agenda, and questioned if we could use the citywide text messaging notification 
system more often. Councilwoman Seeders wondered if there was a better way to keep vehicles from 
driving the wrong way on closed streets.  

City Administrator’s Report 

At the recent Iowa League of Cities, Mulfinger was appointed to the Iowa League of Cities Executive 
Board. 

Adjournment 

A motion was made by Lenz, seconded by Weber to adjourn the meeting at 7:02PM.  

 

 

 

 
 

     ___________________________________ 
Brett DeVore, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Dylan Mulfinger, City Administrator 
 
I, Dylan Mulfinger, City Administrator in and for the City of Oelwein, Iowa do hereby certify that the above 
and foregoing is a true accounting of the Council Proceedings held September 25, 2023 and copy of said 
proceedings was furnished to the Register September 29, 2023. 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Dylan Mulfinger, City Administrator 
 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 
 

CITY OF OELWEIN 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED SALE OF CITY OWNED REAL 
ESTATE 

 
Notice is hereby given that the City of Oelwein, Fayette County, Iowa, proposes to sell and 
convey by Quit Claim Deed, the following described real estate situated in the City of Oelwein: 
 

The South 64 feet of the East 40 feet of Block 1, Homestead Addition to Oelwein, 
Fayette County, Iowa 

 
Locally known as 9 - 1st Street, SW, Oelwein, Iowa, Parcel No. 1821328007 

 
The City proposes to sell the property to “Shama Ministries”, an Illinois Corporation for the sum 
of $1.00 and other good and valuable consideration, including the agreement of Shama 
Ministries to renovate and reuse the property.  
 
Public Hearing on the proposed sale, and terms associated therewith, will be held at 6:00 p.m. on 
October 9, 2023, before the Oelwein City Council, at Oelwein City Hall, 20 2nd Ave. SW, 
Oelwein, IA. After acceptance of public comment, if any, and closing of the public hearing, the 
City Council may act upon the proposal to sell and transfer said property.  
 
Any person may appear at the Public Hearing to comment on the proposed terms of the sale to 
Shama Ministries and/or may submit written comments in advance of the Public Hearing by 
delivery of same to the City Clerk’s Office, at Oelwein City Hall, 20 2nd Ave. SW, Oelwein, IA 
during regular business hours, by mailing to the City of Oelwein at the same address, or by email 
to the City Clerk’s Office at dmulfinger@cityofoelwein.org, on or before the date and time of the 
Public Hearing. 
 
 
 Dylan Mulfinger, City Administrator  

City of Oelwein, Iowa  
 

 
 
 

 

6

Item 2.



RESOLUTION NO. __________-2023 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PAY APPLICATION NO. 3 IN THE AMOUNT OF $304,552.33 TO DAVE SCHMIDT 
CONSTRUCTION FOR OELWEIN NE SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

 
Whereas, the City of Oelwein has made great progress on the Oelwein NE Sanitary Sewer 

Improvements; and 
 
Whereas, the project is over fifty percent complete; and 
 

Whereas, the pay application #3 will cost $304,552.33; and  
 
Whereas, the project has been designed and administered by Fox Strand; 
 
Whereas, the contractor is Dave Schmitt Construction; 
 
WHEREAS, the work done on the project has been satisfactory; and 
 
Now, therefore, be it resolved by the City Council of Oelwein, Iowa approves Pay Application #3 

in the Amount of $304,552.33 for Oelwein NE Sanitary Sewer Improvements project. 
 

Passed and approved this 9th day of October, 2023. 

 
 
  
 
                          _____________________________ 
                   Brett DeVore, Mayor  

 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Dylan Mulfinger, City Administrator 
 
October 10, 2023. 
 

It was moved by ________ and seconded by ________ that the  
Resolution as read be adopted, and upon roll call there were: 
             AYES           NAYS      ABSENT        ABSTAIN 
Stewart 
Weber                                                                       
Lenz                                                                          
Garrigus 
Seeders                                                                          
Payne 

 

7

Item 3.



Mayor 
October 9, 2023

City Administrator 
October 9, 2023

8

Item 3.

johng
Text Box
Project Manager

johng
Pen
Jalapate

johng
Text Box
9/28/2023



7038.015

3  From 08/29/23 to 09/28/23 09/28/23

A C D E F G H I J K L M N

Item Quantity

(Original)

Change Order 

No.1

Quantity + 

Change Order Units

Unit Price

($)

Value of Bid Item 

Original

(C X F)

($)

Value of Bid Item

Original + CO

( D X F)

($)

Estimated 

Quantity 

Incorporated in 

the Work

Value of Work 

Completed to Date

(F X I)

($)

2.01 1 1 LS  $      33,139.00  $     33,139.00  $     33,139.00 0.50 16,569.50 16,569.50 50%  $       16,569.50 

2.02 1,231 1231 CY  $     13.30  $     16,372.30  $     16,372.30 1,125.00 14,962.50 14,962.50 91%  $      1,409.80 

2.03 6361 6361 SY  $       9.05  $     57,567.05  $     57,567.05 5,807.00 52,553.35 52,553.35 91%  $      5,013.70 

2.04 6361 6361 SY  $       2.85  $     18,128.85  $     18,128.85 5,807.00 16,549.95 16,549.95 91%  $      1,578.90 

2.05 6361 6361 SY  $       1.70  $     10,813.70  $     10,813.70 5,807.00 9,871.90 9,871.90 91%  $      941.80 

2.06 11 11 EA  $     1,098.00  $     12,078.00  $     12,078.00 7.00 7,686.00 7,686.00 64%  $      4,392.00 

3.01 300 300 T  $     23.40  $       7,020.00  $       7,020.00 -                                    -   -   0%  $      7,020.00 

3.02 100 100 CY  $     40.30  $       4,030.00  $       4,030.00 -                                    -   -   0%  $      4,030.00 

3.03 1 1 LS  $     7,500.00  $       7,500.00  $       7,500.00 0.20 1,500.00 1,500.00 20%  $      6,000.00 

4.01 25 10 35 LF  $     69.60  $       1,740.00  $       2,436.00 37.50 2,610.00 2,610.00 107%  $       (174.00)

4.02 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, 12-IN 1730 50 1780 LF  $     136.50  $      236,145.00  $      242,970.00 1,775.00 242,287.50 242,287.50 100%  $      682.50 

4.03 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, 15-IN 251 251 LF  $     122.50  $     30,747.50  $     30,747.50 55.00 6,737.50 6,737.50 22%  $       24,010.00 

4.04 SANITARY SEWER SERVICE, PVC WYE AND CONNECTION TO EXISTING 26 1 27 EA  $     1,237.00  $     32,162.00  $     33,399.00 25.00 30,925.00 30,925.00 93%  $      2,474.00 

4.05 CONNECT PROPOSED SANITARY PIPE TO EXISTING PIPE 10 3 13 EA  $     316.00  $       3,160.00  $       4,108.00 5.00 1,580.00 1,580.00 38%  $      2,528.00 

4.06 SANITARY SEWER SERVICE, PVC 459 5 464 LF  $     94.00  $     43,146.00  $     43,616.00 340.50 32,007.00 32,007.00 73%  $       11,609.00 

4.07 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHLESS, 15-IN 100 100 LF  $     869.00  $     86,900.00  $     86,900.00 -                                    -   -   0%  $       86,900.00 

4.08 BYPASS PUMPING 1 1 LS  $      43,577.00  $     43,577.00  $     43,577.00 0.25 10,894.25 10,894.25 25%  $       32,682.75 

4.09 371 371 LF  $     110.00  $     40,810.00  $     40,810.00 -                                    -   -   0%  $       40,810.00 

4.10 25 25 LF  $     69.60  $       1,740.00  $       1,740.00 21.00 1,461.60 1,461.60 84%  $      278.40 

6.01 10 10 EA  $     5,387.00  $     53,870.00  $     53,870.00 7.00 37,709.00 37,709.00 70%  $       16,161.00 

6.02 2 2 EA  $     3,700.00  $       7,400.00  $       7,400.00 -                                    -   -   0%  $      7,400.00 

7.01 21 21 SY  $     21.00  $       441.00  $     441.00 5.60 117.60 117.60 27%  $      323.40 

7.02 38 38 SY  $     34.90  $       1,326.20  $       1,326.20 24.10 841.09 841.09 63%  $      485.11 

7.03 70 70 LF  $     21.00  $       1,470.00  $       1,470.00 93.00 1,953.00 1,953.00 133%  $       (483.00)

7.04 5,641 5641 SY  $       4.90  $     27,640.90  $     27,640.90 5,142.00 25,195.80 25,195.80 91%  $      2,445.10 

7.05 8 8 SY  $     79.90  $       639.20  $     639.20 6.00 479.40 479.40 75%  $      159.80 

7.06 33 33 SY  $     76.50  $       2,524.50  $       2,524.50 17.60 1,346.40 1,346.40 53%  $      1,178.10 

7.07 40 40 SF  $     40.00  $       1,600.00  $       1,600.00 20.00 800.00 800.00 50%  $      800.00 

7.08 55 55 SY  $     75.30  $       4,141.50  $       4,141.50 -                                    -   -   0%  $      4,141.50 

7.09 80 80 SY  $     13.20  $       1,056.00  $       1,056.00 -                                    -   -   0%  $      1,056.00 

7.10 70 70 SY  $     143.00  $     10,010.00  $     10,010.00 21.00 3,003.00 3,003.00 30%  $      7,007.00 

7.11 5,141 5141 SY  $     46.80  $      240,598.80  $      240,598.80 5,190.00 242,892.00 242,892.00 101%  $       (2,293.20)

7.12 758 758 SY  $     61.00  $     46,238.00  $     46,238.00 332.00 20,252.00 20,252.00 44%  $       25,986.00 

8.01 1 1 LS  $      31,453.00  $     31,453.00  $     31,453.00 0.25 7,863.25 7,863.25 25%  $       23,589.75 

9.01 1 1 LS  $     8,000.00  $       8,000.00  $       8,000.00 0.05 400.00 400.00 5%  $      7,600.00 

9.02 1 1 LS  $     8,000.00  $       8,000.00  $       8,000.00 -                                    -   -   0%  $      8,000.00 

9.03 500 500 LF  $       3.00  $       1,500.00  $       1,500.00 -                                    -   -   0%  $      1,500.00 

9.04 500 500 LF  $       1.00  $       500.00  $     500.00 -                                    -   -   0%  $      500.00 

11.01 1 1 LS  $      34,029.00  $     34,029.00  $     34,029.00 0.70 23,820.30 23,820.30 70%  $       10,208.70 

11.02 1 1 LS  $     1,526.00  $       1,526.00  $       1,526.00 0.50 763.00 763.00 50%  $      763.00 

11.03 1 1 LS  $     1,176.00  $       1,176.00  $       1,176.00 0.50 588.00 588.00 50%  $      588.00 

11.04 1 1 LS  $      47,044.00  $     47,044.00  $     47,044.00 1.00 47,044.00 47,044.00 100%  $      -   

1,218,960.50$     1,229,136.50$     863,263.89$      -$      863,263.89$      70% 365,872.61$      

REMOVAL OF CURB AND GUTTER

REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT

Engineer:

Contractor:

Project:

Contract:

Application Date:Application Period:Application No.:

B

% of Value 

of Item

 (L / H)

(%)

Balance to Finish

 (L-H )

($)

TOPSOIL STRIP, STOCKPILE, AND REPREAD

EXCAVATION FOR ROADWAY

Description

Work Completed

Materials Currently 

Stored 

(not in I)

($)

Work Completed 

and Materials 

Stored to Date 

(J + K)

($)

Contract Information

Bid Item 

No.

GRANULAR SUBBASE, FURNISH

Contractor's Application for PaymentProgress Estimate - Unit Price Work

Owner's Project No.:

Engineer's Project No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

City of Oelwein

FOX Strand

Dave Schmitt Construction

Oelwein NE Sanitary Sewer Improvements

2-2023

Owner:

SUBGRADE PREPARATION, 12-IN

SUBGRADE TREATMENT, GEOGRID (TYPE 1)

Original Contract Totals

REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL

TRENCH COMPACTION TESTING

SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, 8-IN

REMOVAL OF STRUCTURE, SANITARY MANHOLE

TRENCH FOUNDATION

SANITARY SEWER CIPP, 10-IN O.D.

SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, 10-IN

MANHOLE, SANITARY SEWER, SW-301, 48-IN

CONNECT TO EXISTING STRUCTURE

REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK

REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY, PCC

PCC CURB AND GUTTER

PAVEMENT, HMA, 6-IN

PAVEMENT, PCC, 7-IN

TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL

HYDRAULIC SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING - TYPE 1

EROSION CONTROL MULCHING, HYDROMULCHING

FILTER SOCK, 8-IN

FILTER SOCKS, REMOVAL

MOBILIZATION

MAINTENANCE OF POSTAL SERVICE

SIDEWALK, PCC, 4-IN

SIDEWALK RAMP, PCC, 6-IN

DETECTABLE WARNINGS

DRIVEWAY, PAVED, PCC, 6-IN

DRIVEWAY, GRANULAR

MAINTENANCE OF SOLID WASTE COLLECTION

STREAM CROSSING

Unit Price
EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment

(c) 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC.  All rights reserved. 2  of 3

9

Item 3.



7038.015

3  From 08/29/23 to 09/28/23 09/28/23

A C D E F G H I J K L M N

Item Quantity

(Original)

Change Order 

No.1

Quantity + 

Change Order Units

Unit Price

($)

Value of Bid Item 

Original

(C X F)

($)

Value of Bid Item

Original + CO

( D X F)

($)

Estimated 

Quantity 

Incorporated in 

the Work

Value of Work 

Completed to Date

(F X I)

($)

Engineer:

Contractor:

Project:

Contract:

Application Date:Application Period:Application No.:

B

% of Value 

of Item

 (L / H)

(%)

Balance to Finish

 (L-H )

($)Description

Work Completed

Materials Currently 

Stored 

(not in I)

($)

Work Completed 

and Materials 

Stored to Date 

(J + K)

($)

Contract Information

Bid Item 

No.

Contractor's Application for PaymentProgress Estimate - Unit Price Work

Owner's Project No.:

Engineer's Project No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

City of Oelwein

FOX Strand

Dave Schmitt Construction

Oelwein NE Sanitary Sewer Improvements

2-2023

Owner:

CO.01 LS  $     1,652.00 1.00 1,652.00 1,652.00 100% -   

                                 -   -                                    -   

-                                    -   -   

                                 -   -                                    -   

-                                    -   -   

                                 -   -                                    -   

-                                    -   -   

1,652.00$      -$        1,652.00$      100% -$       

864,915.89$      -$      864,915.89$      70% 365,872.61$      

-   

                                                                                                    -   

-   

1,652.00$         

1 

-   

                                                                                                    -   

1,230,788.50$       Project Totals

RELOCATION OF MH-40A

Change Order Added Items Totals

Original Contract and Change Orders

Change Order Added Items

1,652.00 

-   

Unit Price
EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment

(c) 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC.  All rights reserved. 3  of 3

10

Item 3.



RESOLUTION NO. _________-2023 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PAY APPLICATION #4 FOR MATT CONSTRUCTION ON PLAZA PARK 
IMPROVEMENTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $77,480.64 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Oelwein has made substantial improvements to Plaza Park which is now 

Depot Park; and 
 
WHEREAS, Matt Construction has finished the project and is submitting the last pay request; and 
 
WHEREAS, this pay request is in the amount of Amount of $77,480.64; and 
 
WHEREAS, after a lengthy discussion on change order #4, council is ready to approve this pay 

request and finalize the project; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Oelwein, Iowa Approves Pay Application 

#4 for Matt Construction on Plaza Park Improvements in the Amount of $77,480.64 
 

Passed and approved this 9th of October 2023. 

 
 
  
 
                          _____________________________ 
                   Brett DeVore, Mayor  

 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Dylan Mulfinger, City Administrator 
 
October 10, 2023. 
 

It was moved by ________ and seconded by ________ that the  
Resolution as read be adopted, and upon roll call there were: 
             AYES           NAYS      ABSENT        ABSTAIN 
Stewart 
Weber                                                                       
Lenz                                                                          
Garrigus 
Seeders                                                                          
Payne 

 

11

Item 4.



APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT 

TO OWNER: City of Oelwein 20 2nd Ave SW Oelwein, TA 50662 FROM CONTRACTOR: Matt Construction, lnc. 203 Y A;enue Sumner, IA 50674 CONTRACT FOR: 

PROJECT: 
VIA ARCHITECT: 

Plaza Park Tmprovements 
Confluence 900 2nd St SE, Ste I 04 Cedar Rapids. IA 52404 

CONTRA�CTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT Auulication is rnade for oavment. as show11 below. in connection with the Contract. Continuation Sheet. AJA Dornment G703. is attached. 
1, ORIGINAL CONTRACT SUM 2. Net chanue bv Chanee Orders3. CONTRACT SUM TO DATE fLine l ± 214. TOTAL C0IMPLETED & STORED TO DATE <Column G 011 G703\ 
5. RETAIN AGE: a. ___j_ % ofComo!ctcd Work (Column D +Eon 0703) b. _..i_ % ofStore<l Material(Column.Fon G703) Total Rc,1aioattc (Lines 5a + 5b orTotal i11 Column I ofG703) 6. TOTAL EARNED LESS RETAINAG.E (Line 4 less Line 5 Total\ 

$ 

7. LESS PREVIOUS CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT /Line 6 from orior Ce,1ificate)8. CURRENT PAYMENT DUE9. BALANCE TO FINISH, INCLUDING RETAINAGE !l,ine 3 less Line 6) 
Total chanQe:S aooroved 
Total approved this Month (Ill) TOTALS 
NET CHANGES b Chan e Order 

$ 6465)200_ $ 8Q 291 Mi_ $ 722 501 6/i_ $ ____ 7.,2..,.7_5�0,..3�6"'6'--
_____ _........_li.l.li.. 

$ 36,375.18 
$ 691 128 48 

$ 650 023 Q2 
$ 22�HUM $ !L 

$66,903.18 $0.00 $80,991.66 $0,00 
$80 991.66 $0.00 

AlA DOCUMENT G7()2 • APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT· 1992 EDITION· NA • C1992 

AIA DOCUMENT 0702 PAGE ONE OF TWO PAGE(S) APPLICATION NO: Distribution to: 
PERTODTO: Final 
PROJECT NOS: 

4 OWNER ARCHITECT CONTRACTOR 

The 11ndersigned C01;traclor certifies thut to the best of the Contractor's knowledge, information and belief the Work covered bv this Aoolication for Pavment ha s been comoleted in accordance with the Contract Documents. that all amount.-; have been oaid bv the Contractor for Work for which orevious Cer tificateR for Pavment were fasued and oavmcnts received from the Owner. and that current oavmcnt shown herein is now due. 

State of; Subsc,ibed and sworn to before me this Not�rv Public: Mv Commission e.,nires: 

Inc. 
Countv of: davof 

ARCHITECT'S CERTIFICATE FC>R PAYMENT 

Date: 

ln accordance with the Contrncl Documents. based on on-site observations and the data comorisi11� the aoolication. the Architec t certifies to the Owner that to the best of the Architect's knowled2e. infom1ation and bel.iefthe Work has nroeressed as indicated. the aualitv of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents. and the Contractor is entitled to oavmcnt of the AMOUNT CERTIFIED. 
AMOUNT CERTIFIED . , .... , .... $ 77 480 64 
(Allach exola11ation if amount certified dtft'ers Ii-om the amount avv//ed. Initial all fir,ures 011 this 

Avvlicalio11 a11d on/he Co11tt1w111/011 Shee/ Iha/ are c/ia11!!ed to conform with /he amount cer!/fietf. I ARCffiTECT: By: Date: ------------------.----------This Certificate is not negotiable. The AMOUNT fERTIFIED is payable only to the rnntrnrtnr nAmMi hP.rP.in Ti-�1 innl'P. t'iflvmP.nt �nrJ ��r.Pnt::inrP nf n�vmPnf �rl' u,jtl,0111 prejudice to any rights of the Owner or Contractor under this Contract. 
THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHJTECTS, 1735 NEW YORK AVE., N.W., WASHINGTON, DC 20006-529, 

.. �\At.s-<" ERIN BOUSKA 
{Ji.."\ Commission Number 813136 
• ,&• Mr {:omeiiswxp�s 

IOW.,_ CJ •- � 9:; � 
X_______________Brett DeVore, Mayor 12

Item 4.



13

Item 4.



RESOLUTION NO. _________-2023 
 

Resolution Accepting the Completion of Plaza Park Improvement Project with Matt Construction  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Oelwein has made substantial improvements to Plaza Park which is now 
Depot Park; and 

 
WHEREAS, Matt Construction has finished the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oelwein is accepting the project formally; and 
 
WHEREAS, after a lengthy discussion on change order #4, council is satisfied with the project and 

the impact the improvements have made on the downtown; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Oelwein, Iowa Accepts the Completion 

of Plaza Park Improvement Project with Matt Construction 
 

Passed and approved this 9th of October 2023. 

 
 
  
 
                          _____________________________ 
                   Brett DeVore, Mayor  

 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Dylan Mulfinger, City Administrator 
 
October 10, 2023. 
 

It was moved by ________ and seconded by ________ that the  
Resolution as read be adopted, and upon roll call there were: 
             AYES           NAYS      ABSENT        ABSTAIN 
Stewart 
Weber                                                                       
Lenz                                                                          
Garrigus 
Seeders                                                                          
Payne 

 

14

Item 5.



RESOLUTION NO. __________-2023 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,862.30 FOR THE EVENT 
CENTER PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENT WITH BACON CONCRETE 

 
WHEREAS, the original contract price for this project is $212,515.43; and 
 
WHEREAS, the change order #1 will cost $10,862.30; and  
 
WHEREAS, this change order is needed to proceed with this project; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Oelwein, Iowa change Order No. 1 in 

the amount of $10,862.30 for the Event Center Parking Lot Improvement with Bacon Concrete. 
 

Passed and approved this 9th day of October, 2023. 

 
 
  
 
                          _____________________________ 
                   Brett DeVore, Mayor  

 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Dylan Mulfinger, City Administrator 
 

It was moved by ________ and seconded by ________ that the  
Resolution as read be adopted, and upon roll call there were: 
             AYES           NAYS      ABSENT        ABSTAIN 
Stewart 
Weber                                                                       
Lenz                                                                          
Garrigus 
Seeders                                                                          
Payne 

 

15

Item 6.



16

Item 6.



10/03/2023

17

Item 6.



18

Item 6.



RESOLUTION NO. ___________-2023 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PAY REQUEST NO. 1 IN THE AMOUNT OF $121,629.02 FOR THE EVENT CENTER 
PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENT WITH BACON CONCRETE 

 
WHEREAS, the original contract price for this project is $212,515.43 ; and 
 
WHEREAS, the pay request number one is $121,629.02; and   
 
WHEREAS, work on this pay request has been satisfactory; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Oelwein, Iowa Approves Pay Request 

#1 in the Amount of $121,629.02 for the Event Center Parking Lot Improvement with Bacon Concrete. 
 

Passed and approved this 9th day of October, 2023. 

 
 
  
 
                          _____________________________ 
                   Brett DeVore, Mayor  

 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Dylan Mulfinger, City Administrator 
 
Recorded October 10, 2023. 
 
 

It was moved by ________ and seconded by ________ that the  
Resolution as read be adopted, and upon roll call there were: 
             AYES           NAYS      ABSENT        ABSTAIN 
Stewart 
Weber                                                                       
Lenz                                                                          
Garrigus 
Seeders                                                                          
Payne 

 

19

Item 7.



Date of Completion: Amount of Contract: Dates of Estimate:

Original: Original: From:
Revised: Revised: Through:

Item Code Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Quantity Amount Quantity Amount

BID ITEMS
1 2010-D-3 TOPSOIL, OFF-SITE,  10" THICK 68 CY 24.00$              -$                    -$                   
2 2010-E EXCAVATION, CLASS 10 1565 CY 8.25$                1565 12,911.25$        1565 12,911.25$       
3 2010-I SUBGRADE TREATMENT, ENGINEERING FABRIC 189.5 SY 3.85$                -$                    -$                   

4* 2010-J SUBBASE, CRUSHED STONE, MODIFIED 2312.94 TON 18.00$              2312.94 41,632.92$        2312.94 41,632.92$       
5* 2010-999-A CRUSHED STONE, SALVAGE AND PLACE 48 TON 7.00$                48 336.00$              48 336.00$             
6 2010-999-B LANDSCAPE ROCK, 3/4" DIA 42 TON 90.00$              -$                    -$                   

7 4020-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, DUAL WALL HDPE, 8" DIA. 36 LF 25.00$              36 900.00$              36 900.00$             

8 4020-A-1
STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, DUAL WALL HDPE, 10" 
DIA.

85 LF 27.00$              85 2,295.00$          85 2,295.00$         

9 6010-B INTAKE, SW-512, 24" DIA, WITH PCC BOXOUT 1 EA 3,200.00$        1 3,200.00$          1 3,200.00$         
10 6010-B INTAKE, SW-512, 12" DIA 1 EA 2,700.00$        1 2,700.00$          1 2,700.00$         
11 6010-G CONNECTION TO EXISTING INTAKE 1 EA 800.00$           1 800.00$              1 800.00$             
12 7010-A PAVEMENT, PCC, REINFORCED,  8" THICK 40.6 SY 88.50$              40.6 3,593.10$          40.6 3,593.10$         

13* 7010-A PAVEMENT, PCC, REINFORCED,  7" THICK 123.8 SY 77.00$              123.8 9,532.60$          123.8 9,532.60$         
14 7010-E CURB AND GUTTER, PCC, 2'+/- WIDE, 7" THICK 162.5 LF 35.00$              162.5 5,687.50$          162.5 5,687.50$         
15 7020-B PAVEMENT, ASPHALT, 4" THICK 2785.2 SY 28.00$              -$                    -$                   
16 7030-A REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK 211.1 SY 5.00$                211.1 1,055.50$          211.1 1,055.50$         
17 7030-E SIDEWALK, PCC, REINFORCED, 6" THICK 301.9 SY 68.00$              301.9 20,529.20$        301.9 20,529.20$       

PARTIAL PAY ESTIMATE NUMBER ONE
EVENT CENTER 2 PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS, OELWEIN, IOWA

PROJECT NUMBER 23-500

Name of Contractor:

This Period Total To Date

Start
September 30, 2023

Completed by October 27, 2023 212,515.43$                         
223,377.73$                         

20 2nd Avenue SW
Oelwein, Iowa

Bacon Concrete
PO Box 188, 370 Bancroft Street
Postville, Iowa

Name of Owner: City of Oelwein

Page 1 of 3
20

Item 7.



Item Code Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Quantity Amount Quantity Amount
This Period Total To Date

18 7030-F
BRICK/PAVER SIDEWALK BAND, SALVAGE AND 
REPLACE

1 LS 1,800.00$        1 1,800.00$          1 1,800.00$         

19 7030-G DETECTABLE WARNING 22 SF 63.00$              22 1,386.00$          22 1,386.00$         
20* 7040-H PAVEMENT REMOVAL 2636.1 SY 4.75$                2636.1 12,521.48$        2636.1 12,521.48$       
21 7040-I CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL 15 LF 10.00$              15 150.00$              15 150.00$             
22 7999-A WHEEL STOP 29 EA 170.00$           -$                    -$                   

23 8020-B
PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, 
SOLVENT/WATERBORNE

1 LS 2,000.00$        -$                    -$                   

24 8030-A TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL 1 LS 2,400.00$        -$                    -$                   
25 8040-A TRAFFIC SIGNS 6 EA 225.00$           -$                    -$                   

26 9010-A
CONVENTIONAL SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND 
MULCHING

0.09 AC 6,000.00$        -$                    -$                   

27 11,020-A MOBILIZATION 1 LS 7,000.00$        1 7,000.00$          1 7,000.00$         

TOTAL BID ITEMS 128,030.55$      128,030.55$     

Page 2 of 3
21

Item 7.



This Period Retainer Total to Date
5.00%

128,030.55$  Amount Earned 128,030.55$  
6,401.53$  Amount Retained 6,401.53$  

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX Previous Payments
121,629.02$  Amount Due 121,629.02$  

Estimated Percent of Job Completed 57.32%

Is Contractor's Construction Progress on Schedule? Yes

Submitted By: Approved By:

Bacon Concrete City of Oelwein

By: Date: By: Date:
Cory Bacon, President Brett DeVore, Mayor

Recommended By:

Fehr Graham By: Date:
Dylan Mulfinger, City Administrator

By: Date:
Jon Biederman, PE, LSI, Senior Project Manager

PARTIAL PAY ESTIMATE NUMBER ONE
EVENT CENTER 2 PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS, OELWEIN, IOWA

PROJECT NUMBER 23-500

Page 3 of 3

10/04/2023

October 9, 2023

October 9, 2023

22

Item 7.



RESOLUTION NO. ___________-2023 
 
 
 

Resolution Amending the Oelwein Personnel Policy Manual 
 

WHEREAS, the Personnel Policy Manual must be changed as the city continues to re-establish a 
dispatch department to Public Safety; and 

 
WHEREAS, the following changes shall be made and effective upon council ratification:  
 
13.3 Holiday Pay Administration 
 
Remove the repeat A and replace with B and letter each subsection to follow the new alphabetical 

order. 
  
Add subsection H to read: 
Dispatch employees who work on any of the city holidays during the holiday hours, shall receive 
two (2) times the current hourly straight time rate of pay, for any hours worked. Dispatch 
employees who do not work the holiday shall receive no holiday pay compensation.  
 
WHEREAS, these changes will are being implemented to reflect the necessary organizational 

changes for the dispatch department; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Oelwein, Iowa amends the Personnel 

Policy Manual. 
 

Passed and approved this 9th day of October, 2023. 

 
 
  
 
                          _____________________________ 
                   Brett DeVore, Mayor  

 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Dylan Mulfinger, City Administrator 
 
Recorded October 10, 2023. 
 

It was moved by ________ and seconded by ________ that the  
Resolution as read be adopted, and upon roll call there were: 
             AYES           NAYS      ABSENT        ABSTAIN 
Stewart 
Weber                                                                       
Lenz                                                                          
Garrigus 
Seeders                                                                          
Payne 

 

23

Item 8.



 

 1 

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF OELWEIN      
 

 

 

PERSONNEL POLICY MANUAL 
 

 

 

 

ADOPTED 12/8/1986 (Resolution #3523) 
REVISED 9/28/1987 (Resolution #3548) 

REVISED 5/8/1989 (Council Motion) 
REVISED 4/8/1981 (Resolution #3642) 
REVISED 5/6/1996 (Resolution #3908) 

REVISED 3/24/2008 (Resolution #4504) 
REVISED 11/20/2012 (Resolution #4714)  

REVISED 3/11/2013 (Resolution #4731) 
REVISED 4/22/2013 (Resolution # 4735) 
REVISED 9/14/2015 (Resolution #4845) 

REVISED   6/24 /2019 (Resolution #5099-2019) 
REVISED   6/12/2023 (Resolution #5415-2023) 
REVISED 7/24/2023 (Resolution #5432-2023) 

 
 

 

24

Item 8.



 

 2 

CONTENTS 
 
PAGE POLICY 1 -- GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
 6 1.1   Purpose 
 6 1.2  Coverage & Amendment of the Manual’s Policies 
 6 1.3  Political Activity 
 7 1.4  Unlawful Acts Prohibited 
 7 1.5  Equal Employment Opportunity/Non-Discrimination 
 
 8 POLICY 2 -- DEFINITIONS 
 
 POLICY 3 -- ADMINISTRATION OF THE CLASSIFICATION PLAN 
 
 10 3.1  Classification of Positions 
 10  3.2  Preparation and Content of Class Specifications 
 10 3.3  Allocation of New Positions 
 10 3.4  Changes in Duties and Responsibilities 
 10 3.5  Class Titles and Codes 
 11 3.6  Interpretation and Use of Class Specifications 
 
 POLICY 4 -- RECORDS AND REPORTS 
 
11  4.1  Personnel Forms 
11 4.2  Leave Records 
11 4.3  Records on Personnel 
 
 POLICY 5 -- APPLICATION, EXAMINATIONS & SELECTION 
 
12 5.1  Applications 
13 5.2  Examinations 
13 5.3  Selection 
13 5.4  Disqualification 
14 5.5  Nepotism 
14 5.6  Veteran's Preference 
 
 POLICY 6 -- PROBATIONARY  PERIOD AND PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
 
14 6.1  Nature, Duration and Purpose of Probationary Period 
15 6.2  Evaluations 
15 6.3  Conditions and Benefits of Probationary Employees 
 
 POLICY 7 -- EMPLOYEE CONDUCT AND RELATIONS 
 
16 7.1  Unauthorized Absences 
16 7.2  Hours of Work 
16 7.3  Late Arrival 
17 7.4  Break Periods 
17 7.5  Residence 
18 7.6  Change of Address  
18 7.7  Personal Business During Working Hours 
18 7.8  Americans with Disabilities Act As Amended 

25

Item 8.



 

 3 

18 7.9  Outside Employment 
19 7.10  Pecuniary Interests/Conflicts of Interest 
19 7.11  Gift Policy 
20 7.12  Employee Dress Code/Personal Appearance 
21 7.13  Electronic Communication Systems/Personal Use Policy 
25 7.14  Social Media Policy 
29 7.15  Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation 
       
 POLICY 8 -- EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATIONS, AFFILIATIONS, AND UNIONS 
 
33 8.1  Informal Settlements 
33 8.2  Employees Organizational Rights 
33 8.3  Management Excluded from Employee Organizations 
33 8.4   City's Negotiating Agent 
33 8.5  City Council Approval 
33 8.6   Negotiation Steps 
33 8.7  Employee's Right to Work 
 
 POLICY 9 -- PROMOTIONS, TRANSFERS & DEMOTIONS 
 
33 9.1  Promotions 
34 9.2  Transfers 
34 9.3  Demotions 
 
 POLICY 10 - SEPARATION 
 
35 10.1  Termination During Probationary  Period 
35 10.2  Resignations 
35 10.3  Lay-Offs 
36 10.4  Retirement/Benefits 
36 10.5  Death of an Employee 
36 10.6  Disability 
37 10.7  Return of City Property 
37 10.8  Exit Interview 
37 10.9  Refund Retirement Benefits 
37 10.10  Unemployment Compensation 
 
 POLICY 11 - DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS 
 
37 11.1  Working Relationships 
38 11.2  Progressive Discipline  
38 11.3  Misconduct Warranting Disciplinary Action 
 
 POLICY 12 - EMPLOYEE COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 
 
41 12.1  Complaint Defined 
41 12.2  Complaint Procedure 
 
 POLICY 13 - HOLIDAYS 
 

42 13.1-2  City Observed Holidays 
42 13.3  Holiday Pay Administration 

26

Item 8.



 

 4 

 POLICY 14 - VACATIONS 
 

43 14.1  General Provisions 
44 14.2  Authorization 
44 14.3  Utilization 
 

 POLICY 15 - SICK LEAVE 
 

44 15.1  General Provisions 
46 15.2  On-the-Job Injury 
46 15.3  Family Medical Leave Act 
51 15.4  Pregnancy, Childbirth or Related Medical Condition Leave 
 

 POLICY 16 - OTHER TYPES OF LEAVE 
 

52 16.1  Professional Conference Attendance 
53 16.2  Military Leave 
54 16.3  Leave of Absence Without Pay 
54 16.4  Bereavement Leave 
55 16.5  Personal Day  
55 16.6  Jury/Court Leave 
56 16.7  Election Day Workers 
 

 POLICY 17 - INJURIES, INSURANCE AND BENEFITS 
 

56 17.1  Workers’ Compensation 
57 17.2  Retirement Systems 
57 17.3  Hospital, Medical and Life Insurance 
58 17.4  Comprehensive Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) 
59 17.5  Employee Medical Examinations 
59 17.6  Light Duty Policy 
 

 POLICY 18 - SPECIAL ALLOWANCES 
 

60 18.1  Uniforms 
61 18.2  City Property 
61 18.3  Travel Allowance 
61 18.4  Education Allowances 
62 18.5  Recruitment and Retention 
62 18.6  City Pool Pass 
 

 POLICY 19 - PAY ADMINISTRATION 
 

62 19.1  Temporary Job Assignments 
62 19.2  Overtime 
63 19.3  Compensatory Time (Non-Exempt Employees) 
63 19.4  Flex Time (Exempt Employees) 
64 19.5  Longevity 
 
 POLICY 20 – SENIORITY 
 

64 20.1  Seniority 
 

27

Item 8.



 

 5 

  
POLICY 21 - POLICE & FIRE 

 

64 21.1  General Provisions 
65 21.2  Applications 
65 21.3  Examinations 
65 21.4  Promotions 
65 21.5  Temporary Appointments 
65 21.6  Disciplinary Action 
66 21.7  Reduction of Force 
 

 POLICY 22 - EMPLOYEE SAFETY 
 

66 22.1  General 
66 22.2  Hazardous Chemical Communication 
66 22.3  Blood Borne Pathogen Policy/Plan 
67 22.4  Drug and Alcohol Use/Abuse/Testing 
78 22.5  Smoke Free Air Act 
78 22.6  Vehicle Safety: Seatbelt/Restraint Policy/Distracted Driving 
 

 POLICY 23 – WELLNESS CENTER MEMBERSHIP BENEFIT 
 

80 23.1  Employee Wellness Center Membership 
80 23.2  Enrollment Period 
80 23.3  Family/Members Defined 
81 23.4  No Liability 
81 23.5  Employment End Date 
81 23.6  Oelwein Police Reserve Officers & Fire Department Volunteers  
 

 POLICY 24 – PURCHASING POLICY 
 

81 24.1  Overview 
81 24.2  Spending Limits 
82 24.3  Reoccurring Purchases 
82 24.4  Budgeted Items 
82 24.5  Buying Local 
82 24.6  Purchase Order Procedure 
82 24.7  Credit Card Rules 
82 24.8  Allowable Expenses 
83 24.9  Documentation 
83 24.10  Unapproved Expenditures 
83 24.11  Store Credit Accounts 
83 24.12  Emergency Purchases 
84 24.13  Quotes and Bidding 
84 24.14  Signatures in lieu of Absence 
84 24.15  Bulk Purchases 
84 24.16  Purchasing Policy Abuse  
84 24.17  Federal Procurement Requirements 

 
85 EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM 
  

28

Item 8.



 

 6 

POLICY 1 -- GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
1.1 Purpose 
 
 This Personnel Policy Manual (“manual”) is provided for informational purposes only.  The 

manual’s purpose is to establish a system of personnel administration based on merit 
principles and objective methods governing the recruitment, examination, hiring, 
appointment, promotion, transfer, layoff, removal, discipline, and welfare of City employees, 
as well as for other facets of City employment.  The City retains the exclusive right to change, 
add to, eliminate or modify any policies in this manual at any time at its discretion with or 
without notice. 

 
1.2 Coverage and Amendment of the Manual’s Policies  
 
 (A) The manual’s policies shall cover all employees in the classified service.  In addition to 

these policies, commissioned and sworn personnel of the police and fire departments are 
regulated by State law and rules of the Civil Service Commission.  Therefore, any rules or 
statutes adopted by the State of Iowa or the federal government, or rules of the Civil Service 
Commission, or any union or other contracts which conflict with these policies shall take 
precedence.  This manual serves only as a guideline for personnel matters that ordinarily will 
be followed but is subject to change at any time.  

 
 (B) Personnel policies set by the Police Department, Fire Department, Utility Department or 

the Library Board take precedent over this manual.   
 

(C) Any official, employee, or citizen who feels that these policies impose an unnecessary 
hardship on them or that the efficiency of the City can be improved by amendment to these 
policies may consult with their Department Head or the City Administrator. 

 
 (D) The manual’s policies may be amended by a resolution adopted at any regularly 

scheduled meeting of the City Council. 
 
 (E) This manual is not to be construed as an employment contract, express or implied, or as 

a promise that the employee will be employed for any specific period of time.  Employees 
may resign their employment at any time and for any reason, and the City reserves the same 
right to terminate any individual’s employment at any time and for any reason.  Nothing in 
this manual changes the at-will nature of an employee’s employment with the City. 

 
1.3 Political Activity 
 
 (A) No person in the classified service, or seeking admission thereto, shall be appointed, 

promoted, demoted, removed, advanced, or limited on any basis or for any reason other than 
qualification, merit, fitness for the service or lack thereof.  Any such action shall be taken 
wholly without favoritism or discrimination. 

 
 (B) No person shall use his/her City position to secure favorable treatment or privileges for 

either himself/herself or any other person. 
 
 (C) No employee of the City shall engage in any political activity while on duty nor shall an 

employee solicit any monetary contribution to the campaign funds of any political 
organization while on duty. 

 

29

Item 8.



 

 7 

 (D) No employee shall become a candidate for nomination to any elective office within the 
Oelwein City government without first obtaining a leave of absence.  An employee becomes 
a candidate for a partisan elective office by the filing of petitions or by the action of a caucus 
or convention or by payment of a filing fee.  When an employee is elected to any partisan 
position other than precinct committee positions, he/she shall at once resign from his/her 
position as a City employee. 

 
 (E) A City employee may become a candidate for public office within the Oelwein City 

government in a non-partisan election.  In cases where the employee is a candidate for the 
position of Mayor or City Council person, he/she shall at once obtain a leave of absence.  If 
an employee is elected to the position of Mayor or City Council person, he/she shall at once 
resign from his/her position as a City employee. 

 
 (F) City employees may not use City resources in order to campaign for office, including, but 

not limited to, City phones, computers, email, tablets, postage and the like.   
 
 (G) No City employee may distribute campaign stickers, posters or literature on City-owned 

property.  Streets and sidewalks not adjacent to City-owned buildings are exempt from this 
provision. 

 
 (H) Nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent the exercise of the rights of City 

employees as citizens to express their opinions on matters of public concern and to cast their 
votes. 

 
1.4 Unlawful Acts Prohibited 
 
 (A) No person shall willfully or corruptly make any false statements, certificate mark, rating, 

or report in regard to any test, certification or appointment held or made under these policies; 
or in any manner commit or attempt to commit any fraud preventing the impartial execution 
of the City’s personnel policies contained in this manual.   

 
 (B) No person seeking appointment to, or promotion in the City service shall directly or 

indirectly give, promise, render or pay any money, service or other valuable thing to any 
person for, or on account of, or in connection with their test, appointment or promotion 
whether actual or proposed. 

 
 (C) No employee or other person shall defeat, deceive or obstruct any person in their right to 

examination, eligibility, certification or appointment under these policies, or furnish to any 
person any confidential information for the purpose of affecting the rights or prospects of any 
person seeking employment with the City. 

 
1.5 Equal Employment Opportunity/Non-discrimination 
 
 (A) The City shall promote and afford equal treatment and service to all citizens.  It is the 

City’s policy to afford equal opportunity to qualified individuals on the basis of their 
qualifications, interests and aptitude, and without unlawful regard to race, religion, creed, 
color, sex, gender identity, sexual orientation, pregnancy, age, national origin, disability, 
genetic information, or any other characteristic protected by local, state or federal law.  This 
policy applies to all terms, conditions and privileges of employment, including, but not limited  

  

30

Item 8.



 

 8 

 to, recruiting, hiring, training, testing, transfers, promotions, benefits and termination or 
demotion. The City shall operate within the principles of equal employment opportunity and 
affirmative action guidelines set forth in federal, state and local laws and regulations. 

  
(B) The City will cooperate fully with all organizations and Commissions organized to 
promote fair practices and equal employment opportunity. 

 
 (C) Applicants and employees who have a mental or physical disability shall not be 

disqualified from the terms, conditions and privileges of employment, unless such disability 
effectively prevents the performance of essential functions required by the position and which 
are bona fide occupational qualifications that cannot be reasonably accommodated. 

 
 (D) If an applicant or employee believes that they are subject to discrimination, the individual 

should use the complaint procedure outlined in the City’s policy below in Section 7.14(C). 
 

POLICY 2 -- DEFINITIONS 
 
The following words and phrases when used in these policies have the following meaning, unless 
otherwise clearly indicated in context: 
 
CLASS:  A group of positions sufficiently similar as to duties performed, scope of discretion and 
responsibility, minimum requirements of training, experience, or skill and such other characteristics 
that the same title, tests of fitness, and range of compensation have been or may be applied to each 
position in the group. 
 
CLASS TITLE:  The official title used for all personnel and payroll processes.  Working titles may be 
used for all other purposes. 
 
CLASSIFIED SERVICES: All positions not specifically included in the exempt list of positions.  A 
"classified position" is a position in the classified service. 
 
DEMOTION:  A change in the rank of an employee from a position in one class to a position in 
another class having a lower pay grade. 
 
ELIGIBLE:  This refers to a person who has made a passing score on any examination required 
under these policies and who is otherwise fully qualified for placement. 
 
EMERGENCY SERVICES PERSONNEL: Police officers (including reserve), fire fighters (including 
volunteer), and persons providing Emergency Medical Services, as defined by Iowa Code Section 
147A.1. 
 
EMPLOYEE:  Any person appointed to or hired for a position in the City services for which he/she 
receives compensation on a full-time or part-time basis. 
 
EXEMPT POSITION:  Any employee who, pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act, does not qualify 
for overtime and is “exempt” from its provisions.   
 
IMMEDIATE FAMILY:  This shall be construed to mean father, mother, spouse (defined below), son, 
daughter, stepson, stepdaughter, father-in-law, mother-in-law, stepfather, stepmother, brothers-in-
law, sisters-in-law, daughters-in-law, sons-in-law, brothers, sisters, grandparents, grandparents-in-
law, and grandchildren. 

 

31

Item 8.



 

 9 

NON-EXEMPT POSITION:  Any employee, who, pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act, qualifies 
for overtime pay. 

 
POSITION:  An office or employment requiring the services of an individual.  May be either full-time, 
part-time or temporary, occupied or vacant. 
 
PROMOTION:  Any change in rank of an employee to a class having a higher pay grade. 
 
PROVISIONAL EMPLOYEE:  A temporary employee appointed to fill a position because no certified 
qualified applicants are available.  Such appointment shall be valid only until candidates have been 
properly examined, certified, qualified and appointed.  Under no circumstances shall a provisional 
appointment exceed six (6) months duration. 
 
RE-EMPLOYMENT LIST:  A list of former employees eligible for rehire.  Employees laid off through 
a reduction in force shall be placed on this list for a period not to exceed one year.  Other employees 
that have been terminated in good standing shall also be eligible for this list as the situation warrants. 
 
RESIDE:  Reside shall mean the dwelling or place of residence where an employee actually lives 
and from which the employee will normally depart to travel to his/her place of employment with the 
City. 
 
RESIDENCY/PLACE OF RESIDENCE:  That place which the employee declares his/her home for 
voting purposes or has declared as his/her homestead for state tax purposes.  A home, dwelling or 
apartment owned or rented by an employee, but not actually occupied by an employee during his/her 
customary hours of sleep shall not be considered to be the employee’s place of residence. 
 
RETIREE:  An employee who is eligible for retirement in accordance with the Social Security Act 
and/or the Iowa Public Employees’ Retirement System (IPERS) as outlined in Chapter 97B of the 
Code of Iowa. 
 
VOLUNTARY RESIGNATION:  Any employee who leaves the City service and has fulfilled all 
obligations and met all criteria for this classification.  Such an employee would have given two weeks’ 
notice and left under favorable conditions. 
 
INVOLUNTARY RESIGNATION:  Any employee who fails to meet criteria established under these 
policies, including one that fails to give proper notice, is in debt to the City, or resigns in lieu of 
termination.  Anyone fired shall leave "not in good standing". 
 
SENIORITY:  A status of higher standing and greater privilege attained by length of continuous 
employment.  (See Section 20) 
 
SPOUSE:  Someone’s spouse is the person to whom they are married (their partner in marriage), 
including a husband or a wife, considered in relation to their partner.  Upon documentation with the 
City, “spouse” may include a common law spouse, where the employee and their partner meet the 
following criteria:  (1) employee and their partner have an agreement that they are married, (2) 
employee and partner live together continuously as spouses for multiple years, (3) employee and 
partner present themselves publicly as a married couple, including but not limited to identifying the 
other person to third parties as their spouse (or husband or wife) and providing them the benefits of 
a spouse (sharing joint property, naming the other as a beneficiary on various legal documents, etc.).  
  

32

Item 8.



 

 10 

TERMINATION, INVOLUNTARY:  An employee discharged from the City’s employ not of his/her 
own will. 
 
TRANSFER:  A movement of an employee from one position to another having a similar pay grade 
whether it is in the same class or a different class. 
 

POLICY 3 -- ADMINISTRATION OF THE CLASSIFICATION PLAN 
 
3.1 Classification of Positions 
 
 All positions in the classified service shall be grouped into classes and each class shall 

include those positions sufficiently similar in respect to their duties and responsibilities so that  
 similar requirements as to training, experience, knowledge, skill, personal qualities, and the 

same rate of compensation are applicable thereto. 
 
3.2 Preparation and Content of Class Specifications 
 
 Class specifications shall be prepared by the City Administrator or his/her designee and 

approved by the City Administrator, defining the duties and responsibilities of all positions 
and the minimum entrance qualifications for successful performance.  In addition to the 
specific qualifications as set forth in the class specifications, it shall be understood that all 
positions require as essential job functions: the ability to read, write, speak, and understand 
the English language and to follow written and oral instructions; ability to get along with 
others, thoroughness, accuracy, sobriety, integrity, loyalty, and orderly behavior. 

 
3.3 Allocation of New Positions 
 
 The City Administrator shall study the duties and responsibilities of each new position as it is 

created and, on the basis of the City Administrator’s study, allocate it to the appropriate class. 
 
3.4 Changes in Duties and Responsibilities 
 
 Department Heads may propose to the City Administrator any  significant change in the 

duties and responsibilities of a position reporting to them, including but not limited to the 
modification, addition or deletion of essential job duties.  The City Administrator shall review 
and approve if the proposed changes are permanent and require reclassification.  

 
3.5 Class Titles and Codes 
 
 (A) Each of the standard titles specified in this Classification Plan is used to identify a class 

of positions and shall be used also to identify each individual position of the class. 
 
 (B) The class titles are generally indicative of the work of the class and the level of its 

importance and responsibility. 
 
 (C) The Roman numerals affixed to titles in one subseries have no relation to those in titles 

of another subseries, and different titles with the same Roman numerals may properly be at 
different grade levels. 

 
 (D) The class title and/or code shall be used to designate positions or employees in all budget 

estimates, payrolls, personnel records, reports and other official records, and in internal 
correspondence or other communications relative to personnel administrative processing. 

33

Item 8.



 

 11 

 (E) For purposes of external relations, or other purposes not relating to personnel 
administration, any suitable organizational title, or other title now in common use, may be 
continued; provided that such title is not similar to, or may be confused with, any standard 
class title other than the one by which the position involved is officially designated. 

 
3.6 Interpretation and Use of Class Specifications 
 
 (A) The class specifications are mainly descriptive and not restrictive, except as to the 

minimum qualification requirements specified therein.  The inclusion of particular expressions 
of characteristics or examples of duties shall not exclude others of similar kinds and quality. 

 
 (B) Any employee may be required by competent authority to perform any of the duties 

described in the class specification, any other duties which are of similar kind and quality, 
and any duties of lower classes in the same occupational series or in other series which have 
similar characteristics. 

 
 (C) In determining the class to which a position should be allocated, each class specification 

shall be considered as a whole, giving consideration to the general characteristics, specific 
examples of duties, responsibilities, education and experience requirements, knowledge, 
skills, and abilities, and relationships with other classes. 

 
 (D) The qualification statements in each class specification establishes minimum 

requirements that must be met by any individual before he/she may be considered for 
appointment or promotion in the classified service.  Common alternative combinations of 
education, training or experience, are specified in the class specifications.  However, other 
combinations may be qualifying if deemed equivalent by the City Administrator. 

 
POLICY 4 -- RECORDS AND REPORTS 

 
4.1 Personnel Forms 
 
 The City Administrator shall prescribe forms to be used and properly maintained by all 

persons handling such records.  All personnel actions and status changes are to be reported 
to the Office of the City Administrator. 

 
4.2 Leave Records 
 
 The City Clerk or his/her designee shall install and maintain a leave record showing for each 

City employee all leaves (paid and unpaid) earned, used and unused. Such records shall be 
the basis for any reports on leaves as the City Administrator may require.  

 
4.3 Records on Personnel 
 
 (A) Except as otherwise provided in these policies or by Iowa law, all records on personnel 

pertaining to dates of employment, present and past job classifications and rates of pay shall 
be considered public records and may be inspected to verify employment upon application 
to the City Administrator during normal working hours.  Any other requests for information 
relating to an employee's personnel records must be through the employee’s signed  written 
consent or a valid subpoena.  The employee shall have the opportunity to be present when 
any other such information is revealed to anyone. All outside requests for employee records  
must be made in writing to the City Administrator.  

 

34

Item 8.



 

 12 

 (B) Records on personnel involving investigation correspondence and data related to the 
moral character and reputation of applicants for employment or employees of the City; files, 
statements, reports and other data in connection with and related to investigation of policy 
violations; and examination materials, questions, date and examination papers and records 
relating in any way to competitive exams and tests shall be held confidential and separate. 

 

 (C) Records on personnel involving confidential internal investigations, medical information, 
workers’ compensation information or Family and Medical Leave Act information shall be 
held confidential and separate.   

 

 (D) An employee may review his/her personnel file during the normal working hours by 
appointment with reasonable advance notice.  Said review shall occur in the presence of 
an individual appointed by the City to maintain the files. The City shall charge a reasonable 
fee for each page of a copy made by the City for the employee of an item contained in the 
employee’s personnel file. 

 

(E) Post-Employment Reference Check Inquiries:  The City will respond to good faith 
reference check inquiries post-employment only with the former employee’s dates of 
employment and titles held.  A good faith reference check by a prospective employer is 
separate and distinct from an open records request made under Iowa Code §§ 22.7(11) 
and 22.15. 
 

As an employee of the City, the employee should not under any circumstances respond 
to any requests for information regarding another employee unless it is part of the 
employee’s assigned job responsibilities.  If it is not, the employee shall forward the 
information request to his/her supervisor. 

 

POLICY 5 -- APPLICATION, EXAMINATIONS, AND SELECTION 
 

5.1 Applications 
 

(A) An application for employment must be filled out by all persons seeking City positions.  
Applications must be made on approved forms.  Forms may be picked up at the City Clerk's 
office for all positions other than that of police officer and fire fighter.  These shall be available 
at the Police and Fire Departments. 
 

(B) Applications may require information concerning the applicant’s background of training 
and experience, residence, physical fitness and other permissible information, including 
references, deemed pertinent by management. 
 

Applications may be rejected if the applicant does not possess the minimum qualifications 
for the position, if the applicant cannot perform the essential functions of the position with 
or without reasonable accommodation, or if the applicant has made any false statement 
of any material fact or attempted to practice any deception or fraud in the application. 
 

(C) The Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 requires the City to verify and 
document both the identity and employment eligibility of all persons hired after November 
6, 1986.  Before commencing work, employees (or re-hired employees who have not been 
employed by the City for three (3) years) shall complete an I-9 form and attest they are 
eligible for employment.  The City shall examine two (2) documents presented by 
employees or re-hired employees establishing identity and employment eligibility.  
Documents which may be provided are driver’s license, social security card, birth 
certificate or an Immigration and Naturalization “green card.”   

35

Item 8.



 

 13 

(D) Applicants for the Police and Fire Department positions must meet all requirements as 
established by the Civil Service Commission.  Persons desiring to apply for positions on 
either of these departments must be citizens of the United States.  Completed applications 
for examination must be supported by three letters of good character signed by persons 
familiar with the applicant and who meet other requirements as set forth by the Civil Service 
Commission.  (See Section 21.) 

 
5.2 Examinations 
 
 (A) Examinations may not be required except where specifically stated by these policies. 
 
 (B) Exams may be given to fairly test the abilities and aptitudes of candidates for the duties 

to be performed. 
 
 (C) Examinations may include written, oral, physical, psychological, or performance tests. 
 
 (D) Announcements of all forthcoming exams shall be published in a local paper at least two 

(2) weeks in advance of the test date for Police and Fire Departments.  
 
 (E) Candidates for positions on the Police and Fire Departments must take and pass all tests 

as established by the Civil Service Commission as follows: 
 

(1)  Examinations for original entrance into either of these departments shall be 
conducted on an open-competitive basis. 

 
(2)  Applicants will be required to submit to a physical examination by the City’s 
designated health care provider. Applicants must be able to satisfy the established 
physical requirements with or without reasonable accommodation. 
 
(3)  All applicants for the position of police officer or fire fighter must have successfully 
completed a minimum of thirty (30) semester hours (45 quarter hours) of college level 
education or must have three (3) years of job-related experience. 

 
5.3 Selection 
 
 (A)  Candidates for Fire and Police positions who qualify for employment will be placed on 

an eligible list in the rank of the grades assigned to them by test.  Ratings shall follow 
procedures as specified by the Civil Service Commission. 

 
 Eligible lists will be retained for a period of one  (1) year from the date of posting. 
 
 (B)  Selection for non-competitive exam position will be based upon merit, experience, and 

training.  All candidates for a position will be rated fairly with the best qualified individuals 
gaining employment. 

 
5.4 Disqualification 
 
 An applicant may be refused examination or may later be disqualified from City employment 

if: 
 
 (A)  They are found lacking in any of the established preliminary requirements for the service 

for which he/she applies. 

36

Item 8.



 

 14 

 
 (B)  They are physically unable to perform the essential functions of the position to which 

he/she seeks appointment. 
 
 (C)  They are addicted to the habitual use of narcotics or intoxicating beverages. 
 
 (D)  They have been dismissed from any employment for a good cause. 
 
 (E)  They have attempted to practice any deception or fraud in their application. 
 

(F)  Their character and employment references are found to be unsatisfactory. 
 
5.5 Nepotism 
 
 (A)  In order to avoid favoritism or the appearance of favoritism, no full or part time employee 

shall be employed, promoted, or transferred when as a result he/she would be directly 
supervising or directly supervised by a member of his/her immediate family (spouse, child, 
stepchild, parent, stepparent, sibling, grandparent or grandchild or in-laws).   This section 
shall not apply to seasonal employees or volunteers, such as Fire or Police Reserves. 

 
 (B) If two employees within the same department marry or otherwise obtain a relationship, 

whereby they become members of each other’s immediate family, one of the employees 
shall be transferred to another department, if possible, without loss of pay or other benefits.  
Or, an alternate reporting structure may be created, if possible. 

 
(C) Chapter 71 of the Iowa Code shall apply when appropriate. 

 
 (D) An exception may occur through competitive examination for original appointment or 

promotion. 
 
5.6 Veteran's Preference  
 

Military experience may be a factor in the hiring or appointment decision, as provided by 
Iowa’s Veteran’s Preference law.  (Iowa Code Chapter 35C) 

 
POLICY 6 -- PROBATIONARY PERIOD AND PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

 
6.1 Nature, Duration and Purpose of Probationary Period 
 
 The Probationary period is regarded as an integral part of the employment process and is 

used for evaluating an employee's work, for securing the most effective adjustment of the 
new employee to the position and for rejecting any employee whose performance does not 
meet the required standards. 

 
 The first one hundred twenty (120) days of service in a position to which an employee has 

been employed, appointed, re-employed or reinstated under the provisions of these policies 
shall constitute a probationary period.  The probationary period may be extended as 
determined by the Department Head and upon prior written notice to the probationary 
employee. 

 
 Provisional and temporary service in the position immediately prior to the appointment to the 

position without an interruption shall be counted toward the probationary period. 

37

Item 8.



 

 15 

6.2 Evaluations 
 
 The functions of the employee performance evaluation are:  to provide probationary 

employees with timely reports of their progress and to allow opportunity for correction of 
deficiencies; to provide all employees with positive recognition of strengths and special 
abilities; to provide an ongoing performance record which may be part of documentation used 
in making personnel actions; to provide employees with an opportunity to discuss ways and 
means for improvement; and to cause current job descriptions to be formulated and/or 
maintained. 

 
 Employees on probationary employment status shall be evaluated at the midpoint of such 

status and two weeks prior to the end of the probationary employment period, at which time 
the employee shall be advised of his/her status (regular or terminated). 

 
 Thereafter, all personnel shall be evaluated at least once a year.  Department Heads may 

choose to evaluate employees more often. 
 
 When the Department Head has completed the form, they shall arrange for a conference. 

During the conference, the employee and Department Head will discuss each portion of the 
form and the relationship between the employee's performance of the job and the description 
of the job itself.  The employee and Department Head shall strive to reach a consensus on 
each section and shall jointly complete the conference report.  If there is a disagreement, or 
consensus is not achieved, the Department Head’s comments shall take priority and the 
employee may, if he/she wishes, use an "Employee Remarks" section to respond.  The 
Department Head signs the completed form and sends it to the City Administrator for review 
upon request.  It is then returned to the Department Head who then allows the employee to 
read the completed form and sign it. The signed employee performance evaluation 
conference report is placed in the personnel file and will remain filed for the length of time 
required by law or policy.  

 
6.3 Conditions and Benefits of Probationary Employees 
 
 (A) Probationary employees may be terminated at any time during the probationary period 

for any reason without an appeal process.   
 
 (B) Newly hired probationary employees will accrue vacation and sick leave the same as 

regular employees, but paid vacation shall not be authorized during the first year of 
employment and sick leave pay shall not be authorized for the first 120 days of employment. 

 
 (C) During a probationary period, no employee shall be granted any leave of absence without 

pay unless approved by his/her Department Head.  Persons entering military service while 
still on their probationary period shall be granted leave in accordance with state and federal 
law, pursuant to Policy 16, Military Leave.   However, upon return to City employment they 
must finish the remainder of their probationary period. 

 
  

38

Item 8.



 

 16 

POLICY 7 -- EMPLOYEE CONDUCT AND RELATIONS 
 
7.1 Unauthorized Absences 
 
 (A) No employee may take time off from work without informing his/her Department Head or 

the Department Head’s designated representative within two (2) hours of the start of the 
workday.  Unauthorized absences will be grounds for disciplinary action.  Any employee who 
takes three (3) consecutive days off work without notice to and/or approval from his/her 
Department Head or the Department Head’s designated representative shall be terminated.  
Said employee shall not leave in good standing and shall not be reinstated. 

 
(B) An employee who has been disciplined due to unauthorized absences and who 
considers themselves aggrieved may file an appeal in accordance with Section 12, Appeals 
and Complaints. 

  
7.2 Hours of Work 
 
 (A) Work schedules, including starting times and ending times, shall be set by each 

Department Head with approval of the City Administration.  
 
 (B) The City and its Department Heads upon approval of the City Administrator shall set the 

hours of work determined to best provide the service to be rendered to the public.  The hours 
scheduled shall not be construed as a guarantee of hours or days of work scheduled.     

 
(1)  The standard workday shall be the normal eight (8) hours a day duration for all 
full-time employees other than Police and Fire Department personnel.  The normal 
work week for full-time employees shall consist of a forty (40) hour week.  Working 
more than forty (40) hours per week when an employee is not exempt from the Fair 
Labor Standards Act will be considered overtime.  Employees shall not accrue 
overtime without prior authorization from their Department Head.  

 
(2)  It is understood and agreed that the determination of the work schedules for all 
employees may be changed by the City, from time to time, to meet the City’s 
requirements.  It is also understood and agreed that the City shall have the right to 
extend or maintain the hours of work for any employee, and the employee shall be 
required to work at times as scheduled by the City. 

 
(3)  It is understood and agreed that while the City may have to modify work 
schedules to adequately staff each shift and to serve the public, the City agrees to 
give the affected employee(s) as much notice as possible of a change in the 
employees’ schedule of hours to be worked. 

 
     (C) Questions involving hours of work or break periods (see Section 7.4 below) shall be 

determined by each Department Head with the approval of the City Administrator.  The City 
Administrator retains final authority.  Requests to change or alter hours shall follow Section 
12. 

 
7.3 Late Arrival 
 
 (A) Any employee who is late for work shall not be paid for the time absent from work at the 

discretion of his/her Department Head. 
 

39

Item 8.



 

 17 

 (B) Persistent violators of this Section shall be subject to further disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination. 

 
7.4 Break Periods 
 
 (A) Department Heads determine the amount and frequency of break periods within their 

department.  However, all full-time employees shall be authorized one 15-minute paid break 
at a mutually convenient time. 

  
 (B) i. All full-time employees are expected to take a 30-minute unpaid lunch break. No work 

shall be performed during any lunch break.  Lunch break times will be determined by the 
Department Head and may fluctuate depending on circumstances. 

 
 (C) Worksite Breastfeeding/Expression Policy 
 

(1) Employees shall be provided a place to breastfeed or express their milk.  An 
employee room is provided as a private and sanitary place for breastfeeding 
employees to feed their baby or express their milk during work hours.  This 
room provides an electrical outlet and nearby access to running water.  
Employees may use their private office for breastfeeding or milk expression if 
they prefer.  In facilities where there is not a designated “private room,” 
accommodations will be made.  Employees should ask the City Clerk or their 
immediate supervisor for more information about accommodations. 
Supervisors are encouraged to be flexible to accommodate the employee’s 
needs. This can be accomplished with shorter meal breaks, using break 
times, or adjusting start and end times of the workday. Alterations to existing 
work hours must be approved in advance by the employee’s supervisor. 
 
 

(2) A refrigerator will be made available for safe storage of expressed breast milk.  
Employees may use their own cooler packs to store expressed breast milk or 
may store milk in a designated refrigerator/freezer.  Employees should provide 
their own containers, clearly labeled with name and date.  Employees using 
the refrigerator are responsible for keeping it clean. 
 

(3) Employees shall be provided flexible breaks to accommodate breastfeeding 
or milk expression. The time may exceed the position’s time allotted for lunch 
and breaks.  For time above and beyond the position’s lunch and breaks, a 
discussion must take place with the employee’s supervisor/department head.   
Reasonable break time for breastfeeding will be provided for up to one (1) 
year, per pregnancy or longer for special circumstances. Employees storing 
milk in a shared refrigerator assume all responsibility for the safety of the milk 
and the risk of harm for any reason, including improper storage, refrigeration, 
and tampering. 
 

(4) Given the importance of breastfeeding to the infant and the mother, the City 
and its employees should provide an atmosphere of support. 

 
7.5 Residence 
 
 (A) Emergency services personnel shall reside within a 15-minute radius of their primary 

place of work.  Failure to maintain this residency within the limit shall result in termination of 

40

Item 8.



 

 18 

employment. 
 
 (B) Any new full-time emergency service personnel shall have ninety (90) days after 

successful completion of the required probationary period to move within this residency 
requirement. 

 
 (C) Exceptions may be granted upon formal approval by the City Council on a case-by-case 

basis. 
 
7.6 Change of Address 
 
 All employees must provide their Department Head with current addresses and phone 

numbers.  Department Heads will provide the City Clerk with the current information. 
 
7.7 Personal Business During Working Hours 
 
 Employees shall confine personal business to off-duty hours.  However, exceptions are 

permitted when there is a bona fide emergency or a matter of urgency/time sensitivity.   
 
7.8 Americans With Disabilities Act, As Amended 
 
 (A) If an applicant or employee has or believes he/she has a disability as defined by the 

Americans With Disabilities Act, as amended (“ADAAA”), and the disability requires a 
reasonable accommodation for the applicant or employee to perform his/her essential job 
functions, the applicant or employee should promptly notify the City with that information. 

 
 (B) In compliance with the ADAAA, the City will engage in the interactive process with 

qualified applicants or employees with disabilities to determine if a reasonable 
accommodation exists that will permit the applicant or employee to perform his/her essential 
job functions. 

 
(C) Department Heads may request an employee to submit to a mental or physical 
examination by a City-approved health care provider when there is objective evidence that 
an employee’s condition is a direct threat to the employee’s own safety, the safety of the 
employee’s coworkers or the safety of the public in accordance with the ADAAA. 

 
 (D) The examination shall be at the City’s expense. 
 
 (E) Any mental or physical examination information shall be retained in a separate, 

confidential medical file for the employee. 
 
 (F) Such an exam shall be only for the purpose of ascertaining the employee's condition 

relative to his/her continued City employment. 
 
7.9 Outside Employment 
 
 (A) The work of the City shall have precedence over all other occupational interests for full-

time employees. 
 
 (B) No employee may perform any outside work which is, or can be interpreted to be, 

inconsistent with his/her City work or is detrimental to the best interests of the City.  Such 
determination of detrimental work shall require a formal decision by the City Administrator.  

41

Item 8.



 

 19 

 
 (C) All employees engaged in permanent or ongoing outside employment of more than 

twenty (20) hours per week must provide their Department Head with the name of the 
employer, a work schedule and a description of the work performed. 

 
 (D) Employees may not engage in outside employment activities while on duty nor may City 

property be used for non-City business. 
 
 
 (E) Employees injured while working at their outside employment shall be ineligible for the 

accrual of vacation and sick leave during the duration of time absent from City employment 
due to the outside employment injury. 

 
7.10 Pecuniary Interests/Conflicts of Interest 
 

(A) No employee of the City shall have a financial interest of over $1,500 unless he/she is 
the low bidder, either directly or indirectly, in any contract or business with the City, except 
on behalf of the City in an official capacity.  Special circumstances may warrant specific 
approval of the City Council.  (Also, Iowa Code Section 362.5.)  

 
(B) Employees have an obligation to conduct business in a way that avoids actual or 
potential conflicts of interest.  Activities that are inconsistent, incompatible or in conflict 
with City employment include, but are not limited to, using city time, facilities, equipment, 
supplies or influence to give the employee or his/her immediate family members an 
advantage or pecuniary benefit that is not available to other members of the general 
public; activities that involve the receipt of or promise of or acceptance of money or other 
consideration by the employee or his/her immediate family for the performance of an act 
that the person would be required or expected to perform as part of his/her regular City 
duties; activities where a City employee directly or indirectly controls, inspects, reviews, 
audits or enforces the responsibility of his/her City duties over his/her immediate family 
members or an organization that employs or intends to employ the employee’s immediate 
family member or in which the City employee has a financial or other interest. 

 
(C) Employees should disclose the existence of any relationship with outside persons or 
entities when City employees have influence over transactions with those outside persons 
or entities.   

 
(D) Failure to abide by this policy can result in disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination of employment. 

 
7.11 Gift Policy 
 
 In conjunction with the adoption of Iowa Code Chapter 68B, the following policy has been 

adopted by the Oelwein City Council: 
 
 A public official, public employee or candidate, or that person’s immediate family member 

shall not, directly or indirectly accept or receive any gift or series of gifts from a restricted 
donor.  A public official, public employee, candidate, or the person’s immediate family 
member shall not solicit any gift or series of gifts from a restricted donor at any time.  

 
 (A) “Gift” shall mean anything of value exceeding $2.99 in any given day, if the donor is 
 in any of the following categories: 

42

Item 8.



 

 20 

 
(1) Is doing or seeking to do business of any kind with the donee's agency. 

 
 (2) Is engaged in activities which are regulated or controlled by the donee's 

agency. 
 
 (3) Has interests which may be substantially and materially affected, in a manner 

distinguishable from the public generally, by the performance or nonperformance of 
the donee's official duty. 

 
 (4) Is a lobbyist with respect to matters within the donee's jurisdiction. 

 
 (B) However, "gift" does not mean any of the following: 
 
  (1) Campaign contributions. 
 

(2) Informational material relevant to a public servant's official functions, such as 
books, pamphlets, reports, documents, or periodicals, and registration fees 
or tuition not including travel or lodging, for not more than three days at 
seminars or other public meetings conducted in this state, at which the public 
servant receives information relevant to the public servant's official functions.  
Information or participation received under the execution of this paragraph 
may be applied to satisfy a continuing education requirement of the donee's 
regulated occupation or profession if the donee pays all registration costs. 

 
(3) Anything received from a person related within the fourth degree by kinship 

or marriage unless the donor is acting as an agent or intermediary for another 
person not so related. 

 
  (4) An inheritance. 
 

(5) Anything available to or distributed to the public generally without regard to 
official status of the recipient. 

 
(6) Plaques or items of negligible resale value given as recognition for public 

services. 
 
 The provisions of the Iowa Gift Act (Iowa Code Section 68B.21, et seq.) be adopted as 

applicable.  That is City of Oelwein officials, employees and family members shall accept no 
gift of value exceeding $2.99. 

 
7.12 Employee Dress Code/Personal Appearance 
 

All apparel shall be selected with common sense and appropriate for the task.  Apparel 
shall be task-oriented and appropriate to the circumstances of the situation, i.e., field 
inspections, off-site or on-site meetings/classes, professional conferences, etc.  
 
Office employees are expected to follow a business casual type of dress code.  When 
jeans are allowed to be worn, they are not to be ripped, tattered or worn out.  Apparel such 
as spaghetti straps, low cut tops or shirts, or clothing with large graphics or logos are not 
considered business casual attire.  Office clothing and footwear shall be clean and 
adequately maintained (free of holes, tears and rips). 

43

Item 8.



 

 21 

 
Field employees’ clothing and footwear should be appropriate for the task and weather 
conditions.  Footwear shall be adequately maintained (free of holes, tears and rips).  All 
employees are expected to consider safety as a top priority in their dress code.  Field 
employees’ clothing should not display large graphics or logos.  Employees shall follow all 
state and federal regulations regarding hair, facial hair, clothing and jewelry requirements 
where applicable.  
 
All employees: hair (facial or other) shall be neat and tidy and shall not present a health 
or safety hazard depending on the employee’s particular job functions. 
 
All employees:  body piercings, including ear lobe gauges/plugs (other than two earrings 
worn in each ear), should not be visible or must be removed or covered if deemed 
inappropriate by the department head. No jewelry should cause a safety hazard (i.e., items 
that can be pulled or caught on objects or in machinery or equipment). Tattoos must be 
kept covered if deemed inappropriate by the department head. 
 
Department Heads are responsible for enforcing the guidelines in their department and 
will have the authority to make judgment calls for inappropriate dress.  Compliance with 
the intent of this policy shall be determined by a reasonable person standard.  Any 
employee who does not meet the standards of this policy will be required to take corrective 
action, which may include leaving the premises.  Any work time missed because of failure 
to comply with this policy will not be compensated, and repeated violation of this policy 
may be cause for disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.  

 
 An employee seeking a religious or health-related accommodation to this policy should 
 speak with their Department Head or the City Administrator.   
 
7.13 Electronic Communication Systems/Personal Use Policy 
 

(A) Purpose: To better serve the City’s citizens and give the City’s workforce the best tools 
to do their jobs, the City continues to adopt and make use of new means of communication 
and information exchange.  This means that many City employees have access to one or 
more forms of electronic communications systems, including, but not limited to 
computers,1 computer files, e-mail, telephones, cellular or “cell” phones, pagers, voice 
mail, fax machines, external electronic bulletin boards, wire services, media services, on-
line services, applications including social media such as Facebook, the Internet, and the 
World Wide Web (hereafter “electronic communication systems”). 

 
The City encourages the use of electronic communication systems because it is an 
efficient and effective way to facilitate and support City business and to stay abreast of 
the latest information relevant to the City and its customers. The City’s electronic 
communication systems are the City’s property and there shall be no expectation of 
privacy regarding their use.  This includes use of personal devices over the City’s 
electronic communications systems. 

 
The purpose of this policy is to express the City’s philosophy and set forth general 
guidelines governing the use of electronic communications systems.  By adopting this 
policy, it is the City's intent to ensure the electronic communication systems are used to 
their maximum potential for City purposes and not used in a way that is disruptive, 

 
1 Desktop, laptop, tablet or other hand held devices and external hard drives. 

44

Item 8.



 

 22 

offensive to others, or contrary to the best interests of the City. 
 

(B) Applicability:  This policy applies to all City departments, offices, boards, commissions, 
committees, City employees and contracted and consulting resources. 

 
This policy applies to all electronic communication systems that are: 

 
(1) Accessed on or from City premises or City systems (i.e., wireless internet 

systems, server systems, etc.); 
(2) Accessed using City owned or paid-for electronic communications 

systems; or 
(3) Used in a manner that identifies the individual as acting for or on behalf of 

the City; or in any way identifies the City. 
 

(C) Policy:  It is the policy of the City to follow this set of procedures for the use of electronic 
communication systems.  
 
If any electronic device provided by the City is lost or stolen, employees must report the 
loss or theft to their immediate supervisor who will report the loss or theft to the City 
Administrator.  If the immediate supervisor cannot be contacted, employees should make 
every reasonable effort to immediately contact the City Administrator. 

 
As City-owned electronic devices are decommissioned or replaced, employees shall turn 
them in, including all accessories, attachments and cases, to their immediate supervisor, 
who will forward them to the City Administrator. 

 
Malfunctioning electronic devices shall be reported to the immediate supervisor for 
reporting to the City Administrator. 

 
Department Heads or their designees are responsible for notifying the City Administrator 
for discontinuing, canceling or changing electronic devices or services when an individual 
employee voluntarily or involuntarily terminates his/her employment with the City or if 
some other change is made which discontinues an employee’s use of an electronic device.   

 
Employees shall surrender all electronic devices upon termination to their immediate 
supervisor.  If an employee fails to surrender an electronic device assigned to them by the 
City upon termination of his/her employment, the fair market value of the City-owned 
electronic device will be withheld from the employee’s final paycheck pursuant to Iowa 
Code § 91A.5.  See Acknowledgment form for express authorization for this withholding.   

 
(D) Reimbursement for Personal Electronic Devices Used for City Purposes 

 
The City, through the City Administrator may provide a reimbursement for personal cell 
phones or other electronic devices in lieu of providing a cell phone or other electronic 
devices to conduct City business.  The above policy applies regarding proper use of 
personal cell phones or other electronic devices when used for City business and where 
the City reimburses employees for said devices.  

 
By using a personal electronic device for City business, employees are acknowledging 
that the records and information contained on the personal electronic device or in the 
billing for the personal electronic device may be public records pursuant to Iowa Code 
Chapter 22.   

45

Item 8.



 

 23 

 
(E) Access and Authority 
 
Each Department Head shall determine which employees in their department shall have 
access to the various media, applications, and services, based on business practices and  
necessity and which shall have authority to communicate on behalf of the City with 
approval of the City Administrator/Mayor. 

 
Electronic information created and/or communicated by an employee using the City’s 
electronic communication systems may be monitored, intercepted, accessed or preserved 
by the City for any purpose including, but not limited to: cost analysis; resource allocation; 
optimum technical management of information resources; and detecting use which is in 
violation of City policies or may constitute illegal activity.  Employees shall have no 
expectation of privacy using the City’s electronic communication systems, including in 
situations where an employee is using a personal device over a City electronic 
communication system.  Disclosure of electronic information will not be made except when 
necessary to enforce a policy, as permitted or required under the law, or for other 
legitimate business purposes. 

 
Any such monitoring, intercepting and accessing shall observe any and all confidentiality 
regulations under federal and state laws. 
 
City-owned electronic communications systems may be removed from City premises 
solely for City work-related purposes pursuant to prior authorization from the immediate 
supervisor. 
 
Most of the City’s computing facilities automatically check for viruses before files and data 
which are transferred into the system from external sources are run or otherwise 
accessed.  On computers where virus scanning takes place automatically, the virus 
scanning software must not be disabled, modified, uninstalled or otherwise inactivated.  If 
an employee is uncertain as to whether the workstation the employee is using is capable 
of detecting viruses automatically, or the employee is unsure whether the data has been 
adequately checked for viruses, the employee should contact the City Administrator. 

 
(F) Prohibited Communications/Uses 

 
The City’s electronic communications systems and the employee’s personal electronic 
communications systems being used during working time shall not be used for knowingly 
transmitting, retrieving or storing any communication that is: 

 
(1) Personal business on City time (e.g., sports pools, games, shopping, 

correspondence, supplemental employment or other non-City-related 
items), except as otherwise allowed (see Personal Use section); 

(2) Discriminatory or harassing; 
(3) Derogatory to any individual or group; 
(4) Obscene as defined in case law and under Iowa criminal law; 
(5) Defamatory or threatening;  
(6) Using another individual’s account or identity without explicit authorization; 
(7) Attempting to test, circumvent, or defeat security or auditing systems 

without prior authorization;  
(8) Accessing, retrieving or reading any e-mail messages sent to other 

individuals without prior authorization from the City Administrator;  

46

Item 8.



 

 24 

(9) Permitting any unauthorized individual to access the City’s e-mail system; 
(10) Engaged in for any illegal purpose or one contrary to the City’s policies or 

best interests; 
(11) Sent in an attempt to hide the identity of the sender or represent the sender 

as someone else; and 
(12) Likely to cause network congestion or significantly hamper the ability of 

other people to access and use the system. 
 

Employees must respect the confidentiality of other individuals’ electronic 
communications.  Except in cases in which explicit authorization has been granted by the 
City Administrator, employees are prohibited from engaging in, or attempting to engage 
in: 

 
(1) Monitoring or intercepting the files or electronic communications of other 

employees or third parties; 
(2) Hacking or obtaining access to systems or accounts they are not 

authorized to use; 
(3) Using other people’s logins or passwords; and 
(4) Breaching, testing or monitoring computer or network security measures. 

 
City employees shall not download or transfer software unless authorized by the 
immediate supervisor.  Employees must understand that the unauthorized use or 
independent installation of non-standard software or data may cause computers and 
networks to function erratically or improperly, or cause data loss.  Users must never install 
downloaded software to networked storage devices without the assistance and approval 
of the immediate supervisor.  

 
Body Worn Video (BWV) and other audio/visual recording devices shall only be used in 
conjunction with performance of official, authorized, sanctioned and assigned job duties.  
See applicable department standard operating procedures.  
 
Activation of recording devices such as microphones, cameras and video to record 
communications with any other person outside of departmental standard operating 
procedures while at work or on City business is prohibited where such activity violates 
another employee’s or another person’s rights to protect their confidential personnel or 
medical information or where the information would otherwise qualify as a confidential 
record under Iowa Code Chapter 22.   
 
(G) Acceptable Communications/Uses 
 
Except as otherwise provided, electronic communication systems are provided by the City 
for employee business use during City time.  Limited, occasional, or incidental use of 
electronic communications systems (sending or receiving) for personal non-business 
purposes is permitted as set forth below: 
 

(1) Personal use is limited to breaks, lunch or immediately before/after work; 
(2) Personal use must be brief and must not interfere with the productivity of 

the employee or co-workers; 
(3) Personal use shall not involve any prohibited activity (see Prohibited 

Communications/Use section above); 
(4) Personal use does not consume system resources or storage capacity on 

an ongoing basis; 

47

Item 8.



 

 25 

(5) Personal use does not involve large file transfers or otherwise deplete 
system resources available for business purposes; 

(6) The City’s phone numbers and email address shall not be listed in any 
publication or electronic communication that will result in personal incoming 
phone calls, text messages or other forms of electronic communications. 

(7) Non-City personnel are not authorized to use the City’s electronic 
communication systems except in an emergency. 

(8) Anyone obtaining electronic access to other organizations’, businesses’, 
companies’, municipalities’ or individuals’ materials must respect all 
copyrights and cannot copy, retrieve, modify or forward copyrighted 
materials except as permitted by the copyright owner. 

(9) Anyone receiving an electronic communication in error shall notify the 
sender immediately.  The communication may be privileged, confidential 
and/or exempt from disclosure under applicable law.  Such privilege and 
confidentiality shall be respected. 

 
(H) Confidential Information 
 
All employees are expected and required to protect the City’s confidential information.  
Employees shall not transmit or forward confidential information to outside individuals or 
companies without the permission of their immediate supervisor and the City 
Administrator. 
 
The City also requires its employees to use e-mail in a way that respects the confidential 
and proprietary information of others.  Employees are prohibited from copying or 
distributing copyrighted material - for example, software, database files, documentation, 
or articles - using the e-mail system. 
 
(I) Policy Violations 

 
Employees who abuse the privilege of City-facilitated access to electronic media or 
services risk having the privilege removed for themselves and possibly other employees, 
are subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination and may be subject to 
civil liability and criminal prosecution. 

 
7.14 Social Media Policy 
 

(A) Definitions 
(1) Posting:  any writing, image, video, download, audio file, and hyperlink to 

other websites, or media which is downloaded, referenced, inserted or 
placed upon any City social media site. 

(2) Social media or site:  includes, but is not limited to, electronic 
communication through which users create online communities to share 
information, ideas, personal messages, photographs, videos and other 
content.  Examples of the types of social networking sites covered by this 
policy include, but are not limited to:  blogs, LinkedIn, Facebook, Google+, 
Twitter, YouTube, Instagram, Pinterest, Snapchat, Tik Tok, YikYak, photo 
and video sharing sites, micro-blogging, podcasts, wikis, news sites, as 
well as viewable comments posted on Internet sites.  This policy is not 
meant to address only certain forms of social media, but rather social media 
in general as advances in technology will occur and new tools will emerge 
that are also expected to be used in accordance with this policy.  

48

Item 8.



 

 26 

 
All City employees are always expected to use City electronic communications systems 
in a responsible, professional, ethical and lawful manner.  This includes the use of all 
social media on electronic communications systems.  Employees should be aware that all 
content, including social media, on these devices, including those personal devices 
accessing a City electronic communications system, is not private and the City could 
access any information saved to, accessed by, created on, transmitted on, downloaded 
to, exchanged over or discussed on these devices, including social media, at any time.  
Consequently, employees have no reasonable expectation of privacy when engaging in 
these activities and employees should use common sense in all communications, 
particularly on a website or social networking site accessible to anyone.  

 
In addition, employees are expected to follow all other City policies regarding their use of 
social media.  Any employee who violates this policy may be subject to disciplinary action, 
up to and including termination of employment.  

 
(B) Procedures:  The procedures for using social media are presented in two 

categories: (1) City-sponsored sites used to provide citizens with official, accurate 
and unbiased information, and (2) procedures governing employees’ conduct while 
on social media sites. 

 
(1) City-Sponsored Sites: 

 
a. The City’s social media are limited public forums.  The sites are not an 

editorial page or blog for visitors, and they are subject to the 
commenting restrictions listed below in this policy.  The City does not 
intend by its social media sites to create or allow the creation of an 
unlimited public forum for the public to post comments of any kind.  

b. The establishment and use by any City department of City social 
media sites are subject to approval by the City Administrator.  At the 
time such site is approved, the City Administrator must determine who 
will be responsible for developing this site, including establishing an 
administrative profile, designating who will have authority for speaking 
on behalf of the City, and who will keep the site up to date, including 
answering questions in a timely manner. 

c. City social media accounts will only become affiliated with (i.e., “like,” 
“follow,” etc.) another social media page if it is related to official City 
business, services and events.  The City Administrator shall have the 
final determination if another social media page is related to official 
City business, services and events. 

d. Wherever possible, City social media sites should link back to the 
official City websites (including but not limited to 
www.cityofoelwein.org; www.oelwein.lib.ia.us; 
https://oelweinparks.org/; and www.oelweinpolice.org) for forms, 
documents, online services and other information necessary to 
conduct business with the City. 

e. The City Administrator or his/her designee will monitor the City’s social 
media accounts to ensure that the social media sites further the City’s 
policies, interests and goals. 

f. The City’s social media sites may be considered public records under 
Iowa Public Records laws.  If requested, the City may be compelled to 
disclose public records to third party requestors.  The City in its sole 

49

Item 8.

http://www.cityofoelwein.org/
http://www.oelwein.lib.ia.us/
http://www.oelweinpolice.org/


 

 27 

discretion shall determine whether postings on its social media 
websites are public records and whether exemptions from disclosure 
apply. 

g. Inappropriate uses:   
(i) Comments containing any of the following inappropriate forms 

of content will not be allowed on the City’s social media sites 
and are subject to removal by the City;  

(ii) Comments unrelated to the original topic;  
(iii) Comments that are obscene, vulgar, or profane; 
(iv) Content that promotes, fosters or perpetuates discrimination of 

any protected class under local, state or federal law; 
(v) Defamatory or personal attacks; 
(vi) Threats to any person or organization;  
(vii) Comments in support of, or in opposition to, any political 

campaigns or ballot measures;  
(viii) Solicitation of commerce, including, but not limited to, 

advertising of any business or product for sale;  
(ix) Conduct in violation of any federal, state or local law;  
(x) Encouragement of illegal activity;  
(xi) Information that may tend to compromise the safety or security 

of the public or public systems; or 
(xii) Content that violates a legal ownership interest, such as a 

copyright.  
h. Remedies with respect to City owned sites: 

(i) Comments that are threatening in nature will be forwarded as 
appropriate to law enforcement. 

(ii) The City reserves the right to restrict or remove any content 
that is deemed in violation of City policy, including this policy, 
or applicable law.  Any content removed based on these 
guidelines must be retained by the City Administrator or his/her 
designee for a minimum of 90 days, including the time, date 
and identity of the poster when available. 

(iii) Comments posted by the public on the City’s social media site 
express the opinions of the commentators or posters.  Such 
comments do not necessarily reflect the opinions or policies of 
the City, and the publication of such comments does not imply 
endorsement or agreement by the City.  

(iv) The City is not responsible for and has no control over the 
accuracy, subject matter, content, information or graphics 
when viewing links attached to its social media sites.  The City 
also does not endorse any organizations sponsoring linked 
websites or the views or products they offer.  

(v) The City is not liable for the content of postings by individuals 
employed by the City, or third parties not affiliated with the City 
on any City social media sites. 

(vi) The City reserves the right to deny access to its social media 
site for any individual who violates the City’s policies or the law, 
at any time and without prior notice.  The City reserves the right 
to restrict or remove any content that is deemed in violation of 
this policy or any applicable local, state or federal law. 

50

Item 8.



 

 28 

(vii) The City’s websites at www.cityofoelwein.org; 
www.oelwein.lib.ia.us; and www.oelweinpolice.org will serve 
as the City’s predominant Internet presences. 

(viii) Employees representing the City via social media accounts 
must conduct themselves at all times as representatives of the 
City and must identify themselves as representatives of the 
City when doing so.  Employees who fail to identify themselves 
and/or conduct themselves in an appropriate manner 
(pursuant to this policy) shall be subject to disciplinary action, 
up to and including termination of employment. 

 
(2) Employees’ Personal Use of Social Media: 
 

a. Employees should limit their use of social media during working 
hours or on equipment provided by the City unless such use is 
work-related or authorized by a supervisor.  Employees shall not 
use City-provided e-mail addresses to register on social networks, 
blogs or other websites for personal use.  Employees should note 
that this provision is not meant to prohibit employees from engaging 
in concerted protected activity where prohibited by law. 

b. Employees may not, unless expressly authorized in writing by the 
City Administrator, make statements on behalf of the City on the 
employee’s social media accounts.  If an employee wishes to make 
a work-related statement on his/her social media, the employee 
should consider including a disclaimer indicating that the opinions 
are the employee’s personal opinions and not the opinion of the 
City. 

c. Employees shall not use City-provided e-mail accounts to sign up 
for or access social media unless expressly authorized to do so by 
the employee’s immediate supervisor.  

d. Employees shall have no expectation of privacy if they access their 
social media using City e-mail, City networks, City servers, City 
devices and/or any other City resources when accessing social 
media. 

e. Employees shall not post, transmit or otherwise disseminate any 
information to which they have access as a result of their 
employment with the City unless expressly authorized by their 
immediate supervisor or the City Administrator.  In addition, 
employees are expected to respect the privacy of their co-workers 
and citizens and must take steps to protect the privacy and 
confidentiality of others. 

f. Employees are not to use the City’s intellectual property, such as 
trademarks, logos, letterhead, etc., when posting on social media 
or in any other actions, unless expressly authorized in writing by the 
City Administrator.  This includes posting pictures of the employee 
or others wearing City uniforms or other apparel bearing the City’s 
name or logo.  

g. Employees are not allowed to use photographs or other depictions 
related to City business, including, as discussed in Paragraph 2.F. 
above, unless expressly authorized in writing by the City 
Administrator.  This includes, but is not limited to, posting, 

51

Item 8.

http://www.cityofoelwein.org/
http://www.oelwein.lib.ia.us/
http://www.oelweinpolice.org/


 

 29 

transmitting and/or disseminating any photographs or videos of City 
training, activities or work-related assignments.  

h. Employees shall not post material that is abusive, obscene, 
libelous, threatening, profane or otherwise inappropriate about the 
City, its employees or its citizens. 

i. Employees shall not post material that may be construed to be 
discriminatory, harassing or retaliatory under local, state or federal 
law about the City, its employees or its citizens. 

j. Nothing in this policy is intended to infringe upon any employee’s 
legitimate First Amendment rights and employees are free to 
express themselves as private citizens on social media sites.  The 
intent of this policy is to prevent employees from engaging in 
unlawful speech, improperly impairing the working relationships of 
the City, impeding the performance of City duties and/or negatively 
affecting the public perception of the City.  As public employees, 
employees are cautioned that speech made pursuant to an 
employee’s official duties is not protected speech under the First 
Amendment and may form the basis for disciplinary action, up to 
and including termination of employment.  

 
(C) Policy Violations 
 
Employees who violate the City’s social media policy are subject to disciplinary action, up 
to and including termination of employment and may be subject to civil liability and criminal 
prosecution. 

 
7.15 Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation  
 

(A) Purpose and Policy. 
 
The City is dedicated to equal employment and advancement opportunities.  It is the City’s 
policy to hire and promote qualified individuals on the basis of their qualifications, interest 
and aptitude, and without unlawful regard to race, religion, creed, color, sex, gender, gender 
identity, sexual orientation, pregnancy, age, national origin, disability, genetic information or 
any other characteristic protected by local, state or federal law.  This policy applies to all 
terms, conditions and privileges of employment, including, but not limited to, recruiting, hiring, 
training, transfers, promotions and benefits. 
 
It is the policy of the City to maintain a work environment free of unlawful discrimination 
and harassment based upon race, religion, creed, color, sex, gender, gender identity, 
sexual orientation, pregnancy, age, national origin, disability, genetic information or any 
other characteristic protected by law.  The City will not tolerate retaliation against any 
employee who, in good faith, reports discrimination or harassment, or who, in good faith, 
participates in an investigation regarding discrimination or harassment. 
 
To ensure this policy is strictly adhered to, City employees who believe they are subject 
to discrimination, harassment or retaliation should use the complaint procedure outlined 
below in 7.15(C). Furthermore, the City will take immediate disciplinary action up to and 
including termination of employment against any employee who engages in unlawful 
discrimination, harassment or retaliation.  In the event a non-employee subjects an 
employee to discrimination or harassment in the workplace, the City will take immediate 
steps to prevent further discrimination or harassment. 

52

Item 8.



 

 30 

 
(B) Definitions. 
 
Discrimination is defined as:  Unfair or unequal treatment of an individual or a group in the 
workplace based upon their race, religion, creed, color, sex, gender, gender identity, 
sexual orientation, pregnancy, age, national origin, disability, genetic information or any 
other characteristic protected by law.  
 
Harassment is defined as:  Intimidation, insult, or other hostile or offensive acts towards 
an individual or a group in the workplace by an employee or non-employee based upon 
their race, religion, creed, color, sex, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, 
pregnancy, age, national origin, disability, genetic information or any other characteristic 
protected by law. 
 
Sexual harassment is defined as: 
 

(1)  The threat or insinuation by one employee or group of employees, either 
explicitly or implicitly, that the refusal to submit to sexual advances will adversely 
affect employment, evaluation, wages, advancement, assigned duties, shifts or 
any other condition of employment or career development; and  

 
(2)  The subjecting of an employee, by any other person (employee or non-
employee), to unsolicited and unwelcome sexual overtures or conduct, either 
verbal or physical so as to create an intimidating, hostile or offensive working 
environment. 
 
(3)  Sexual harassment is a form of illegal discrimination on the basis of sex and 
can include a variety of behaviors such as, but not limited to, the following 
examples: 
 

(a)  Verbal conduct such as sexual innuendo, suggestive comments, jokes of 
a sexual nature, sexual propositions or threats; 
 
(b)  Nonverbal or visual materials such as derogatory posters, photography, 
graffiti, cartoons, drawings or gestures; 
 
(c)  Physical conduct such as unwelcome touching, hugging, kissing, coerced 
sexual contact or assault; and 
 
(d)  Threats or demands to submit to sexual requests in order to keep the 
employee’s job or receive some job-related benefit. 

 
Retaliation is defined as:  Punishing an employee by demoting the employee, terminating 
the employee or changing the employee’s work conditions in a material way because the 
employee made a good faith report of discrimination or harassment or because the 
employee participated, in good faith, in an investigation into discrimination or harassment. 

 
(C) Complaint Procedure for Claims of Discrimination, Harassment and Retaliation. 

 
Any employee who feels he/she is being subjected to unlawful discrimination, harassment 
and/or retaliation should immediately contact one of the persons listed below with whom 
the employee feels the most comfortable.  Complaints may be made orally or in writing to: 

53

Item 8.



 

 31 

 
(1)   Employee’s supervisor. 
  
(2)   City Administrator. 
 

The employee should be prepared to provide the following information: 
 
(1)   Employee’s name, department and position title. 
 
(2)   Name of the person or persons committing the unlawful conduct. 
 
(3)   Date(s) and approximate time(s) of the unlawful conduct. 
 
(4)   The specific nature of the unlawful conduct, how long it has gone on, and any 

employment action (demotion, failure to promote, dismissal, refusal to hire, 
transfer, etc.) taken against the employee as a result of the harassment, or 
any other threats made against him/her as a result of the harassment. 

 
(5)   Witnesses to the unlawful conduct, if any. 
 
(6)   Whether the employee has previously reported such unlawful conduct and, if 

so, when and to whom. 
 

After receiving a complaint about unlawful discrimination, harassment and/or retaliation, 
the person receiving the complaint shall document the complaint in writing.  The employee 
shall sign the written complaint, attesting to the accuracy and truthfulness of the incident.  
All information disclosed in the complaint procedure will be disclosed only on a need-to-
know basis in order to investigate and resolve the matter. 

 
(D) Investigation of Discrimination, Harassment and Retaliation Complaints. 

 
It is the City Administrator’s responsibility to coordinate the investigation of unlawful 
discrimination, harassment and/or retaliation complaints.  If the City Administrator is the 
subject of the complaint, the Mayor shall coordinate the investigation.  The following 
procedures shall apply to the investigation of such complaints: 
 

(1)  The person to whom the complaint is made shall immediately present it in 
writing to the City Administrator. 
 
(2)  The City Administrator shall name an impartial investigator, who shall promptly 
begin the investigation. 
  
(3)  The investigator shall meet with the complainant and the respondent, as well 
as any witnesses who may assist in the investigation. 
 
(4)  The investigator shall notify the respondent of the allegations against him/her 
unless immediate notification would jeopardize the investigation or result in a 
safety concern. 
 
(5)  The respondent shall be given appropriate opportunity to refute the allegation 
and present information and/or witnesses on his/her behalf. 
 

54

Item 8.



 

 32 

(6)  The investigator shall make and keep a written record of the investigation, 
including notes of verbal responses made to the investigator by all persons 
interviewed about the unlawful conduct. 
 
(7)  Based upon the investigative report, the City Administrator shall determine 
whether the respondent’s conduct constituted unlawful discrimination, harassment 
and/or retaliation.  In making that determination, the City Administrator shall look 
at the record as a whole and the totality of circumstances, including the nature of 
the conduct in question and the context in which the conduct, if any, occurred.  The 
City Administrator shall use the preponderance of the evidence standard in 
determining whether the complaint about the unlawful conduct is substantiated or 
not substantiated. 
 
(8)  If the City Administrator determines the complaint is substantiated, he/she shall 
determine the appropriate disciplinary measures depending upon the nature and 
severity of the behavior, up to and including termination of employment.  The City 
Administrator shall take appropriate measures intended to not only discipline the 
offender, but which are reasonably calculated to prevent further discrimination, 
harassment or retaliation in the future. 
 
(9)  This determination shall include whether a supervisory relationship exists, and 
any other factors the City Administrator believes relate to fair and efficient 
administration of the City, including the effect of the offense on employee morale, 
public perception of the offense and the light in which it casts the City.  Upon the 
conclusion of the investigation, the City Administrator shall notify the complainant 
and respondent of the determination (substantiated or not substantiated).  If any 
disciplinary measures are implemented, they are confidential personnel matters 
which shall not be disclosed to any employees.  The City Administrator shall notify 
the complainant and respondent that retaliation will not be tolerated and that if the 
complainant experiences retaliatory conduct, he/she should report it to the City 
Administrator or his/her supervisor. 
 
(10)  Upon the conclusion of the investigation, the City Administrator shall notify 
the witnesses the matter has concluded, and that if they experience retaliatory 
conduct to promptly report it to the City Administrator or their supervisor. 
 
(11)  If the City Administrator determines after reviewing the investigation report 
that the complainant did not make the complaint in good faith or otherwise falsified 
the complaint, the City Administrator shall determine the appropriate disciplinary 
measures depending upon the nature and severity of the behavior up to and 
including termination of employment.  If the investigation is related to the City 
Administrator, upon conclusion of the investigation, the Mayor or his/her designee 
shall receive the investigation report. 
 
(12)  The Mayor or his/her designee shall notify the complainant and respondent 
of the determination (substantiated or not substantiated).  If any disciplinary 
measures are implemented, they are confidential personnel matters which shall 
not be disclosed to any employees.  The Mayor or his/her designee shall notify the 
complainant and respondent that retaliation will not be tolerated and that if the 
complainant experiences retaliatory conduct, he/she should report it to the Mayor 
or his/her supervisor. 
 

55

Item 8.



 

 33 

(13)  Upon the conclusion of the investigation, the Mayor or his/her designee shall 
notify the witnesses that the matter has concluded and that if they experience 
retaliatory conduct to promptly report it to the City Administrator or their supervisor. 

 
(E) Records of a Discrimination, Harassment or Retaliation Complaint. 

 
All records concerning a discrimination, harassment or retaliation complaint shall be 
confidential and kept in a separate locked file, except those which may be affected by the 
Iowa Open Records Act.  Access to these records shall be given only with the City 
Administrator’s approval to parties who have a direct and relevant need to know. 

 
POLICY 8 -- EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATIONS, AFFILIATIONS, AND UNIONS 

 
8.1 Informal Settlements 
 
 The informal discussion of problems and concerns between employees and the City's 

administration frequently results in a most equitable settlement. It is hoped that this 
atmosphere of employee-management relations will always exist. 

 
8.2 Employees Organizational Rights 
 
 The City recognizes the right of employees to join a union or employee association. 
 
8.3 Management Excluded From Employee Organizations 
 
 Municipal officials, Department Heads and professional personnel are excluded from 

representation by employee organizations and may not be a member of an employee 
negotiating or grievance committee.  This exclusion does not deny personnel from 
maintaining membership in employee organizations. 

 
8.4 City's Negotiating Agent  
 
 The City Administrator or other designated representative of the City Council shall be the 

sole negotiating agent(s) for the City. 
 
8.5 City Council Approval 
 
 Any changes in the salary plan, fringe benefits and personnel policies and regulations are 

dependent upon the approval of the City Council. 
 
8.6 Negotiation Steps 
 
 The negotiating agent for the City will meet with the various designated representatives of 

the bargaining unit to discuss items included within the public bargaining law as set forth in 
Chapter 20 of the Iowa Code. 

 
8.7 Employee's Right To Work 
 
 Both management and employee organizations are prohibited from restraining or coercing 

employees in the exercise of their rights to join or not join and to maintain or terminate 
membership in any employee organization. 

 

56

Item 8.



 

 34 

POLICY 9 -- PROMOTIONS, TRANSFERS, AND DEMOTIONS 
 
9.1 Promotions 
 
 (A) Positions in the classified service shall be filled by promotion whenever practicable and 

in the best interest of the City.  Promotions shall be made on the basis of merit and without 
regard to favoritism.  They shall be made in accordance with these policies, Iowa Code 
Chapter 400, and/or the Rules and Regulations of the Civil Service Commission. 

 
 (B) Promotions may be made on either a competitive or non-competitive basis at the 

discretion of the City Administrator.  All promotions requiring examinations shall be 
competitive among such members of the next lower rank as desire to submit themselves to 
such examination. 

 
 (C) Promotions, transfers and demotions, if pursuant to a Collective Bargaining Agreement 

(“CBA”), shall be posted and administered pursuant to the terms of the CBA. An employee 
who is promoted shall be required to serve a probationary period as provided in Policy 6.   

 
 (D) Promotions, transfers and demotions with the Fire and Police Departments shall be as 

stated in Section  21. 
 
 (E) Selection of employees for promotion shall be made by the City Administrator after 

consultation with the Department Head involved. 
 
 (F) Selection of Department Heads shall be made by the City Administrator. 
 
9.2 Transfers 
 
 (A) A Department Head may transfer an employee from one position to another position of 

the same class within his/her department.  The City Administrator may transfer any employee 
from a position in one department to another position of the same class in another 
department. 

 
 (B) An employee may permanently transfer from one position to another position of the same 

class within the employee’s department or to another department provided a vacancy exists, 
the employee is qualified and can perform the essential job functions with or without 
reasonable accommodation, the Department Head approves, and the City Administrator 
approves.  

 
 (C) A transfer shall have no effect on employment seniority with the City.  Departmental 

seniority shall be determined by the date on which the employee is transferred. 
 
 (D) Transferred employees will retain all accrued vacation, sick leave, and longevity pay 

benefits earned in their former position. 
 
9.3 Demotions 
 
 (A) An employee may be demoted to a position having less pay because of a lack of work in 

the employee’s current position. 
 
 (B) An employee may be demoted to a position having less pay because of performance 

deficiencies and/or as a form of discipline.   

57

Item 8.



 

 35 

 
 (C) An employee may choose to demote himself/herself by seeking a transfer.  Any 

employee may request in writing that for personal reasons he/she be transferred to a position 
in a lower class.  This request shall be deemed to have been made voluntarily and shall not 
be held against the employee.  There shall be no appeal from a voluntary demotion.  A 
voluntary demotion shall not jeopardize an employee’s accrued leave or other benefits. 

 
 
(D) An employee demoted by a Department Head must receive the written reasons for such 
demotion.  A minimum of fourteen (14) calendar days must have elapsed between the date 
of the notification and the date of the demotion in order for that employee to prepare a reply 
or appeal.  See Section 12. 
 
(E) A copy of the demotion notice and any appeal information will be made a part of the 
employee's personnel file. 

 
POLICY 10 -- SEPARATION 

 
10.1 Termination During Probationary Period 
 
 An employee may be terminated at any time during the employee’s probationary period for 

any reason without the right to appeal. 
 
10.2 Resignations  
 
 (A) An employee who wishes to voluntarily terminate his/her service with the City shall submit 

a written resignation at least two weeks prior to the intended date of departure.  If an 
employee fails to give at least two weeks’ notice prior to his/her resignation, the employee 
will be ineligible to receive payment for any accrued but unused vacation pay upon 
separation.2  Furthermore, the City shall consider such failure to provide notice prior to 
resignation in the event the employee seeks reemployment.  If the City, in its discretion 
decides that an employee who voluntarily resigns should not remain employed, the City may 
immediately escort the employee off City property and their employment shall end effective 
immediately, but the City shall pay for the two-week notice period and the accrued but unused 
vacation pay. However, an employee who resigns in lieu of termination shall not receive two 
weeks’ notice pay and shall not receive accrued but unused vacation pay.  

 
 (B) Department Heads, with the City Administrator's approval, may authorize the employee 

to use their banked vacation leave prior to the expiration of the two-week notice period. 
 
 (C) An employee who voluntarily resigns forfeits all future rights to benefits based upon years 

of past service if he/she is subsequently rehired.  Any deviation from this requirement shall 
require formal and specific approval of the City Administrator  

 
 (D) Should an employee provide six (6) months’ notice of separation (not including paid time 

off), the city shall provide $1,000 upon the date of leaving. This program allows employees 
to train new employees as part of employee succession. 

 
10.3 Lay Offs 

 
2 That is, banked vacation available for use at the time the employee resigns, rather than leave that would 
accrue at the next anniversary date. 

58

Item 8.



 

 36 

 
 (A) An employee in the classified service may be laid off whenever it is deemed necessary 

by reason of a shortage of funds or work, abolishment of a position, or other material change 
in duties or organizations.  The employee shall be given written notice of the lay-off at least 
two (2) weeks in advance. 

 
 (B) Performance evaluations, conduct, past behavior, qualifications, seniority, and type of 

appointment or employment shall all be considered in determining the order of layoffs within 
a given class.  No regular employee will be terminated while there are temporary or 
Probationary employees serving in the same class of positions. 

 
 (C) Any employee laid off will be required to apply for any city positions and go through the 

normal hiring process.   
 
 (D) Reinstatement shall be made subject to the approval of the Department Head and the 

City Administrator, and subject to the employee being qualified and able to perform the 
essential functions of the job with or without reasonable accommodation. 

 
 (E) A lay off of more than one year shall constitute a break in service with the City. 
 
 (F) No previous credit of any kind shall be retained by a former employee who is rehired 

following a break in service with the City. 
 
 (G) Upon separation, laid off employees shall be entitled to receive all accrued vacation 

benefits. 
 
10.4 Retirement/Benefits 
 
 (A) Police and Fire Department personnel shall be covered by their pension plan and shall 

be governed by its Rules and Regulations. 
 

(B) IPERS personnel shall be covered by their pension plan and shall be governed by its 
Rules and Regulations 

  
 (C) Retired pension covered employees may be rehired to work for the City provided they 

follow their respective pension plan requirements and contingent upon the employee's ability 
to perform the essential functions of the job with or without reasonable accommodation and 
based upon the needs of the City. 

 
 (D) If an employee retires from service with the City prior to age sixty-five (65), the City shall 

permit the employee to continue participation in any group plan or group contract for accident, 
health, or hospitalization insurance or under a medical service plan or health maintenance 
contract at the employee’s own expense until the employee attains sixty-five years of age 
(65).  See Iowa Code Chapter 509A.  An employee will be deemed retired for purposes of 
this continuation of coverage if they qualify as a retiree as defined in Policy 2 of this Manual 
and is 55 years of age or older with at least ten (10) years of consecutive service with the 
City at the time of retirement.  Said coverage shall be pursuant to the terms of the plan or 
contract.   

 
10.5 Death of an Employee 
 
 (A) Upon the death of an employee, the City will pay to the employee's legal heirs 

59

Item 8.



 

 37 

compensation for unused vacation leave and any other pay due at the time of death. 
 
 (B) The above shall be paid in addition to any pension or retirement benefits or insurance 

benefits. 
 
10.6 Disability 
 
 The City may terminate an employee’s employment when he/she cannot perform the 

essential functions of his/her position and cannot be reasonably accommodated following an 
interactive process.  The employee may be required to submit to an examination by a City-
designated health care provider under this Section.  See Section 7.12 for further information. 

 
10.7 Return of City Property 
 
 (A) Any employee leaving the City, whether through resignation, retirement, lay off, 

dismissal, death, disability, or whatever form of separation, shall be liable for returning the 
City property in his/her possession.  If the employee fails to return said City property, or 
returns the property in disrepair, the City may withhold funds to reimburse the City from the 
employee’s final paycheck pursuant to the authorization in the employee acknowledgment 
form at the end of this manual (and pursuant to state and federal wage and garnishment 
laws) or the City may elect to withhold payment of any banked but unused vacation leave 
normally due and owing the employee.  See also Section 18.2. 

 
 (B) In cases where an employee fails to return City property following the employee’s 

separation, the City shall consider such failure in the event the employee seeks 
reemployment. 

 
10.8 Exit Interview 
 
 The City Administrator may schedule an exit interview for the employee prior to the last day 

of employment.  Temporary employees do not participate in the Exit Interview process unless 
information can be gained which will improve or enhance present employment conditions. 

 
10.9 Refund Retirement Benefits 
 
 For those employees who are not retiring, monies accumulated in the employee's retirement 

account may be refundable.  Employees must contact their respective pension plans for 
questions regarding a refund.  

 
10.10 Unemployment Compensation 
 
 All claims for unemployment compensation as filed by a terminating employee shall be 

processed by the Clerk's office. Requests for information about unemployment 
compensation should be forwarded to the Clerk's office immediately to avoid unauthorized 
charges against the City's account. 

 
POLICY 11 -- DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS 

 
11.1 Working Relationships 
 
 (A) All employees must maintain high standards of cooperation, efficiency, and economy in 

their work for the City.  Department Heads shall organize and direct towards these objectives. 

60

Item 8.



 

 38 

 
 (B) Whenever work habits, attitude, productivity, or personal conduct fall below a desirable 

level, the employee’s Department Head and/or the City Administrator shall take action to 
correct the issue.  If the issue is conduct related, the City will follow the City’s progressive 
discipline policy.  If the issue is related to the employee’s performance, the City may follow 
the City’s progressive discipline policy and/or take other action including a performance 
improvement plan, a last chance agreement, or other measures. 

 
11.2 Progressive Discipline 
 

It is the City’s policy to follow a system of progressive disciplinary action as outlined below.  
However, a violation of a serious nature may be cause for stronger disciplinary action or 
immediate termination at the City’s discretion.  Situations that the City believes will respond 
to corrective discipline will normally be handled as follows: 

 
(A) Counseling:  The employee’s supervisor will issue the employee a verbal warning, but 
will document said warning in the employee’s personnel file. 
(B) Written warning:  If the unsatisfactory conduct continues or if the conduct warrants it, 
the employee’s Department Head will issue the employee a written warning and document 
said warning in the employee’s personnel file. 
(C) Suspension:  If sufficient improvement has not been made or if the conduct warrants 
it, the employee may be suspended without pay.  The suspension shall be documented in 
the employee’s personnel file. 
(D) Termination:  If the conduct continues or if the misconduct warrants it, the City may 
terminate the employment of the employee.   

 
The City reserves the right to use whatever discipline it decides is appropriate in any 
situation, up to and including termination, without regard to the progressive guidelines 
explained above. 
 
Note:  Pursuant to Iowa Code §§ 22.7(11) and 22.15, the following disciplinary action 
information contained in personnel records relating to documented disciplinary 
action is considered a public record: 

 
The fact that an individual resigned in lieu of termination, was discharged or was demoted 
as the result of a disciplinary action, and the documented reasons and rationale for the 
resignation in lieu of termination, the discharge or the demotion.  Employees shall be 
notified in writing that a disciplinary action was taken against them, the written notification 
shall be placed in their personnel file, and may become a public record. 
 
Pursuant to Iowa Code §  22.15, a government body that takes disciplinary action against 
an employee that may result in documented reasons to support a demotion, discharge or 
resignation in lieu of discharge being placed in the employee’s personnel record, prior to 
taking such disciplinary action, shall notify the employee in writing that the information 
placed in the employee’s personnel file as a result of the disciplinary action may become 
a public record. 
 
At-will employees are not subject to the “just cause standard” for termination.  Rather, 
at-will employees may be terminated at any time for any reason, other than an illegal 
reason.  This manual does not establish a contractual right to employment or conditions 
for employment between the City and employees.   

 

61

Item 8.



 

 39 

11.3 Misconduct Warranting Disciplinary Action 
 

In order to maintain safe, efficient and harmonious operations, and to continue to provide 
the highest standard of public service, the City has adopted the following policies.  Each 
policy reflects a common understanding of what behavior is acceptable in the workplace. 
 
These policies can be modified by the City as changing conditions warrant.  The City may 
take whatever disciplinary action it deems appropriate in response to an offense, even if it is 
not included in the following list.  Employees must understand that any offense, whether or 
not it is included in this list, may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of 
employment without prior warning.  Each case shall be considered on its own merits with due 
consideration to the nature of the offense, the cause, the background, likelihood of repetition, 
and the attitude of the offender.  This list is not exhaustive, and discipline may be taken in 
other instances of misconduct.   

 
The City expects the employees’ complete cooperation in observing these policies which 
have been designed for our common protection and benefit. 

 
(A) Consuming, having unauthorized possession of, being under the influence of, or 
reporting to work intoxicated or under the influence of non-prescribed drugs, alcohol, or 
other substances. 
 
(B) Illegally manufacturing, possessing, using, selling, distributing, or transporting drugs. 
 
(C) Bringing or using alcoholic beverages on City property or using alcoholic beverages 
while engaged in City business off of City premises. 
 
(D) Failing to follow City job instructions or to perform work requested by a supervisor or 
Department Head. 
 
(E) Accepting bribes, gifts, or favors for personal use in the course of work or in connection 
with it. 
 
(F) Absenting oneself from work without permission or failure to report to the Department 
Heads when one is absent. 
 
(G) Being habitually absent or tardy. 
 
(H) Unauthorized failure to return from a leave of absence. 
 
(I) Failure to perform assigned work in an efficient manner. 
 
(J) Being wasteful of material, property, or working time. 
 
(K) Stealing; willfully, recklessly or negligently destroying; or unauthorized use or 
alteration of property of coworkers, customers, clients, or the City. 
 
(L) Being involved in the misappropriation, destruction, theft or conversion of City property. 
 
(M) Being unable to get along with fellow employees so that work is hindered or not up to 
standards. 
 

62

Item 8.



 

 40 

(N) Conviction of a felony or a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude while on or off duty. 
 
(O) Unsafe conduct or action thereby jeopardizing the safety of oneself or others. 
 
(P) Divulging or misusing confidential information, including removal from City premises 
without proper authorization, any employee lists, records, designs, drawings, customer 
information, or confidential information of any kind. 
 
(Q) Abuse of sick leave privileges by reporting sick when not sick or obtaining sick leave pay 
falsely or under false pretenses. 
 
(R) Driving a City vehicle while under the influence of any drug, intoxicants, or while license 
is suspended or revoked. 
 
(S) Attempting, threatening, or using personal or political influence in securing promotion, 
leave, transfer, change in pay or character of work. 
 
(T) Engaging in outside business activities on City time or using City property or office for 
personal gain. 
 
(U) Discourteous treatment of any kind to the public, City officials, or employees including 
abusive or offensive in conduct or language. 
 
(V) Fighting or physically assaulting an individual or using obscene, abusive, or 
threatening language. 
 
(W) Violating the City’s policy against workplace harassment, discrimination, or retaliation 
of any kind. 
 
(X) Dishonesty or lying, including falsifying employment or other job-related records. 
 
(Y) Possessing unauthorized firearms, knives, explosives, or other weapons on City 
property or while on City business. 
 
(Z) Disregarding smoking, safety, or security regulations. 
 
(AA) Engaging in insubordination, or failing to cooperate with assigned employees, co-
workers, or supervisors. 
 
(BB) Failing to follow City job instructions or to perform work requested by a supervisor or 
Department Head. 
 
(CC) Violating a City safety policy or practice or creating or contributing to unsafe, 
unhealthy, or unsanitary conditions. 
 
(DD) Failing to maintain necessary licenses and/or certifications as required by the City. 
 
(EE) Refusal to work without good reason when called in for emergency situations. 
 
(FF) Sleeping, or giving the impression of sleeping, during work hours. 
 
(GG) Making untruthful or malicious statements about fellow employees. 

63

Item 8.



 

 41 

 
(HH) Threatening, coercing, or intimidating fellow employees or others. 
 
(II) Modifying another employee’s timecard without authorization from the appropriate 
supervisor or asking another employee to modify your timecard. 
 
(JJ) Failure to report an occupational injury. 
 
(KK) Gambling on City property or on working time. 
 
(LL) Violation of any employee requirements in this manual. 
 

POLICY 12 -- EMPLOYEE COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 
 
12.1 Complaint Defined 
 
 A complaint exists when an employee has expressed a difference of opinion, dispute or 

controversy with the City or his or her coworkers relative to the circumstances and conditions 
which concern their work environment or working relationships. 

 
12.2 Complaint Procedure 
 
 Employees are encouraged to raise any complaints they may have informally by talking with 

the person at issue in their complaint.  If an employee does not feel they are able to raise the 
complaint with the person at issue in their complaint or if doing so does not accomplish a 
meaningful resolution, the employee should take the following steps: 

 
 (A) The employee must contact his/her Department Head or Supervisor and submit a 

written complaint within five (5) business days after the occurrence of the action underlying 
the complaint. 

 
(B) The Department Head or Supervisor will promptly analyze the situation and then 
submit a written response to the employee within five (5) business days of receiving the 
complaint.  The Department Head will attach the original complaint form with his/her 
written response.   

 
(C) If the employee fails to receive what the employee perceives to be a fair or adequate 
response/solution from his/her Department Head/Supervisor, the employee may appeal 
the response to the City Administrator.  The City Administrator will meet with the parties 
within ten (10) business days of receiving the appeal.  The City Administrator shall make 
factual findings and issue a decision within five (5) business days after meeting with the 
parties.  The City Administrator’s decision shall be final.  If the employee’s Department 
Head/Supervisor is the City Administrator, the employee shall appeal to the City Attorney 
instead of the City Administrator. 
 
(D) Any step of the procedure may be the last.  A complaint shall be considered settled unless 
it is appealed. 
 
The City shall not tolerate any retaliation against an employee who makes a complaint.  If 

the employee believes he or she is being penalized for filing a complaint, they should report 

their retaliation complaint to his/her Department Head or the City Administrator using the 

complaint form.  

64

Item 8.



 

 42 

POLICY 13 – HOLIDAYS 

 
13.1 All full-time regular employees, with the exception of Police Department employees, shall 

receive the following ten (10) holidays off with pay.  Seasonal or temporary part-time 
employees receive no paid holidays.  Holidays observed are: 

 
  New Year’s Day   -- January 1 
  Memorial Day    -- Last Monday in May 
  Juneteenth    -- June 19 
  Independence Day   -- July 4 
  Labor Day    -- First Monday in September 
  Veterans Day    -- November 11 
  Thanksgiving Day   -- Last Thursday in November 
  Day following Thanksgiving  -- Last Friday in November 
  Day before Christmas   -- December 24 
  Christmas Day    -- December 25 
   
13.2 The following ten (10) days are designated holidays for Police Department full-time 

employees: 
 
  New Year’s Day   -- January 1 
  Washington's Birthday   -- February 22 
  Easter     -- As observed 
  Memorial Day    -- Fourth Monday in May 
  Independence Day   -- July 4 
  Labor Day    -- First Monday in September 
  Columbus Day    -- October 12 
  Veterans Day    -- November 11 
  Thanksgiving    -- Fourth Thursday in November 
  Christmas    -- December 25 
 
 CBA’s supersede the above if in conflict. 
 
13.3 Holiday Pay Administration 
 
 (A) New full-time employees qualify for holiday pay on the 31st calendar day of employment. 
 
 (A) Full-time employees not working on a holiday shall be paid the straight time rate of 

compensation based upon eight (8) hours of work.  The Police Department personnel shall 
receive compensation according to their CBA’s. Part-time park and cemetery employees 
shall receive eight (8) hours of holiday pay for Memorial Day, Fourth of July, and Labor Day  
if they work in the month of each holiday (May, July, or September).  This does not apply to 
library, aquatic, and recreation employees.     

 
 (B) When an employee is scheduled to work on a holiday, he/she shall be paid double time 

based upon hours of work. 
 
 (C) When an employee is called out on a holiday for work not normally scheduled, he/she 

shall be paid time and one-half for all hours worked with a guaranteed minimum of two (2) 
hours paid in addition to their holiday pay.  

 

65

Item 8.



 

 43 

 (D) No payment shall be made for a holiday call-out not authorized by the City Administrator 
or the Department Head involved. 

 
 (E) When an employee reports in sick on the day before or the day after a holiday, they must 

submit a signed and dated written certification from their health care provider before payment 
for the holiday is made.  If the employee fails to produce the health care provider’s statement, 
the employee shall not receive payment for the holiday. 

 
 (F) Holidays falling on a Saturday will be observed on the preceding Friday.  Holidays falling 

on a Sunday will be observed on the following Monday, unless agreed upon by the City 
Administrator. 

 
POLICY 14 -- VACATIONS 

 
14.1 General Provisions 
 

(A) All full-time employees of the City who have occupied their position in a period of twelve 
(12) consecutive months shall be allowed vacation leave with pay based on their anniversary 
date. 

 
(B) Vacation credit for all full-time employees shall accrue normally as follows: 

 
Working Days  Hours 

 
i. Service over one (1) year    5     40 
ii. Service over two (2) years   10     80 
iii. Service over five (5) years   15    120 
iv. Service over ten (10) years   20    160  
v. Service over fifteen (15) years   25    200 

 
Full-time personnel hired prior to January 1, 1990, who have been employed with the City 
continuously, shall receive one additional vacation day per year for each year worked over 
21 years. CBA’s supersede the above if in conflict 

 
(C) Temporary, seasonal and part-time employees are not entitled to any vacation benefits 
except as allowed specifically by the City Administrator and/or Council. 

 
(D) New employees will accrue benefits for later use pending the successful completion of 
their probationary period.  

 
(E) There will be no accumulation of vacation during leave of absence without pay. 

 
(F) Vacation time off will be paid at the employee’s base pay rate at the time the vacation is 
taken.  Overtime or other special forms of compensation will not be calculated in the 
employee’s vacation pay. 

 
(G) Employees may request, by April 1 of a calendar year, when 5 or more consecutive 
vacation days of the employee’s vacation will be taken.  These requests shall be based on 
an employee’s departmental seniority.  Vacation dates may be changed after April 1st, but 
only if the new date does not conflict with another employee’s selected vacation dates. 

 

66

Item 8.



 

 44 

(H) To ensure that the city can attract and retain top talent, the City Administrator shall have 
the authority to provide vacation on a negotiated basis for department heads and salaried 
exempt employees that do not qualify for overtime.  

 
14.2 Authorization 
 
 (A) Normally, employees should provide a minimum of twenty-four (24) hours’ notice to their 

Department Head of their request to take vacation leave. Approval is conditional, subject to 
the needs and requirements of the City’s operations.  

 
 (B) All requests for the setting up of vacation time shall be subject to the final approval of the 

Department Head. Where a conflict exists between employee requests, seniority shall apply. 
  
 (C) Employees shall receive a balance of their leave on their pay stubs.  
 
14.3 Utilization 
 
 (A) Vacation leave shall be taken following its accumulation. Under no circumstances shall 

employees be permitted to take vacation before it has accrued. 
 
 (B) Vacation should be taken within one year of its accrual.  In circumstances where a work 

schedule denies an employee a reasonable opportunity to take vacation, payment for 
vacation not used or additional vacation in the following year shall be authorized upon a 
formal request from the employee. This must be approved by the Department 
Head/Supervisor and the City Administrator.  

 
 (C) Vacation leave shall not normally accumulate beyond one year; however, the City 

Administrator may approve additional accumulations under special circumstances.  Such 
exceptions shall only be made when in the best interests of the City. 

 
 (D) Absence due to sickness, injury, or disability in excess of that authorized in Section 15 

will be chargeable against an employee's vacation allowance after exhaustion of employee’s 
sick leave allowance. 

 
 (E) Vacation must be taken in a minimum of one-quarter hour increments.   
 

POLICY 15 -- SICK LEAVE 
 
15.1 General Provisions 
 

The City provides sick leave as a form of insurance for its employees who are unable to 
perform their essential job functions due to physical or mental injury or illness.  In addition to 
utilizing sick leave in the event of employee’s own illness, injury, temporary disability, 
maternity, sick leave may also be used for the purpose of visiting doctors, dentists or other 
health care providers.  Also, sick leave (limited to 40 hours per fiscal year) may be used 
to care for a member of the employee’s immediate family.  

 
The amount of sick leave provided to employees is based upon length of service and is 
subject to the following provisions: 

 
(A) Unless otherwise provided for by a CBA, all regular employees shall earn sick leave credit 
at a rate of eighteen (18) days per year. 

67

Item 8.



 

 45 

 
(B) Newly hired probationary employees will accrue sick leave the same as regular 
employees, but sick leave pay shall not be authorized for the first 120 days of employment, 
as stated above in Section 6.3(B).  

 
(C) Unused sick leave may be accumulated up to a maximum of 1008 hours for full-time 
employees unless otherwise stated in a union contract.  

 
(D) An employee may use up to forty (40) hours of sick leave in one fiscal year to arrange for 
the needs of a member of his or her immediate family. Family sick leave will count toward 
their accrued sick leave.  

 
(E) Any full-time employee who does not use sick leave during the six-month period of 
January to June and July to December will be entitled to one sick bonus day in the following 
six months.  

 
(F) Temporary, part-time and seasonal employees are not eligible for sick leave pay. 

 
(G) Each month employees shall continue to accumulate sick leave during: legal holidays, 
sick leave absences of less than one hundred sixty (160) hours, vacations, leave due to on-
the-job related injuries; jury duty; bereavement absence; and military leave. 

 
(H) Sick leave shall not continue to accumulate during leaves of absence without pay. 

 
(I) Absence due to sickness, injury, or disability in excess of that authorized in this Section 
may, upon employee's request, be chargeable against an employee's vacation allowance 
after exhaustion of employee’s sick leave allowance. 

 
(J) Sick leave shall not be granted beyond accrued benefits. 

 
(K) An employee who is going to be absent should notify his/her Department Head as soon 
as practicable, but in any event, prior to the start of shift. Failure to do so will constitute an 
absence without pay unless circumstances beyond the employee’s control make it 
impossible to call in prior to the start of shift.   

 
(L) An employee who is absent for three (3) consecutive days shall provide to the City Clerk 
a health care provider’s signed and dated written certification verifying the necessity for the 
absence on the fourth day identifying the diagnosis/illness or injury to which the absence is 
attributed.  
 
(M) An employee who is absent due to their own illness or injury may be required, under 
certain circumstances, to provide a health care provider’s signed and dated written 
certification stating they are able to return to work with or without reasonable 
accommodations related to their essential job functions. 

 
(N) An employee receiving sick leave pay, who simultaneously receives compensation under 
workers’ compensation insurance, a retirement fund or a pension fund shall receive only the 
difference between the regular salary and these payments. 

 
(O) Any employee who is laid off or granted leave of absence without pay and is later 
reinstated within one year shall have available upon his/her return such unused sick leave 
allowance as he/she may have earned prior to the time of his/her absence. 

68

Item 8.



 

 46 

 
(P) Illness or injury occurring while an employee is on vacation cannot be charged to sick 
leave during the duration of the vacation period unless notification of the matter is received 
by the immediate Department Head as soon as possible and said sickness is a serious health 
condition which requires medical treatment and is substantiated by an approved health care 
provider’s signed and dated certification.  

 
(Q) An employee terminating City employment shall be allowed sick leave pay during the last 
two (2) weeks of employment only upon presentation of a health care provider’s signed and 
dated written certification. 

 
(R) Sick leave must be taken in a minimum of one-quarter hour increments. 

 
(S) Abuse of sick leave will constitute grounds for disciplinary action up to and including 
termination of employment. 

 
15.2 On-the-Job Injury 
 
 See Section 17.1 
 
15.3  Family Medical Leave Act 
 

It is the City’s policy to provide unpaid leave to eligible employees in accordance with the 
requirements of the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA).  A general overview of 
FMLA leave is included below.  Whether a particular situation is covered by the FMLA 
depends on whether the law’s requirements have been met, not on whether an employee 
actually requests FMLA leave.  The City Clerk, as the FMLA Coordinator, will designate 
leave as FMLA leave if the employee is eligible for FMLA leave and if the legal 
requirements are satisfied, even if the employee has not requested FMLA leave. If it is 
found that any provision of this policy conflicts with state or federal law, including federal 
FMLA law, the law shall supersede this policy.  In all respects, leave of absence under this 
policy shall be administered and provided for in a manner consistent with the Family and 
Medical Leave Act of 1993 and its published regulations.   

 
Definitions 
 
“Child” means a son or daughter under 18 years of age or a child 18 years of age or older 
who is incapable of self-care because of a mental or physical disability.  An employee’s 
child is one for whom the employee has actual daily responsibility for care and includes a 
biological, adopted, foster or stepchild.   
 
“Parent” does not include parents-in-law.   
 
“Serious health condition” means an illness, injury, impairment or physical or mental 
condition that involves:  
 

• an overnight stay in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical care facility;  

• a period of incapacity that requires absence from work for more than three 
consecutive calendar days AND involves either two or more treatments by a 
healthcare provider, or at least one treatment by a healthcare provider plus a 
regimen of continuing treatment;  

• any period of incapacity due to pregnancy or for prenatal care; 

69

Item 8.



 

 47 

• a chronic serious health condition that results in periods of incapacity and 
sometimes requires treatment; 

• permanent or long-term conditions which require medical supervision; or 

• multiple treatments and recovery therefrom. 
 
“Spouse” means a husband or wife in a marriage or in a common-law marriage.  Spouse 
does not include an unmarried domestic partner.   
 
The “12-month period” during which the leave entitlement occurs is designated as the 
calendar year January 1 through December 31. 
 
Married employees:  If an employee and his/her spouse are both employed by the City 
and are both eligible for family and medical leave, the employee and his/her spouse will 
be limited to a combined total of twelve weeks of family and medical leave a year taken 
for any one or all of the following reasons:  birth of a child or to care for the child after birth; 
placement of a child with the employee for adoption or foster care or to care for the child 
after placement; or to care for the employee’s parent with a serious health condition.  This 
limitation does not apply in cases of leave to care for the serious health condition of an 
employee’s spouse or child, or because of an employee’s own serious health condition.  
 
Circumstances that Qualify 
 
The Family and Medical Leave Act provides that eligible employees may take up to 12 
weeks of unpaid leave during a 12-month period for any of the following reasons: 
 

• The birth of a child and to care for a newborn child within one year of birth. 

• The placement with the employee of a child for adoption or foster care and to 
bond with the newly placed child within one year of placement. 

• A serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the 
functions of his/her job. 

• To care for an immediate family member (spouse, child, or parent) with a 
serious health condition. 

• Qualifying Exigency Leave: Eligible employees may take up to 12 weeks of 
FMLA leave to handle exigencies related to a family member's active duty 
military service or call to active duty, which means leave to deal with child care, 
financial or legal arrangements due to deployment, leave to address issues 
arising from the death of his/her covered service member, or leave to spend 
time with a covered service member who is on short-term temporary rest and 
recuperation leave during deployment, among other things. 

• Covered Service Member Family Leave: Eligible employees may take up to 26 
weeks of FMLA leave to care for a spouse, son, daughter, parent or next of kin 
who has a serious injury or illness incurred in the line of active duty in the United 
States Armed Forces. 

 
Employee Eligibility 
 
Only eligible employees are entitled to take FMLA leave.  In order to be eligible to take 
family medical leave, an employee must meet all of these criteria: 
 

70

Item 8.



 

 48 

• Have worked for the City for 12 months or more within the last seven years 
(unless the break in service was due to an employee’s fulfillment of military 
obligation or governed by a CBA or other written agreement); 

• have worked at least 1,250 hours for the City during the 12-month period 
immediately before the date the FMLA leave is to start; and 

• be employed at a location where 50 or more employees are employed by the 

City within 75 miles of that location. 

 

How and When Leave May be Taken 
 
Family and medical leave is taken either in consecutive workweeks; intermittently in 
separate blocks of time; or by reducing the number of days the employee works per week 
or hours per day. 
 
Duration of FMLA:  Eligible employees may receive up to twelve (12) weeks of FMLA 
within a rolling twelve-month period measuring backward from the date leave is requested.  
Spouses working for the City are entitled to a combined twelve weeks in a twelve-month 
period unless the leave is for a serious health condition of either spouse.  FMLA for the 
birth or placement of a child for adoption or foster care must be concluded within twelve 
months of the birth or placement of the child.   
 
Intermittent/Reduced Schedule FMLA:  FMLA for a serious health condition of the 
employee or an immediate family member may be taken intermittently in increments as 
small as ¼ hour or on a reduced schedule basis.  Medical certification will be required 
providing the need for intermittent or reduced schedule leave.  The employee shall attempt 
to schedule his/her intermittent or reduced schedule leave so as to not disrupt the City 
operations.  In the event of a reassignment, the employee’s pay and benefits during this 
time will be equivalent to the employee’s current pay and benefits. 
 
Certification 
 
Any leave for a serious health condition, whether for the employee or for the employee’s 
child, spouse, parent, or covered service member, will require medical certification.  
Medical certification forms are available from the City Clerk’s Office.  The City may request 
a second or third opinion of a medical certification at the City’s expense. Periodic re-
certification at the City’s expense may also be required.  Medical certifications, if 
requested, must be provided within fifteen (15) calendar days of the request, unless 
special permission is received from the City Clerk (who shall serve as the FMLA 
Coordinator). 
 
Employees will be required to periodically check in with the City Clerk during their leave 
to keep the City apprised of their status and intent to return to work.  Confidentiality 
regarding the request will be maintained except for return-to-work information or required 
information to ensure safety.  FMLA files are considered medical records and will be kept 
separate from the personnel file.  Certification will include the date of onset, the probable 
duration, type of treatment and other appropriate medical facts concerning the condition.  
If an employee is seeking leave for his/her own health condition, the certification must also 
state that the employee is unable to perform the essential functions of his/her position.  
For leave to care for a family member, the certification must state that the employee is 
needed to care for the family member and an estimate of the amount of leave time the 
employee will need.  Other certification requirements apply in the case of intermittent or 

71

Item 8.



 

 49 

reduced schedule leave. 
 
Employees shall be required to complete all necessary Family and Medical Leave Act 
documentation within the timelines provided under the law prior to any leave being 
approved as family and medical leave.  All documentation and forms shall be available 
from the City Clerk’s Office.  If the employee fails to complete and return all necessary 
Family and Medical Leave Act documentation and the leave is such that would be covered 
as approved family and medical leave, the City may designate the leave as approved 
family and medical leave. 
 
The City reserves the right to require an employee to provide recertification for the need 
for leave depending on the amount of leave required.   
 
The City reserves the right to require a copy of the covered service member’s active-duty 
orders or other documentation issued by the military which indicates the service member 
is on active duty or called to active-duty status and the dates of the covered service 
member’s active duty service.  This information need only be provided to the City once. 
 
Notice Requirements 
 
An employee requesting family and/or medical leave must give the City at least 30 days 
advance notice if the reason for the leave is foreseeable.  If 30 days advance notice is not 
possible given the particular circumstances of the employee’s request, the employee must 
notify the City as soon as is practicable – generally within one or two business days from 
the time when the employee first learns of the need for leave.  Employees must make a 
reasonable effort to schedule foreseeable or planned leaves of absence so that they do 
not unduly disrupt the City’s operations.   
 
In those cases where the leave is foreseeable and the employee should provide thirty 
days’ advance notice and fails to do so, the employee shall provide a written explanation 
to the City why such notice was not practicable upon request from the City.  Failure to 
provide notice when required may result in discipline to the employee. 
 
If an employee returns from any period of absence which has not been designated as 
FMLA leave and the employee wishes to have the leave counted as FMLA leave, the 
employee must notify the City Clerk within two (2) business days of returning to work that 
the leave was for FMLA reasons.  Failure to provide this notice to the City Clerk may 
prevent the employee from making any later request or claim that the absence should 
have been covered by FMLA.  Upon notification of the request for retroactively applied 
FMLA leave, the City Clerk will evaluate the employee’s request and, if necessary, provide 
the employee with the necessary Notices as required by law. 
 
Wages 
 
FMLA Leave will be unpaid except as covered by any accrued sick leave, personal time, 
vacation time, compensatory time, holidays, and disability or workers' compensation 
benefits, if applicable.  An employee who has available paid time off, including sick leave, 
personal time, vacation time, compensatory time, holidays, and disability or workers’ 
compensation benefits will be required to use all appropriate paid leave in that order 
concurrently with his/her FMLA leave.  When an employee has exhausted all available 
paid leave, the remainder of any FMLA leave will be without pay. 
 

72

Item 8.



 

 50 

Continuation of Insurance Coverage and Fringe Benefits 
 
During the period of family and/or medical leave, the City will continue the employee’s 
group health plan insurance at the same level and under the same conditions as if the 
employee had continued working with the City in his/her assigned position.  Employees 
will be required to make arrangements with the City to pay their required shares of the 
cost of the health insurance premiums while on leave.  If an employee does not return 
from FMLA, the City reserves the right, in its discretion, to recover the City’s portion of the 
premiums it has paid to maintain the employee’s health coverage. 
 
All seniority rights to which an employee is entitled shall accumulate during FMLA leave 
provided the employee returns to work after the requested leave.  Additional sick leave 
and vacation time shall accrue during the time that the employee is on paid leave but will 
not accrue if on unpaid leave.  Full-time employees on paid leave will receive holiday pay 
when a holiday occurs.  Employees on unpaid leave will not receive holiday pay.   
 
Coordination with Other Forms of Leave  
  
FMLA leave is coordinated with other existing forms of leave as follows: 
 

• If an employee’s workers’ compensation leave, under the Iowa Code Chapter 
85 also qualified for FMLA leave, such leave shall run concurrent to the 
employee’s FMLA entitlement.  

• When FMLA leave is used for the employee's serious health condition that is 
covered by the Iowa Code Chapter 85, the employee may be entitled to paid 
leave.  An employee will not be required to use any accrued paid leave 
provided by the City if the employee receives paid leave under such leave. 

• Any leave taken under state or federal law for pregnancy disability that also 
qualifies for FMLA leave shall be counted against the employee’s entitlement 
for both purposes. 

 
Return to Work After Family and/or Medical Leave 
 
An employee who qualified for FMLA and has been unable to work due to a serious health 
condition must provide the City with a written release to return to work from a health care 
provider before returning to work.  Failure to provide that certification will result in the delay 
of the restoration of the employee's job and may result in the denial of the restoration of 
that employee's job.  If the employee can perform the essential functions of his/her job, 
the employee will be restored to his/her former position, if that position is vacant, or one 
with equivalent pay, benefits and conditions of employment provided the employee has 
complied with the requirements of this policy.  If an employee’s healthcare provider states 
that the employee may return to work, but that he/she has certain restrictions which limit 
the employee’s ability to perform certain essential job functions, then such work 
restrictions shall be analyzed with respect to the essential functions in order to determine 
whether or not a reasonable accommodation is possible.  
 
Any employee who decides during the period of family and/or medical leave or following 
the completion of family and/or medical leave, that he/she will not return to work with the 
City, is asked to advise the City of this fact in writing immediately.  If an employee fails to 
return to work after exhaustion of his/her 12 weeks of FMLA, that employee’s employment 
may be terminated.   
 

73

Item 8.



 

 51 

Termination of FMLA Leave   
 
An employee's FMLA leave and accompanying benefits will cease if any of the following 
occurs: 
 

• The employee's employment with the City would have been terminated due to 
other factors, even if the employee had not taken FMLA leave. 

• The employee informs the City of his/her intent not to return from leave in 
writing. 

• The employee fails to return from leave or continues on leave after exhausting 
his/her FMLA leave entitlement. 

• The employee fraudulently obtains FMLA leave. 
 

Other Provisions   
 
Exempt Employees:  Salaried executive, administrative, and professional employees of 
covered employers, who meet the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) criteria for exemption 
from minimum wage and overtime under the FLSA regulations, do not lose their FLSA-
exempt status by using any unpaid FMLA leave.  This special exemption to the “salary 
basis” requirements for FLSA’s exemption extends only to an eligible employee’s use of 
FMLA leave.  
 
Dishonesty: Any deliberate misrepresentation resulting in the misuse of FMLA leave will 
subject employees to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.  
 
Enforcement:  It is unlawful for any employer to interfere with, restrain, or deny the exercise 
of or the attempt to exercise any right provided by the FMLA.  It is also unlawful for an 
employer to terminate or discriminate against any individual for opposing any practice or 
because of involvement in any proceeding related to FMLA.  
 
The Wage and Hour Division is responsible for administering and enforcing the FMLA for 
most employees.  Most federal and certain congressional employees are also covered by 
the law but are subject to the jurisdiction of the U.S. Office of Personnel Management or 
Congress.  If an employee believes that their rights under the FMLA have been violated, 
they may file a complaint with the Wage and Hour Division or file a private lawsuit against 
their employer in court.   
 
For additional information, visit the Federal Wage and Hour Division Website: 
http://www.wagehour.dol.gov and/or call the toll-free information and helpline, available 8 
a.m. to 5 p.m. in your time zone, 1-866-4-USWAGE (1-866-487-9243).  This publication 
is for general information and is not to be considered in the same light as official 
statements of position contained in the regulations.  

 
15.4 Pregnancy, Childbirth or Related Medical Condition Leave 
 

An employee’s pregnancy or related condition may be a temporary disability.  Under Iowa 
law, where paid leave is not available, or there is insufficient paid leave available under 
any health or temporary disability insurance plan or sick leave plan, the employer shall 
grant an employee who is disabled by the pregnancy an unpaid leave of absence for the 
period the employee is disabled because of the employee’s pregnancy, childbirth or 
related medical condition, or for eight (8) weeks, whichever is less.  However, an employee 
may request to use her balance of compensatory time instead of taking leave without pay.   

74

Item 8.

http://www.wagehour.dol.gov/


 

 52 

The employee must provide timely notice of the period of leave requested.  Before granting 
the leave of absence, the City may require that the employee’s disability resulting from 
pregnancy be verified by a health care provider’s signed and dated written certification 
stating that the employee is not able to reasonably perform the essential functions of her 
position.  

 
Depending on the facts and circumstances, an employee on an approved pregnancy or 
childbirth leave of absence who is unable to return to work following the maximum eight-
week period may seek a further leave of absence under the ADAAA (Section 7.8) or under 
Leave of Absence Without Pay (Section 16.3). 

 
POLICY 16 -- OTHER TYPES OF LEAVE 

 
16.1 Professional Conference Attendance 
 
 (A) Employees desiring to attend professional conferences should make a written request to 

the City Administrator at least one month prior to the opening of the conference, or in time to 
take advantage of any pre-registration savings.  All requests should include the conference 
schedule, registration information, and anticipated costs.  Having money in the budget for 
travel does not automatically authorize conference attendance. 

 
 (B) Reimbursement for training and conference costs shall be as follows: 
 

(1)  Actual registration fee. 
 
(2)  Moderately priced room rate or room at the conference venue.  
 
(3)  Round trip transportation (either City vehicle, private vehicle at current IRS rate 
or coach fare; whichever is least). When practical, employees are required to take 
City vehicles to conferences and workshops. 
 
(4)  Actual cost of any additional transportation once at the location and professional 
materials. 
 
(5)  In State Policy 
Actual cost of meals not to exceed $10.00 morning, $15.00 lunch and $25.00 evening 
or $50.00 per day, (alcohol excluded) except meals when part of the registration 
package. Miscellaneous gratuities up to 15% are acceptable. The gratuity may be 
added on top of the allowed amount. 
 
(6) Out of State Policy 
A per diem based on the rate set by the federal government. Employees will receive 
per diem based on the nights stayed excluding travel days. Employees shall receive 
seventy-five (75) percent of the per diem of the federal rate for days traveling to and 
from the conference. No receipts are needed unless items are purchased on a City-
authorized credit card.  

 
 (C) Itemized receipts including the tip will be required to support all claims. A travel form 

(provided by the City) with a detailed accounting of money spent shall be submitted by the 
employee to their Department Head/Supervisor within one week of the conference end 
otherwise the conference may not be reimbursed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 91A.5. 

  

75

Item 8.



 

 53 

16.2 Military Leave 
 

Regular full-time employees who serve in the United States Armed Services, Reserves or 
National Guard are entitled to leaves of absence for required training or active military duty 
in accordance with Iowa Code Chapter 29A.  These employees, when ordered to active 
duty or service, are entitled to leave with pay for the first thirty days of such leave of 
absence.  Such employees are entitled to thirty (30) calendar days of paid leave for military 
service per calendar year.  Any amount of military leave taken during any part of an 
employee’s scheduled workday, regardless of the number of hours taken, shall count as 
one day toward the thirty (30) calendar days without loss of pay.  Absences required for 
military service that exceed thirty (30) calendar days shall be granted in accordance with 
the City’s policies on vacation, compensatory time, or unpaid leave, and with applicable 
state and federal law. 
 
An employee’s eligibility for re-employment with the City after completing military service 
will be determined in accordance with applicable state and federal law.  Conditions for re-
employment are briefly explained as follows: 
 
(A) The employee, or an appropriate officer of the uniformed service in which the 
employee serves, must give advance written or verbal notice of the employee’s service to 
his/her immediate supervisor, unless military necessity prevents employee from giving 
notice or it is otherwise impossible or unreasonable; 
 
(B) The cumulative length of the absence and all previous absences from the employee’s 
employment with the City for reason of military service must not exceed five (5) years, 
except in certain instances as required by law; 
 
(C) The employee’s discharge from military service must be honorable; and 
 
(D) When the employee returns from military service, he/she must report to work or submit 
a timely application for re-employment according to the following schedule: 
 
For service of less than 31 days the employee must report to work by the beginning of his/her 
first regularly scheduled workday that would fall eight hours after the employee returns home, 
however, the employee shall be permitted travel time and an eight-hour rest period.  For 
service of 31 to 180 days the employee must apply for re-employment within 14 days after 
completing service.  For service of 181 days or more the employee must apply for re-
employment no later than 90 days after completing service. 

 
Employees on leave for military service and any of their dependents entitled to coverage 
under the City’s health insurance plan are entitled to coverage as follows: 
 
(A) An employee that leaves employment for less than 31 days is entitled to continued 
health insurance coverage and will not be required to pay more than what an active 
employee would pay for coverage. 
 
(B) An employee that leaves employment for more than 30 days is allowed to elect to receive 
continued coverage under the City’s health insurance plan for up to 24 months following 
separation from employment or until the employee’s re-employment rights expire, whichever 
event occurs first.  The City may require the employee to pay up to 102% of the premium 
under this circumstance. 
 

76

Item 8.



 

 54 

Any compensation paid to an employee on military leave will be paid on the regularly 
scheduled pay dates.   
 
Military leave of absence shall result in no loss of seniority status or benefits which would 
have normally accrued if the employee had not been absent for such purposes. 
 

16.3 Leave of Absence Without Pay 
  

All banked time off must be used before any leave of absence without paid time can be 
authorized.  

 
(A) Department Heads may grant leaves of absence without pay upon proper application in 
writing without pay for periods of up to two (2) weeks with the approval of the City 
Administrator.  Upon proper application and with justification, longer leaves of absence 
without pay may be granted if approved by the City Council.  Unpaid leaves of absence shall 
be granted for any purpose reasonable in the judgment of the City Administrator and/or 
City Council if applicable.  Failure to return at the date designated shall constitute a voluntary 
resignation. 
 
(B) If an employee’s position is still open/available and if the employee is qualified to perform 
the essential functions of that position with or without reasonable accommodation, the 
employee may return to their position following a leave of absence without pay.  
 
(C) No benefits shall accrue during leaves of absence without pay. 
 
(D Benefits are suspended during leaves of absence without pay, except in such cases as 
insurance programs where the employee elects to pay his/her own premiums in advance.  
While on unpaid leave for employees who have been enrolled in the City’s health 
insurance for more than six months, the City shall continue to pay its portion of the 
employee’s health insurance premium.  At least thirty days prior to any unpaid leave of 
absence, or in cases where the unpaid leave of absence is unforeseeable, as soon as 
practicable, the employee shall make arrangements with the City regarding how the 
employee will pay his/her portion of the health insurance premium.  If an employee fails to 
pay his/her portion of the health insurance premium per arrangements made with the City, 
the City shall provide the employee with written notice that it intends to cancel the 
employee’s health insurance plan, and if the employee does not pay the premium within 
ten (10) days of the date on the written notice, the City shall be permitted to cancel the 
employee’s health insurance plan. 
 
(E)  If a leave of absence without pay is due to an employee’s own physical or mental injury 
or illness, the employee shall present a health care provider’s signed and dated written 
certification stating the employee is able to return to work with or without reasonable 
accommodations related to their essential job functions. 
 

16.4 Bereavement Leave 
 
 In case of death in the immediate family (other than a spouse, child or parent), a regular full-

time employee shall be granted a leave of absence with pay for a period of three (3) 
workdays.  In case of the death of a spouse, child, or parent, a regular full-time employee 
shall be granted a leave of absence with pay for a period of five (5) workdays. To be eligible 
for paid funeral/bereavement leave an employee must have completed their probationary 
period.  Employees may be required to submit proof of death and/or relationship. 

77

Item 8.



 

 55 

16.5 Personal Day  
 

(A) All full-time employees earn four (4) personal days each fiscal year in July. If hired after 
July 1, a full-time employee is entitled to one (1) personal day off from work with pay for 
each full quarter they work, to be used before July 1 of the following year. 
 

(B) New employees earn and may use one Personal Day per calendar quarter: 
a. July-September 
b. October-December 
c. January-March 
d. April-June 

  
(C) The employee must obtain approval by their Department Head to use their personal day.  

Where a conflict exists between employee requests to use their personal days, seniority 
shall apply. 
 

(D) Employees will be paid their regular hourly rate/salary for the personal day used.  
 

(E) Personal days may not be carried over from fiscal year to fiscal year and an unused 
personal day shall be forfeited on the last day of the fiscal year. 
 

(F) Personal days must be taken in a minimum of one-quarter hour increments.  
 
16.6 Jury/Court Leave 
 
 Any regular full-time or part-time employee who is required to serve on a jury, or as a result 

of official City of Oelwein duties is required to appear before a court, legislative committee or 
quasi-judicial body as a witness in response to a subpoena or other directive shall be allowed 
authorized leave.  A new employee called will have his/her Probationary period extended by 
the same amount of time as required for serving on jury duty.  An employee who receives 
notice of jury duty or witness service must notify his/her Department Head immediately in 
order that arrangements may be made to cover the position.  The City reserves the right to 
request that an employee who is called for jury be excused if his/her absence would create 
a hardship on the operational effectiveness of the department to which they are assigned. 

 
 The employee is responsible for turning in a statement of time release from the county and 

must return back to work within one hour of the stated time.  
 
 Time away will not affect vacation, sick leave or personal leave accruals. 
 
 Employees who appear in court as the plaintiff or defendant in any action not related to their 

official duties or who appear in court as a plaintiff against the City or related entity/person 
shall not be paid for time away from work unless that time is accrued vacation or personal 
leave.  Court payments for travel expenses are to be retained by the employee.  

 
 The employee may keep any court payment for services performed on the days of his/her 

regularly scheduled weekend or performed while on vacation or personal leave. 
 
 Employees are to return to work after jury duty within one hour although no more than the 

regularly scheduled number of hours for both jury duty and work shall be required.  If excused 
as a juror on any given day, the employee is expected to contact his/her Department Head 
and to report to work as instructed. 

78

Item 8.



 

 56 

16.7 Election Day Workers 
 
 City Employees that volunteer to work election day can receive paid time off at the rate of a 

regular eight-hour workday.  Employees must give notice that they are working elections 
before they are allowed paid time off.  Employees must have approval from their Department 
Head.  Employees must provide verification from the county that they served on election day.  

 
POLICY 17 -- INJURIES, INSURANCE AND BENEFITS 

 
17.1 Workers’ Compensation 
 

To provide for payment of employee’s medical expenses and partial salary continuation in 
the event of a work-related injury or illness, employee is covered by workers’ 
compensation insurance.  The amount and duration of benefits payable depend on the 
nature of the employee’s injury or illness.   
 
Any employee who sustains a work-related injury or illness must inform his/her 
supervisor/Department Head immediately, no matter how minor the injury or illness may 
appear.  In all cases, an injury/incident report must be completed with the City Clerk and 
signed by the employee within 24 hours of the injury or illness.  Failure to report such an 
injury shall result in discipline, up to and including termination.  Based on the 
circumstances associated with the injury or illness, the employee may be eligible for 
compensation according to the state's work disability laws and regulations.  The City shall 
direct care for all workers’ compensation injuries including but not limited to selection of 
the employee’s treating healthcare provider(s). 
 
Neither the City nor the insurance carrier will be liable for the payment of workers' 
compensation benefits for injuries that occur during an employee's voluntary participation 
in any off-duty recreational, social or athletic activity sponsored by the City. 
 
Guidelines:  The City’s policy and practices related to an employee who is injured on the 
job include, but are not limited to, the following guidelines: 
 

• Employees should contact their supervisor/Department Head and file an 
incident report with the City Clerk immediately (no later than 24 hours following 
the incident) 

• If the employee fails to report to a scheduled appointment, it will be considered 
failure to report to work and the employee may be subject to discipline. 

• Employees not following any work restrictions may be subject to discipline, up 
to and including termination. 

• While on workers’ compensation leave, the employee is required to keep the 
City informed of his/her verbal or written correspondence with his/her treating 
health care provider(s), insurance carriers, physical therapists and all other 
related parties so a complete claim file can be maintained by the City. 

• The rapid and efficient return of the employee to his/her job or an alternate 
position until the treating health care provider releases the employee to regular 
duties is the desired outcome of workers’ compensation incidents. 

 
Prior to returning to work the employee shall provide a signed and dated written 
certification from the City’s designated health care provider indicating that the employee 
is released to return to work and is capable of performing his/her essential job functions 
with or without a reasonable accommodation. 

79

Item 8.



 

 57 

The City may at their own discretion supplement Iowa Workers’ Compensation payments.  
The intent of this policy is to allow employees receiving workers’ compensation to be paid 
a supplemental amount to bring their total compensation to the regular time take home 
pay they would have earned on the job.  Supplemental payments may be charged against 
payroll, the employees accumulated sick leave, vacation leave, or personal days. 
 

If an employee fails to report to work at the end of the approved workers’ compensation 
leave or if the employee is employed by or working for another employer or company 
during the workers’ compensation leave, his/her employment with the City will be 
considered voluntarily terminated.   

 

17.2 Retirement Systems 
 

 All regular full-time City employees, except the City Administrator upon their election and 
Police and Firefighters, shall participate in the Iowa Public Employees Retirement System.  
Full-time Police and Fire employees may elect to participate in the Municipal Fire and Police 
Retirement System of Iowa. 

 

 IPERS and MFPRSI benefits accrue from both employee and employer contributions.  
Contributions to the retirement system are mandatory for eligible positions and are deducted 
from the member's salary each payroll period.  IPERS and MFPRSI provide for retirement 
benefits when a member meets the plan requirements. 

 

 If an IPERS or MFPRSI member terminates service without retiring, the member should 
consult the IPERS website at www.ipers.org or the MFPRSI website at http://www.mfprsi.org/ 
for the member’s options.  Annual benefit statements are provided to participating members 
by their respected programs.  Employees may request an estimate of benefits from IPERS 
and MFPRSI at any time to obtain an approximate projected retirement benefit figure.  
Employees contemplating terminating service upon retirement should consult the IPERS 
website at www.ipers.org MFPRSI http://www.mfprsi.org/ for requirements.  The City 
appreciates 90 days’ notice prior to any employee’s retirement date. 

 

 Enrollment and benefit forms are available through the Clerk's office.  It is the employee's 
individual responsibility to keep information on file up to date related to his/her retirement 
account as to name, address and beneficiary(s). 

 

17.3 Hospital, Medical and Life Insurance 
 

 (A) The City will contract for a hospital, medical, and life insurance policy for each full-time 
employee. Employees become eligible for insurance on the first of the month following 30 
days of employment.  The employee cost of coverage will be determined annually by the City 
Council through the salary resolution. The City and the Employee will cost share, should the 
premium increase from the previous fiscal year. The Employee’s monthly contribution rate, 
based on the coverage that they receive (single/family), will increase by a percentage that is 
50% of any increase to the rate that the City receives.  The City also provides employees 
access to dental and vision insurance; however, employees are responsible for 100% of the 
cost of the premium. 

 

 (B) If an employee is absent because of illness or off-the-job injury and properly notifies the 
City Clerk of such absences, the City shall continue to pay the premium apportioned as 
described above in paragraph (A) for the period of time that the employee is entitled to sick 
leave and/or vacation benefits (deducting the employee’s premium cost from their pay 
checks). 

80

Item 8.

http://www.ipers.org/
http://www.ipers.org/


 

 58 

 (C) If an employee is injured on the job, the City will continue to pay the above-specified 
contribution to the employee’s hospital, medical, and life insurance premiums until such 
employee returns to work; however, such contributions shall not be paid for a period of more 
than twelve (12) months.   

 
 (D) If an employee is granted leave of absence, said employee shall pay to the City sufficient 

monies to pay the required contribution during the months absent.  This payment shall be 
required in full prior to approval of the leave of absence.  See Section 16.3(D). 

 
(E) For any situation where an employee is not receiving a paycheck from the City but 
continues to be enrolled in the City’s health insurance program,  the employee shall 
make timely arrangements with the City regarding how the employee will pay his/her 
portion of the health insurance premium.  If an employee fails to pay his/her portion of 
any insurance premium per arrangements made with the City, the City shall provide the 
employee with written notice that it intends to cancel the employee’s health insurance 
plan, and if the employee does not pay the premium within ten (10) days of the date on 
the written notice, the City shall be permitted to cancel the employee’s insurance plan.  
See Section 16.3(D). 

 
 (F) Enrollment forms should be completed in the following instances: 
 
  (1)  New Employees beginning service with the City. 
  (2)  Employees wanting to add an eligible dependent. 
  (3)  Employees who want to drop a dependent. 
 
 Enrollment forms are available from the Clerk's office.  It is the employee's responsibility to 

notify the Clerk of any change in dependent status by completing updated enrollment forms.  
Upon termination of employment with the City, the employee may elect to continue medical 
coverage under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (R.L. 99-272) 
(COBRA).  The Clerk or his/her designee provides eligible employees with information on 
COBRA. 

 
17.4 Comprehensive Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) 
 

Employees of the City and their qualified dependents currently enrolled in insurance 
programs have the opportunity to continue certain insurance coverage under the City’s 
group plans, as required by law, at the employee’s/dependent’s cost.  Employees are 
eligible when a “qualifying event” would normally result in the loss of eligibility. Qualifying 
events include resignation or termination of employment for any reason other than gross 
misconduct; death or disability of an employee; a reduction in an employee’s hours or a 
leave of absence; employee’s divorce or legal separation; dependent child no longer 
meeting eligibility requirements; or the spouse of an employee who elects Medicare 
coverage.   

 
The employee or dependent will be required to pay the full cost for coverage at the City’s 
group rate plus an affordable care act fee, health reimbursement plan fee, two percent of 
COBRA fee, patient-centered outcomes research institute fee, and administrative fee as 
required under the law. 

 
Eligible employees are notified in writing of their rights under COBRA when the employee 
becomes eligible for coverage continuation.  For more information regarding this benefit, 
please contact the City Clerk. 

81

Item 8.



 

 59 

Alternatively, under Iowa Code Section 509A.13, an employee who retires before attaining 
sixty-five (65) years of age may continue participation in the group plan or under the group 
contract at the employee’s own expenses until the employee attains sixty-five (65) years 
of age.  See Section 10.4 above for additional information. 
 

17.5 Employee Medical Examinations 
 

The City may require an applicant to submit to a job-related physical examination by a 
health care provider designated by the City and at the City’s expense or the prospective 
employee’s health care provider at the prospective employee’s expense if the employee 
requests to see his/her own health care provider.  The applicant shall not be required to 
submit to a job-related physical examination until after the employee has been offered a 
position, but before the employee starts work.  Additionally, the City may require that a 
current employee be examined by a qualified and licensed health care provider selected 
by the City if there is any question concerning an employee's fitness for duty or fitness to 
return to duty following a layoff or leave of absence.   
 

Following an examination, an employee or applicant shall provide a health care provider’s 
signed and dated written certification stating that the employee is capable of performing 
the essential functions of the employee’s job with or without reasonable accommodations 
or is capable of performing the essential functions of another job, which is open/available 
and for which the employee is qualified, with or without reasonable accommodations.  The 
results of the examination will be kept in a confidential file separate from other employee 
records. 

 

17.6 Light Duty Policy 
 

Definitions: 
 

Light duty: limited and/or modified duty assignments which excuse an employee from 
performing some or all of the essential job functions in his/her position or in another 
position with or without a reasonable accommodation for a temporary period of time in 
order to permit the employee to continue working and earning pay during his/her period of 
recovery/recuperation from a mental or physical impairment (including pregnancy and 
pregnancy or childbirth related conditions).  Light duty shall not continue indefinitely. Light 
duty shall not be provided for permanent impairments which impact the employee’s ability 
to perform some or all of the essential functions of his/her job with or without a reasonable 
accommodation. Instead, when an impairment becomes permanent, the City and the 
employee shall discuss through the interactive process whether the employee’s 
permanent impairment is a disability as defined by the Iowa Civil Rights Act or the ADAAA 
and whether reasonable accommodations that do not present an undue burden can be 
implemented. 
 

Temporary disability: a mental or physical impairment or impairments (including 
pregnancy and pregnancy or childbirth related conditions) which results in temporary 
physical limitations/restrictions certified by the employee’s health care provider which 
temporarily impact the employee’s ability to perform the essential functions of his/her 
position as set forth in the job description.  
 

Temporary:  lasting for a limited period of time. An interim measure, which is not 
permanent.  However, this term will be defined on a case-by-case basis depending upon 
the availability of light duty, the anticipated length of time needed for the light duty, and 
the creation of any undue burden on the City’s operations and its employees. 

82

Item 8.



 

 60 

Policy: 
 
The City is committed to encouraging employees to return to work when their health care 
provider certifies that they are physically and mentally able to perform some or all of the 
essential job functions of their position or in another position.  This permits the employee 
to continue to work and earn pay; accrue benefits; avoid loss of sick leave; and avoid 
expiration of any applicable leaves of absence. 
 
Accordingly, if an employee with a temporary disability as defined above requests light 
duty and if light duty is available within the employee’s limitations and restrictions certified 
by his/her health care provider, the City shall offer temporary light duty to the employee.  
The City shall provide the light duty offer using the City’s form which can be provided by 
the City Clerk. 
 
Light duty shall extend only for the temporary period the light duty is available and the 
temporary period during which the employee’s health care provider certifies the need. 
Light duty is not applicable to permanent impairments.  (See definitions)  Employees shall 
remain in regular communication with the City regarding their status and need for light 
duty.  Employees shall provide all health care provider status updates or changes to the 
City in writing.   
 
All temporary light duty requests shall be made in writing using the City’s form and 
attaching the requesting employee’s health care provider’s signed and dated certification 
of the need for temporary light duty with an express and detailed explanation of the 
limitations/restrictions on the employee’s mental or physical abilities, and in relation to 
employee’s essential job functions and the time period for the light duty if known. 
Employees shall deliver the light duty request to their supervisor with a copy to the City 
Clerk.  The City shall provide the written offer of light duty to employee and his/her 
supervisor.   
 
If an employee believes that an offer of light duty does not comply with the employee’s job 
restrictions, the employee shall provide a detailed, written statement about the claimed 
non-compliance to the City Clerk.  The City shall then evaluate the employee’s statement 
and either (1) modify the offer of light duty; (2) revoke the offer of light duty; or (3) 
communicate to the employee that the offer stands unchanged because it complies with 
the employee’s work restrictions.  If an employee fails to report to work when the employee 
has been ordered to return to a light duty position that complies with the employee’s work 
restrictions, the employee shall be disciplined up to and including termination. 
 
All materials related to requests for light duty, health care providers’ written 
communications and the offer of light duty shall be kept in the employee’s confidential 
medical file. 
 

POLICY 18 -- SPECIAL ALLOWANCES 
 
18.1 Uniforms 
 
 (A) The City will furnish uniforms as determined by the Department Head and approved by 

the City Administrator.  
  
 (B) Full-time employees are eligible for uniforms and safety boots. Part-time parks and 

cemetery employees shall be eligible to receive safety boots after the successful completion 

83

Item 8.



 

 61 

of one (1) full season with the City upon starting their second season. Safety boots will be 
provided with styles determined by the Department Head and approved by the City 
Administrator. The City will pay up to $200.00 toward safety boots as needed. 

 
 (C) All employees will be provided protective headgear, eye shields, and safety garments as 

needed in their position.  
 
 (D) Full-time employees who regularly work outside will be provided with five shirts, five pairs 

of pants, rain gear, winter overalls, and gloves.  
  
 (E) Employees who attend conferences or workshops outside of their normal working place 

will be required to wear city issued uniforms when the clothing is appropriate.  
 
 (F) All lifeguards for the City will be provided with swimsuits.  Lifeguards must reimburse the 

City for swimsuit purchases if the employee fails to work for the City.   
 
18.2 City Property 
 

Employees having custody of City property shall be responsible for its proper care, use, and 
security.  All employees are required to leave their work area clean at the end of their shift 
or workday.  Any improper, careless, negligent, destructive or unsafe use or operation of 
City property or equipment may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination 
of employment. 
 
Department Heads shall be notified if any City property, including equipment, machines 
or tools appear to be damaged, defective or in need of repair.  Prompt reporting of 
damage, defects and need for repair will prevent deterioration of equipment and possible 
injury to employees or others.  Department Heads are available to answer any questions 
about an employee's responsibility for maintenance and care of equipment used on the 
job.  
 
The use of City property, including equipment and vehicles for personal or non-work-
related tasks is strictly prohibited and may result in disciplinary action up to and including 
termination of employment or criminal charges. 

  
 If the employee fails to return said City property at the time of their termination or returns the 

property in disrepair, the City may withhold funds to reimburse the City from the employee’s 
final paycheck pursuant to the authorization in the employee acknowledgment form at the 
end of this manual (and pursuant to state and federal wage and garnishment laws) or the 
City may elect to withhold payment of any banked but unused vacation leave normally due 
and owing the employee.  See also Section 10.7. 

 
18.3 Travel Allowance 
 
 See Section 16.1. 
 
18.4 Education Allowances 
 
 The City encourages all employees in their self-improvement efforts.  Expenses for job-

related courses may be reimbursed by the City.  Authorization for expenditures must be 
secured in advance from the City Administrator. 

 

84

Item 8.



 

 62 

 Areas in which the City has historically paid education allowances for include: 
 
 (A) Fire and Police training programs. 
 
 (B) Water and sewer plant operators training programs. 
 
 (C) Special training programs which benefit the City. 
 
 The City may pay the cost of tuition, books, mileage, and room and board; where applicable 

and when approved in advance and upon successful completion and attainment of 
certification.  Employees must reimburse the City for all failed certifications. 

 
18.5 Recruitment and Retention 
  
 The City Administrator shall have the authority to negotiate with department heads and 

exempt salaried employees; wages, benefits, and leave time to ensure that the City of 
Oelwein retains and attracts top talent for key roles within the organization.   

 
18.6 City Pool Pass 
 

The City shall provide a pool pass to the Oelwein Family Aquatics Center (“the aquatics 
center”) for all full-time employees and their respective families after a successful 
probationary period.  A pool pass shall also be provided to part-time employees, volunteer 
fire fighters, and reserve police officers after a successful season or year of employment with 
the City upon starting their second season.   
 
Any employee taking advantage of this optional membership offer does so at their own 
risk.  The City will not be liable for any accidents or injuries sustained while a member is 
using the  aquatics center.  This includes but is not limited to any accidents that occur from 
driving to or from the aquatics center.  The employee also assumes the risk and expense 
of transportation to and from the aquatic center.  Each employee using the aquatics center 
will do so on their own time off, not as an employee, and not during work hours. The City 
assumes no workers’ compensation liability during the exercise process, which must take 
place outside of work hours.   

 
POLICY 19 – PAY ADMINISTRATION 

 
19.1 Temporary Job Assignments 
 
 When a salaried position is vacant and an employee assumes temporary responsibility for 

that position, the employee may be entitled to additional compensation as determined by the 
City Council. 

 
19.2 Overtime 
 

(A) All overtime must be preauthorized by the Department Head or their designee. Overtime 
is authorized only for emergency work unless approved by the City Administrator or 
Department Head.  "Emergency work" shall mean that which is needed because of a natural 
catastrophe or for the protection of life and property.  It shall not mean routine day-to-day 
work.  Any employee who accrues overtime without prior authorization from the Department 
Head or City Administrator for non-emergency work shall be disciplined, up to and including 
termination. 

85

Item 8.



 

 63 

 
(B) Unless a CBA applies and states otherwise, employees shall only be paid overtime for 
actual hours worked.  Sick time, holidays, vacation, funeral leave, and personal days shall 
not be considered actual hours worked for purposes of calculating overtime. 
 
(C) If a CBA applies and requires it, pre-authorized overtime shall be pursuant to the 
Department’s call out list.  Otherwise, overtime shall be directed by the Department Head, or 
their designee as deemed necessary to meet operational necessities.   
 
(D) All call outs during off-duty hours shall be paid at the time and one-half rate with a 
guaranteed minimum of two (2) hours worked. Refusing overtime can result in discipline up 
to and including termination.  

 
(E) A pattern of refusing or missing calls from the call out list shall result in discipline up to 
and including termination. Refusing overtime can result in discipline up to and including 
termination.  

 
(F) Unless a CBA applies and states otherwise, overtime pay at a rate of time and one-half 
shall be paid for all hours over forty (40) hours per week for actual hours worked as explained 
in 19.2(B).  The work week begins Sunday morning at 12:01 AM and ends on the following 
Saturday at 11:59 p.m. unless otherwise specified. 

  
19.3 Compensatory Time (Non-Exempt Employees) 
 
 (A) Non-exempt employees who work overtime may be entitled to compensatory time off in 

lieu of overtime pay.  If additional hours over forty (40) hours per week are not true overtime 
hours worked, the hours must be paid out to the employee as straight time during that pay 
period and cannot be added to the employee’s compensatory time bank.  

 
 (B) Compensatory time is subject to the approval of the Department Head involved and the 

City Administrator.  The Department Head shall track compensatory time earned, used and 
unused. 

 
 (C) Unless otherwise provided for by a CBA, non-exempt employees can bank up to 40 hours 

of compensatory time.  
 
 (D) Employees will be paid out all of their accrued compensatory time the final pay period in 

June, and the final pay period in December.  
 
 (E) Compensatory time must be taken in a minimum of one-quarter hour increments. 
 
19.4 Flex Time (Exempt Employees)  
 

(A) Employees exempt from the FLSA’s overtime provisions are typically “salaried.”  Work 
schedules are intended to maintain the required flexibility to “get the job done.”  Exempt 
employees are expected to work a minimum of 2,080 hours in a work year, although 
individual schedules may vary greatly throughout the year.  However, in recognition of the 
fact that their duties often require more time than the normal 40-hour work week, exempt 
employees may be allowed to take informal flex time consistent with effective performance 
for their duties and with the operating requirements and responsibilities of their 
department.  Flex time is not an entitlement but may be taken with approval of the 
immediate supervisor or the City Administrator in the case of Department Heads. 

86

Item 8.



 

 64 

 
(B) Formal payroll time reporting is not required for flex time taken.  However, a 
Department Head or the City Administrator may require exempt employees to maintain a 
record of hours worked and flex time taken for operational purposes, such as 
administration of sick leave and vacation time or for grant accounting or allocation of hours 
for program metrics. 

 
 19.5 Longevity 
 
 (A) All nonunion full-time employees, after completing the required number of years’ service, 

shall receive additional compensation for increased value to the City through length of 
service.  Said longevity shall be set annually by the city council within the salary resolution. 

 
(B) Union employees will receive longevity as stated in their CBA’s. 

 
POLICY 20 -- SENIORITY 

 
20.1 Seniority 
 
 Seniority shall be considered first on a departmental basis, and then where possible and 

applicable on a City-wide basis and shall be an element in all personnel transactions provided 
an employee has the qualifications and ability to perform the job for which he/she claims 
seniority. 

 
 (A) The City Clerk or his/her designee shall be responsible for preparation and maintenance 

of a master seniority list for collective bargaining departments which shall contain the names 
of all employees in the order of their appointment to the service in the department.  Seniority 
standings shall remain unchanged unless affected by leaves of absence without pay of longer 
than two weeks in duration.  Leaves of absence for illness, injury on or off the job, or military 
duty with the Armed Forces of the United States shall not interrupt service toward seniority 
but all other leaves of longer than two weeks shall affect it.  A copy of the seniority list shall 
be available in the City Clerk's office and the department head at all times and in such other 
places as he/she may direct. 

 
 (B) Assignment of work with or without pay differential within departments shall be made on 

the basis of the efficient operation of the department or the applicable CBA, if any. 
 

(C) On call duty shall be by seniority pursuant to department or division policies or applicable 
practice.  

 
 (D) Employees shall lose their seniority upon voluntary resignation or termination from City 

employment or upon failure to return to work from a leave of absence as provided in this 
manual. 

 
POLICY 21 -- POLICE AND FIRE 

 
21.1 General Provisions 
 
 Uniformed personnel of the Police and Fire Departments shall be subject to the provisions of 

the Iowa Code and to the policies and regulations of their departments.  Iowa law and the 
departmental policies and regulations shall take precedence over any conflicting policies and 
regulations. 

87

Item 8.



 

 65 

 
21.2 Applications 
 
 All applications for a position in either the Police or Fire Departments shall meet requirements 

as established by Iowa Code. 
 
21.3 Examinations 
 
 (A) Individuals seeking a position as either a police officer or firefighter may be required to 

pass performance, physical, oral, written, medical and psychological examinations.  If an 
applicant or employee is required to submit to a medical or psychological test, the City shall 
designate the health care provider and the test will be at the City’s expense.  Such exams 
shall be given to determine if the employee is fit to perform the essential functions of the job.  
The applicant shall not be required to submit to a job-related physical or psychological  
examination until after the employee has been offered a position, but before the employee 
starts work.    

 
 (B) Notice of examinations shall be published at least two (2) weeks prior to the examination.  

Notice for promotional exams may be given by writing to all members of the department. 
 
 (C) A register of eligible candidates shall be maintained for a period of 12 months or until 

exhausted.  Individuals shall be ranked in order of their examination scores from highest to 
lowest.  

 
21.4 Promotions 
 
 The Civil Service Commission shall provide written directions for promotion on the basis of 

merit and seniority in service and examinations pursuant to Iowa Code Chapter 400.  All 
examinations for promotion shall be competitive among all members of the next lower rank 
as desire to submit themselves.  Promotions shall be made from the three having the highest 
rating. 

 
21.5 Temporary Appointments 
 
 Temporary appointments may be made by the Chiefs of Police or Fire in order to prevent a 

stoppage of public business, to meet extraordinary exigencies, or to prevent material 
impairment of either the police or fire department.  These shall be for a period not to exceed 
sixty (60) days.  No temporary appointment of any one person shall be made more than twice 
in any calendar year. 

 
21.6 Disciplinary Action 
 
 (A) Officers of the Police and Fire Departments may be removed or discharged for cause, 

upon written charges, and after an opportunity to be heard in their own defense at a hearing 
of charges.  In case an officer or member is found guilty they may be discharged or may be 
suspended not to exceed thirty (30) days without pay. 

 
 (B) The Chief of either the Police or Fire Department or City Administrator may suspend 

without pay a member of his/her department for a period of not more than three (3) days, but 
he/she shall notify the Board in writing of such suspension.  Any policeman or fireman so 
suspended may appeal for a review of the suspension within twenty-four (24) hours after 
such suspension. 

88

Item 8.



 

 66 

 
21.7 Reduction of Force 
 

 When the force of the Police or Fire Department is reduced and positions displaced or 
abolished, seniority shall prevail, and the members so reduced in rank or removed from the 
service shall be considered furloughed without pay. 

 

 If any vacated positions are reinstated, furloughed members of the said position shall be 
notified by registered mail and shall have prior right to such positions if otherwise qualified.  
In all cases seniority shall prevail.  Written application for the position must be made within 
thirty (30) days after notification.  Such person may be required to submit to examination by 
the City’s designated health care provider. 

 

POLICY 22 – EMPLOYEE SAFETY 
 

22.1 General 
 

All employees are required to wear appropriate safety equipment, follow appropriate 
safety equipment rules and follow appropriate safety procedures according to City and/or 
departmental policy at all times.  Failure to comply with safety policies may result in 
disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. 

 

22.2 Hazardous Chemical Communication 
 

This policy is to ensure, under The Employee Right to Know law, that each employee or 
contractor who is employed by the City is aware of the hazardous chemicals used, stored 
or generated in any City facilities.  It will be accomplished by the following: 
 

(A) Listing of all chemical products used or generated on City property. 
 

(B) Appropriate labels on containers of all chemical products. 
 

(C) Safety Data Sheets (“SDS”) will be available for all chemical products on company 
property. 
 

(D) Employees will be trained to recognize and interpret labels, warnings, color-coding, 
signs, etc. that are affixed to containers in order to properly protect themselves against 
potential hazards. 
 

(E) Employees will be trained to understand the elements of Safety Data Sheets (“SDS”) 
and to recognize possible risks to health and physical harm so employees can properly 
protect themselves against potential hazards. 
 

(F) The written hazard communication in its entirety will be available upon request to 
employees, their designated representatives, and to local/state/ federal officials who have 
proper authority. 
 

(G) In-depth safety policies and procedures are available to all employees and can be 
acquired upon request from the employee’s Supervisor.  

 
22.3 Bloodborne Pathogen Policy/Plan 
 

The City is committed to providing a safe and healthful work environment for all 

89

Item 8.



 

 67 

employees.  In pursuit of this goal, an exposure control plan (“ECP”) is provided to 
employees to eliminate or minimize occupational exposure to bloodborne pathogens in 
accordance with OSHA standard 29 C.F.R. § 1910.1030, “Bloodborne Pathogens.”  The 
ECP is a key document to assist the City in implementing and ensuring compliance with 
the standard, thereby protecting City employees.  This ECP includes: 

 
(A) Determination of employee exposure. 

 
(B) Implementation of various methods of exposure control, including: 

1) Universal precautions. 
2) Engineering and work practice controls. 
3) Personal protective equipment. 
4) Housekeeping. 

 
(C) Hepatitis B vaccination. 

 
(D) Post-exposure evaluation and follow-up. 

 
(E) Communication of hazards to employees and training. 

 
(F) Recordkeeping. 

 
(G) Procedures for evaluating circumstances surrounding exposure incidents. 

 
Employees should familiarize themselves with the ECP and direct any questions regarding 
the ECP to their Supervisors. 

 
22.4 Drug and Alcohol Use/Abuse/Testing 
 

(A) General Provisions/Policy Statement. 
 

(1)  Drug and alcohol use is highly detrimental to the safety and productivity of 
employees in the workplace as well as to the public the City serves.  No employee 
may be under the influence of any illegal drug or alcohol while in the workplace or 
while operating a vehicle or equipment owned or leased by the City. No employee 
may be under the influence of any illegal drug while on duty on behalf of the City. 
 
(2)  According to Iowa law, the unlawful manufacture, possession, distribution, 
transfer, purchase, sale, use, or being under the influence of alcoholic beverages 
or illegal drugs while on City property or while operating a vehicle or equipment 
owned or leased by the City, is strictly prohibited and will lead to disciplinary action 
including suspension without pay or termination of employment.  The unlawful 
manufacture, possession, distribution, transfer, purchase, sale, use, or being 
under the influence of illegal drugs while attending business-related activities on 
behalf of the City is also strictly prohibited and will lead to disciplinary action 
including suspension without pay or termination of employment. 
 
(3) Failure to submit to required medical or physical examinations or tests is 
misconduct and is grounds for suspension or termination of employment.  
 
(4)   Drug and alcohol testing is required by the Oelwein Police Department for 
post-offer/pre-employment, probable cause and random drug testing to detect 

90

Item 8.



 

 68 

prohibited drug and alcohol use by sworn employees.  Drug and alcohol testing is 
also required for employees working in positions designated safety sensitive 
including for post-offer/pre-employment, probable cause and random drug testing.   
Drug and alcohol testing is also required as mandated by the Department of 
Transportation for employees with a Commercial Driver’s License (CDL).   
 
(5)  When appropriate, the Department Head and City Administrator may refer the 
employee to approved counseling or rehabilitation programs.  Employees may use 
prescribed medications, provided the use of such drugs does not adversely affect 
job performance or the safety of the employee or other individuals in the workplace.  
 
(6)  Employees engaged in the illegal use, sale, or possession of illegal drugs or 
controlled drugs on City premises, in a City department vehicle, or while on City 
time, will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of 
employment. 
 
(7)  Employees charged with illegal use, sale, or possession of illegal drugs or 
controlled drugs on City premises or while on City time shall file a written report 
with the City Administrator.  This report must be filed within 48 hours of the filing 
of charges and the employee may be subject to disciplinary action up to and 
including termination of employment.  After reviewing the written report, the City 
Administrator may determine that the employee’s actions have rendered the 
employee subject to discipline up to and including termination of employment. 

 
 (B) Drug and Alcohol Abuse Testing Procedures 
 

1. Definitions 
 

(a) Safety Sensitive Employee:  A safety sensitive employee is an 
employee working in a position wherein an accident or an error could 
cause the loss of human life, serious bodily injury, or significant property 
or environmental damage, including a position with duties that include 
immediate supervision of a person in a job that meet the requirements 
of this paragraph.  However, the City reserves the right to add or 
remove positions from its list of safety sensitive positions at any time.  
This includes part-time safety sensitive employees. 

 
(b) Reasonable Suspicion Drug and Alcohol Test:  Drug or alcohol tests 

based upon evidence that an employee is using or has used alcohol or 
other drugs in violation of this written policy.  Evidence in support of 
such a violation is drawn from specific objectives, articulable facts and 
reasonable inferences drawn from those facts in light of training and 
experience.  For the purposes of this paragraph, facts and inferences 
may be based upon, but are not limited to, any of the following: 

 
(i) Observations while at work, such as direct observation of 

alcohol or drug use or abuse, or physical symptoms or 
manifestations of being impaired due to alcohol or drug use as 
described in the educational materials provided to employees.  

(ii) Abnormal conduct or erratic behavior while at work or a 
significant deterioration in work performance. 

91

Item 8.



 

 69 

(iii) A credible source’s report of alcohol use or the use of drugs.  
The Mayor will have the final determination of who is a credible 
source. 

(iv) Evidence that an employee has tampered with any drug or 
alcohol test during the employee’s employment with the City. 

(v) Evidence that an employee has caused an accident while at 
work which resulted in an injury to a person for which injury, if 
suffered by an employee, a record or report could be required 
under Chapter 88 of the Iowa Code, or an accident that resulted 
in damage to property, including equipment, in an amount 
reasonably estimated at the time of the accident to exceed One 
Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00). 

(vi) Evidence that an employee has manufactured, sold, 
distributed/solicited, possessed, used or transferred drugs while 
on the City’s premises or while operating City-owned vehicles, 
machinery or equipment. 

(vii) The employee’s statement or admissions of drug use while he 
or she is a City employee. 

 
(c) Positive Test:  An employee tests positive for drugs if any trace of an 

illegal substance is detected following a drug test.  An employee tests 
positive for alcohol if he or she has a blood alcohol concentration equal 
to 0.04 or greater. 

 
(d) Illegal Drugs/Substances:  Any substance which cannot be legally 

obtained or is legal but has not been legally obtained.  This includes 
prescription medication for which the employee does not have a 
prescription and/or is not taken according to the prescription. 

 
(e) City Official:  Elected officers of the City, including the Mayor and City 

Council members. 
 

2. Notification 
  

(a) The City will notify applicants of this drug and alcohol testing policy at the 
time of their first interview.   

(b) The City will provide all employees with drug and alcohol education, 
including the effects of drugs and alcohol, signs and symptoms of drug and 
alcohol use, assistance available for those abusing drugs and alcohol, 
drugs and alcohol to be tested, and drug and alcohol testing requirements.   

(c) All drug testing results, and other confidential information will be kept 
confidential. 

(d) Drug and alcohol testing shall be done by an outside contractor as 
designated by the City. 

(e) Each employee and applicant will sign a form acknowledging receipt of 
these materials. 

 
3. Employee Drug Testing 

 
(a) Post-Accident Testing:  After an accident, testing shall be conducted on 

employees whose performance could have contributed to the accident if 

92

Item 8.



 

 70 

(1) it is allowed and/or required by state or federal law; or (2) reasonable 
suspicion exists.  

(b) Reasonable Suspicion Testing: 
(i) When any Supervisor, City Administrator or City Official has reasonable 

suspicion that a City employee is under the influence of drugs or alcohol 
while on duty or otherwise violating the terms of this policy, that 
Supervisor, City Administrator, or City Official shall require reasonable 
suspicion testing. 

(ii) If reasonable suspicion testing is required, the employee will not be 
permitted to drive to or from the testing or while at work until the test is 
returned, and then only if the test produces negative results.  The City 
will provide transportation to/from the testing at the City’s expense if 
necessary. 

 
4. Drug Testing Procedures 

 
(a) Drug and alcohol testing shall require the employee to present a reliable 

form of photo identification to the person collecting the sample. 
(b) Drug testing will be conducted at a location designated by a Supervisor or 

the City Administrator. 
(c) The City will designate the type of testing to be performed on the sample 

collected. 
(d) Drug and alcohol testing shall normally occur during or immediately before 

working hours begin or immediately after working hours.  The time required 
for such testing shall be considered work time for the purpose of 
compensation and benefits. 

(e) A specimen testing positive will undergo an additional test to confirm the 
initial result.  

(f) The drug screening tests selected shall be capable of identifying every 
major drug likely to be abused including, but not limited to marijuana, 
cocaine, heroin, amphetamine and barbiturates.  Personnel utilized for 
testing will be certified as qualified to collect urine samples or adequately 
trained in the collection process. 

(g) Any employee who breaches the confidentiality of testing information shall 
be subject to discipline. 

(h) The City shall pay all testing costs for pre-employment, reasonable 
suspicion, regularly scheduled or follow-up drug or alcohol testing ordered 
by the City. 

(i) In conducting drug or alcohol testing pursuant to this policy, the laboratory, 
the Medical Review Officer and the City shall ensure, to the extent feasible, 
that the testing records maintained by the City show only such information 
required to confirm or rule out the presence of prohibited alcohol or drugs 
in the body.  

 
5. Post-Testing Procedures 

  
(a) An employee’s negative drug test results shall be retained by the City.  The 

employee may request a copy of the negative drug test.  
(b) An employee who has a positive drug or alcohol test, either from random 

testing or reasonable suspicion testing, shall be subject to disciplinary 
action up to and including termination of employment. 

93

Item 8.



 

 71 

(c) If the employee is permitted to return to work, the employee may be 
required to submit to evaluation by a Substance Abuse Professional and 
undergo treatment recommended by the Substance Abuse Professional 
prior to returning to work.  If the employee successfully completes the 
treatment, no further disciplinary action will be taken against the employee.  
If the employee refuses to submit to the evaluation or fails to successfully 
complete treatment, the employee will be subject to further discipline up to 
and including termination of employment. The employee shall be 
responsible for all costs incurred when working with the Substance Abuse 
Professional.  

(d) If the Substance Abuse Professional determines the employee has a drug 
or alcohol-related problem, the employee will be required to do follow-up 
testing upon the employee’s return to work.  All follow-up testing will be 
unannounced and without prior notice to the employee and will be at the 
employee’s expense. 
 

6. Drug Test Results 
 

(a) All records pertaining to required drug tests shall remain confidential and 
shall not be disclosed without the written permission of the person whose 
records are sought.  The City Administrator shall have access to the 
records for purposes of employment decisions.  Computerized 
recordkeeping shall comply with this provision of the policy.   

(b) Drug test results and records shall be stored and securely retained for an 
indefinite period in a drug test file maintained by the City Administrator. 

 
7. Responsibility 

 
(a) It shall be the responsibility of the City Administrator, City Clerk, and Mayor 

to enforce this policy.  Employees are expected to report any suspicious 
behavior or suspected drug abuse of an employee. 

(b) It is the responsibility of each employee to abide by the procedures as 
outlined.  Any employee refusing to submit to a drug test request made 
under this policy will be subject to discipline up to and including termination 
of employment. 

 
(C) Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA) Provisions 

 
(1)  The Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA) requires alcohol 
and drug testing of drivers who are required to have an Iowa Commercial Driver’s 
License (CDL).  As such, alcohol and drug testing are a condition of employment 
for all employees required to have a CDL.  The DOT rules include procedures for 
urine drug testing and breath alcohol testing.  In addition to the policies described 
elsewhere in the drug and alcohol testing policy of this Handbook, these policies 
apply to CDL employees, including safety sensitive employees as defined in this 
section. 

 
(2)  DEFINITIONS 

 
(a) Commercial Driver:  This term and definition pertains to and includes all 

employees whose position requires the possession of a commercial 
driver’s license (CDL). 

94

Item 8.



 

 72 

 
(b) Designated Employee Representative (DER): The City Clerk has been 

designated by the City as the DER.  The DER shall receive all substance 
testing notices and results.  Questions regarding substance testing shall 
be directed to the DER.  

 
(c) DOT Drug Test:  The five controlled substances under DOT and FHWA 

rules and regulations are:  marijuana (THC), cocaine, opiates, 
phencyclidine (PCP), and amphetamines. 

 
(d)   Alcohol:  The intoxicating agent in beverage alcohol, ethyl alcohol, or 

other low molecular weight alcohol, including methyl and isopropyl 
alcohol. 

 
(e)   Alcohol Use:  The consumption of any beverage, mixture, or 

preparation, including medication containing alcohol. 
 

(f)   Substance Abuse Professional:  Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) 
shall mean an Employee Assistance Program (EAP), or addiction 
counselor (certified by the National Licensed Physician, or a licensed or 
certified psychologist, social worker, employee, and an Association of 
Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors Certification Commission).  SAP 
and EAP are used interchangeably in this manual. 

 
(g)  Breath Alcohol Technician (BAT):  One who has undergone training to 

conduct Alcohol Testing. 
 

(h) Safety-sensitive Employee:  An employee who is required by the 
position they hold to possess a Commercial Motor Vehicle License (CDL) 
and who is preparing to operate a commercial motor vehicle; is currently 
operating a commercial motor vehicle; has just completed operating a 
motor vehicle; or who employs/supervises an employee who drives a 
CDL. 
 

(i) Refusal to Test:  Behavior that qualifies as a refusal to test includes 
refusal to take the test, inability to provide sufficient quantities of breath, 
saliva, or urine to be tested without a valid medical explanation; 
tampering with or attempting to adulterate the specimen; interfering with 
the collection procedure; not immediately reporting to the collection site; 
failing to remain at the collection site until the collection process is 
complete; having a test result reported by an MRO as adulterated or 
substituted; or leaving the scene of an accident without a valid reason 
before the tests have been conducted 

 
(3)  SPECIFIC PROVISIONS 

 
(a)  Training:   
 

Person(s) designated to determine whether reasonable suspicion exists to 
require a CDL driver of the City to undergo alcohol or drug testing will receive 
a minimum of sixty (60) minutes of training on alcohol misuse and sixty (60) 
additional minutes on controlled substance abuse.  The training shall include 

95

Item 8.



 

 73 

physical, behavioral, speech, and performance indicators of probable alcohol 
misuse and use of controlled substances. 

 
(b)  Testing of Prospective Employees: 
 

All prospective employees of the City applying for positions requiring a CDL 
shall be informed in the advertisement for the position and in the first interview 
that a condition of employment includes passing a drug test as part of the pre-
employment process.  The DOT drug test protocol consists of a split urine 
sample.  The sample will be tested for marijuana, cocaine, opiates, 
phencyclidine, and amphetamines and will be required of all applicants for CDL 
positions. 
 

Prospective employees who refuse to take the respective drug test, or whose 
test verified positive for one of the substances, shall be ineligible for 
employment with the City from the date of the test results. 
 

(c)  Securing Information from Previous Employers: 
 

If a person is being hired by the City in a position requiring a CDL license and 
that person, during the previous two years, has worked as a CDL licensed 
driver for another employer, the City Clerk shall perform a reference check 
covering the previous two years.  The following information shall be requested 
from the previous employer: 
 

• Records of any positive alcohol or drug tests; 

• Records of any refusals to test; 

• Information related to any chemical dependency evaluation and 
completion of treatment. 

 
(d) Prohibited Activity: 

 
In addition to the prohibited activity listed generally in this policy, CDL 
employees are also prohibited from the following conduct: 

 

• Employees shall not consume alcohol while on duty. 

• Employees shall not consume alcohol for four hours prior to on-duty 
time. 

• Employees shall not consume alcohol for eight hours following an 
accident or until the employee undergoes a post-accident drug test, 
whichever occurs first. 

• An employee shall not report for or remain on duty if the employee has 
used any controlled substances unless such substances (1) have been 
prescribed by a physician and (2) the physician has advised in writing 
that the substance does not adversely affect the employee’s ability to 
safely operate a Commercial Motor Vehicle.  The employee must 
provide the written statement from the physician to the DER prior to 
reporting to work. 

 
If this portion conflicts with any other portion of this policy, the stricter policy 
shall apply. 

96

Item 8.



 

 74 

(e)  Random Testing: 
 

The City shall conduct random drug and alcohol testing on all employees 
required to have a CDL license or who are safety-sensitive employees.  The 
percentage testing rates for drug and alcohol will change from year-to-year as 
designated and published by the Iowa Department of Transportation.  Current 
testing rates will be kept on file in the City Administrator’s Office. 
 
The selection of employees for random alcohol and drug testing shall be made 
by a computer-based random selection program.  Under the selection process 
used, each employee shall have an equal chance of being tested each time 
selections are made.  Random alcohol and drug tests shall be unannounced 
and the dates for administering random alcohol and drug tests shall be spread 
reasonably throughout the calendar year. 
 

Safety-sensitive employees are subject to random alcohol tests before, after, 
or while performing safety-sensitive functions. 
 
(f) General Testing Requirements: 

 
All drug tests shall be conducted on urine samples collected by the 
Regional Medical Center.  Urine samples will be sent to a DHHS Laboratory 
(UnityPoint Drug and Alcohol Testing Services) for screening and 
confirmation. 
 

(g) Special Provisions Regarding Alcohol Testing: 
 
A Breath Alcohol Technician (BAT) using breath-testing devices shall 
conduct all alcohol tests.  If the driver or safety-sensitive employee tests at 
least .02, but less than .04, the employee shall be removed from the job for 
at least twenty-four hours.  The employee may be sent home for the 
remainder of the day.  The employee may return to work at his/her regularly 
scheduled shift after the completion of the following: 

• After at least twenty-four (24) hours have elapsed from the breathalyzer 
test reading of at least .02, but less than .04; and 

• The employee has taken another breathalyzer test, which indicates an 
alcohol concentration of less than .02. 

 
When employees test 0.04 or greater on a breath alcohol test or have a verified 
positive drug test, they will be placed in an unpaid status and referred to 
EAP/SAP for evaluation, counseling, treatment, return-to-work testing, and 
follow-up testing.  The opportunity for evaluation, counseling, and treatment 
will be made available only on the first positive drug or alcohol test. 
 

(h)  Return to Duty: 
 

An employee will be subject to return-to-duty testing if: 

• They tested 0.02 or higher on a breath alcohol test; or 

• They have a verified positive drug test result. 
 

In the event an employee tests .04 or higher, a return-to-duty test is required, 
after the employee has been referred to the SAP (Substance Abuse 

97

Item 8.



 

 75 

Professional)/EAP (Employee Assistance Program) for evaluation and 
treatment.  The employee must agree to undergo treatment in order to be 
returned to work.  The SAP/EAP will decide if the employee can be returned to 
work while undergoing treatment.  The employee must continue to be 
compliant with the recommendations of the SAP/EAP in order to continue 
working while undergoing treatment. 
 
Return-to-duty testing need not be confined to the substance involved in the 
original violation.  Additional testing may be ordered if the SAP/EAP 
determines that this is warranted. 

 
(i)  Follow-up Testing: 

 
If an SAP/EAP professional determines that follow-up testing is needed, the 
City will ensure that the driver is subject to randomly selected and 
unannounced tests following the driver’s return-to-duty testing. 
 
The number and frequency of the follow-up tests are to be determined by the 
SAP/EAP professional but must consist of at least six tests during the first 
twelve months following the driver’s return-to-duty. 
 
Follow-up testing may be done for sixty (60) months; however, only the 
SAP/EAP can terminate the need for follow-up testing, and this can be done 
only after the first twelve (12) months are completed and six (6) testing periods 
have passed. 
 
Follow-up testing need not be for the substance involved in the original 
violation.  The SAP/EAP may recommend poly-substance testing.  Follow-up 
testing for alcohol can only be performed when the driver is performing safety-
sensitive functions prior to or immediately after performing safety sensitive 
functions. 
 
Employees refusing SAP/EAP referral, evaluation, and treatment, or 
employees who do not satisfactorily complete the prescribed treatment as 
recommended by the SAP/EAP, will be subject to termination. 
 

(j)  Post-Accident Testing: 
 

As soon as practicable following an accident involving a City CDL driver 
employee covered by this policy operating in a safety-sensitive position, the 
City shall test each surviving City covered CDL driver for alcohol and drugs: 
 

• Who was performing driving functions with respect to the vehicle if the 
accident involved the loss of human life, regardless of fault; or, 

• Who receives a citation at the site under state or local law for a moving 
traffic violation arising from the accident; and, 

• Any time one or more individuals receives injuries requiring immediate 
transport to a medical facility; or 

• When one or more vehicles have incurred disabling damages that require 
either vehicle to be towed from the scene; or 

• When reasonable suspicion exists. 
 

98

Item 8.



 

 76 

If a breathalyzer test is not administered within two (2) hours following the 
accident, the supervisor of the driver shall prepare and submit to the City 
Administrator a report stating the reasons why the test was not promptly 
administered.  This report must be signed by both the Department Head and 
the City Administrator. 
 

If the breathalyzer test is not administered within eight (8) hours following the 
accident, the supervisor of the driver shall cease further attempts and prepare 
and submit to the City Administrator a report stating the reasons why the test 
was not administered within eight (8) hours.  This report must be signed by 
both the Department Head and the City Administrator. 
 

If a drug test is not administered within thirty-two (32) hours of the accident, 
the supervisor shall cease further attempts to arrange for the test and shall 
prepare and submit to the City Administrator a report stating the reasons why 
the test was not administered within thirty-two (32) hours.  This report must be 
signed by both the Department Head and the City Administrator. 
 

Following a vehicle accident that requires alcohol/drug testing, the driver shall 
make himself/herself readily accessible for testing.  Being unavailable for 
testing will be treated the same as a positive test.  Following an accident which 
requires testing, drivers shall not consume any alcohol for eight hours or until 
they have received post-accident testing. 
 

The results of a breath or blood test for the use of alcohol, or a urine test for 
the use of drugs conducted by federal, state, or local officials having 
independent authority for the tests shall be considered to meet the 
requirements of this section, provided such tests conform to applicable federal, 
state, or local requirements and that the results of the tests are obtained by the 
City. 
 

If any employee fails to produce a sufficient amount of breath to properly 
administer a breath alcohol test, then the employee shall be referred to a 
medical doctor.  The medical doctor will review the employee’s pulmonary 
health and provide the City a written report concerning the employee’s ability 
to produce an adequate amount of breath for testing.  Failure to provide an 
adequate amount of breath may be regarded as a refusal to submit to testing. 
 

(k)  Reasonable Suspicion Testing: 
 

When a supervisor or the City Administrator has a reasonable suspicion that 
an employee is under the influence of alcohol or drugs while on duty, that 
supervisor or City Administrator may require reasonable suspicion testing.  The 
reasonable suspicion must be based on specific contemporaneous, articulated 
observations concerning the appearance, behavior, speech, or body odors of 
the employee.  If reasonable suspicion is determined, the employee shall be 
required to submit to a breathalyzer test and/or drug test. 
 

Supervisors or the City Administrator who make a reasonable suspicion 
determination must have training including 60 minutes of alcohol misuse and 
60 minutes of controlled substance use.  Follow-up documentation of 
reasonable suspicion must be made in writing and placed in the Drug/Alcohol 
section of the medical records. 

99

Item 8.



 

 77 

(l)  Challenge of Drug Test Results: 
 
The second portion (split) (Section 5.2) of the DOT Urine Specimen is reserved 
for challenging testing.  An employee or applicant who wishes to challenge a 
positive drug test must do so within seventy-two (72) hours following 
notification of the positive result.  The employee or applicant must notify the 
City that he/she wishes to challenge the test and must pay for the re-test which 
must be processed at a DHHS certified laboratory.  There are no provisions to 
challenge a positive alcohol test. 
 
(m)  Refusal Test: 
 
If the employee should refuse to take an alcohol test, there will be a 
presumption that the employee has a reading of .04 or greater alcohol 
concentration.  The refusal shall be deemed an act of insubordination, which 
shall result in discipline up to and including termination. 
 
If the employee should refuse to take a drug test or to provide urine, there shall 
be a presumption that the employee’s drug test is positive, and the refusal shall 
be deemed an act of insubordination, which shall result in discipline up to and 
including termination. 
 
In this instance, the employee shall be placed on administrative leave until a 
pre-disciplinary hearing is convened to determine the appropriate course of 
action.  Termination may be appropriate, or the employee may be referred to 
a Substance Abuse Professional for evaluation and recommendations.  The 
employee shall not be allowed to return to work until he/she has been 
evaluated by an SAP/EAP professional, has complied with the recommended 
rehabilitation, has a negative result on a return-to-duty alcohol and/or drug test, 
and has complied with the requirements imposed by the disciplinary action. 
 
(n)  Retention of Records: 
 
The City shall maintain drug and alcohol records in a secure location with 
controlled access.  Computerized record keeping may be used to comply with 
the provision of this policy. 
 
The following records shall be maintained for a minimum of five years: 
 

• Records of alcohol test results indicating an alcohol concentration of .02% 
or greater. 

• Records of verified positive drug test results. 

• Documentation of refusal to take required alcohol and/or drug tests. 

• Equipment calibration documentation. 

• Evaluation and referrals. 
 

Records related to the alcohol and drug collection process and training shall 
be maintained for a minimum of two years. 
 
Records of negative and cancelled drug test results and alcohol test results 
with a concentration of less than .02 shall be maintained for a minimum of one 
year. 

100

Item 8.



 

 78 

The City shall provide copies of these records to other employers when former 
employees of the City have applied for other employment and have signed the 
appropriate release of information authorization form. 
 
(o)  Reporting of Results: 
 
The City shall, by March 15 of each year, report the results of its alcohol and 
drug tests on its affected employees as required by federal regulation. 
 
(p)  Policy Administration: 
 
The City shall be responsible for administering this policy. 

 
22.5 Smoke Free Air Act 
 

Smoking is prohibited in all of the City’s buildings or on any of the grounds surrounding 
the City’s buildings, including entrances to the City’s buildings and parking lots.  Smoking 
is also prohibited in all vehicles owned, leased or provided by the City to employees for 
their use. 

 
22.6 Vehicle Safety: Seatbelt/Restraint Policy/Distracted Driving 

 
(A) When using City equipment and vehicles on duty, employees are expected to exercise 
care, perform required maintenance and follow all operating instructions, safety standards 
and guidelines. 

 
If an employee is authorized to operate a City vehicle in the course of his/her assigned 
work, or if the employee operates his/her own vehicle in performing the employee’s job, 
the employee must adhere to the following rules: 

 
1. Employee must be an Iowa licensed driver with the proper endorsements and be 

insurable. 
2. Employee must maintain mileage reports when using his/her personal vehicle. 
3. Employee is responsible for following all the manufacturer’s recommended 

maintenance schedules to maintain valid warranties, and for following the 
manufacturer’s recommended oil change schedule. 

4. The City provides insurance on City vehicles, however, for any accident the 
employee will be responsible for the cost associated with any fines, moving or 
parking violation, if upon investigation, the employee is determined to have been 
in violation of any federal, state or city law, ordinance or policy. 

5. Employee must keep the vehicle clean at all times.  Employee must also wash and 
vacuum the vehicle as often as necessary.  Employee will be reimbursed for 
his/her reasonable expense of keeping the vehicle clean.  Employee should retain 
any receipts for reimbursement. 

6. Persons not authorized or employed by the City cannot operate or ride in a City 
vehicle. The City Administrator or a Department Head may authorize non-City 
employees to ride in a city vehicle for work-related purposes.  

7. Prior to operation of any City vehicle, the employee’s immediate supervisor will 
train the employee on the appropriate steps to take if the employee is involved in 
an accident – filling out the accident report, getting names of witnesses and so on. 

8. The employee should notify his/her supervisor if any equipment, machines, tools 
or vehicles appear to be damaged or defective or are in need of repair. 

101

Item 8.



 

 79 

 
The improper, careless, negligent, destructive or unsafe use or operation of equipment or 
vehicles can result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. 
 
Employees off duty shall not use City vehicles, equipment or facilities unless previously 
approved by their immediate supervisor. When a vehicle is in the possession of an 
employee during off duty hours, it shall only be used for City business when the need 
arises.  It shall not be used for personal errands or other activities. As approved by the 
City Administrator/Mayor, certain employees may be authorized to drive City vehicles to 
their homes. The use of City vehicles for commuting shall be considered taxable 
compensation to the employee. 

 
(B) Seatbelt/Restraint:  Iowa Code § 321.445 requires the driver and front seat occupants 
of a vehicle to wear a safety belt any time the vehicle is in forward motion on a street or 
highway in the state of Iowa.  

 
It is the City’s policy that all employees and any other occupants of City vehicles and 
equipment, and personal and rental cars used on official City business, use safety belts 
and shoulder restraints. 
 
Per the exemption in Iowa Code § 321.445(b), in specific situations including garbage/yard 
waste truck operators on a collection route, employees on a meter reading route or 
performing street patching work are exempt from the safety belt requirements while 
actively performing the job duties requiring the employee to leave from and reenter the 
vehicle at frequent intervals, providing the vehicle does not exceed 25 miles per hour 
between stops.  Employees shall comply with the law at all other times. 
 
Employees operating equipment with rollover protection (“ROPS”) shall also wear safety 
belts when operating the equipment.  
 
Employees are also prohibited from riding in or on parts of a vehicle not designed for 
human occupancy.  This includes, but is not limited to, pickup and truck boxes, fenders, 
trailers, steps, bumpers, tail gates and emergency vehicles.   
 
Employees must take appropriate safety measures into consideration when driving or 
traveling in motorized City vehicles or equipment. 
 
Failure to comply with these rules is a violation of state law punishable by citation and fine 
and a violation of the City’s safety policy, which is cause for disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination of employment. 
 

(C) Distracted Driving Policy:  An employee using a cellular phone while operating a City-
owned vehicle is encouraged to use hands-free technology or cease motor vehicle 
operations during the course of the conversation.  The City deems it unsafe to hold a 
cellular phone while driving and, therefore, requires the use of hands-free technology.  Any 
use of a hand-held cellular phone while driving should be kept to an absolute minimum 
and only during emergency situations.  Further, any use of a cellular phone, including 
hands-free technology while in a vehicle, public or private, is strongly discouraged. 

 
(D) Accidents: Any accident whether or not damage results to City vehicles, equipment 
and/or facilities shall be reported immediately to the City Administrator/Finance Director.  

102

Item 8.



 

 80 

When deemed appropriate by the City Administrator, the accident will be investigated, and 
subsequent action taken.  
 
(E) Traffic Violations: Penalties/fines resulting from moving traffic violations and/or non-
compliance with transportation requirements (such as tarping at the landfill) while 
operating City equipment are the responsibility of the employee-operator.  Violations will 
result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. 
 
(F) Because of the need for Oelwein services to sometimes be provided at times other 
than regular working hours, and because of the necessity to have certain Oelwein 
employees available to respond to an emergency situation immediately; certain 
employees are to be allowed to drive City vehicles to and from work.  These employees 
are designated by the City Administrator and are on call 24/7 to respond to an emergency 
or provide continuity of City services. These employees shall not use City vehicles for 
personal purposes except commuting to and from work.  Furthermore, these employees 
shall not allow any non-City employees to ride in these vehicles without the express, 
written permission of the City Administrator.  Any employee found to have violated this 
policy shall be disciplined up to and including termination.   
 

POLICY 23 – WELLNESS CENTER MEMBERSHIP BENEFIT 
 
23.1  Employee Wellness Center Membership  

 
To promote a healthy lifestyle as well as to promote the success of Williams Wellness 
Center (WWC), all full-time, 40-hour per week City employees are eligible for an annual 
single, couple, or family membership to the WWC.  All part-time employees are eligible to 
receive a single, couple, or family membership to the WWC.  Membership applications 
can be picked up at the Williams Wellness Center.   
 

23.2 Enrollment Period 
 
Membership is valid for one (1) year so long as the employee is in good standing with the 
City and will need to be applied for annually. Enrollment period will be June 1st through 
July 31st each year.  Membership will not be granted to full-time employees after the 
enrollment period until the following year. 
 
Newly hired full time employees will be eligible for enrollment upon completion of 
probationary period and enrollment period will last for 120 days, beginning at the end date 
of probationary period. Memberships will be pro-rated until the next annual enrollment 
period. Employees are eligible for 24-hour access for no fee. An employee will receive 
one 24-hour access key.  If the employee seeks an extra key, the employee must pay the 
full annual rate of $60.00. 

 
23.3 Family/Members Defined 

 
Memberships are available only to full-time employees and their families within the 
household. A family member can only join if/when the City Employee has completed the 
necessary membership paperwork.  
 
Household is defined as two or more adults living in the same residence and their 
dependent children who are under eighteen (18) years of age whose permanent residence 
remains in the employee’s home can be included on the membership.  Dependent children 

103

Item 8.



 

 81 

who are between the ages of 18 and 24 may be included on a membership so long as the 
child is a full-time student.  

 
23.4 No Liability 

 
Any employee taking advantage of this optional membership offer does so at his/her own 
risk.  The City will not be liable for any accidents or injuries sustained while a member is 
using the fitness facility or using any of the equipment during the exercise process.  This 
includes but is not limited to any accidents that occur from driving to or from the fitness 
facility.  The employee also assumes the risk and expense of transportation to and from 
the fitness center.  Each employee using the WWC will do so in his/her own time off, not 
as an employee, and not during work hours. The City assumes no workers’ compensation 
liability during the exercise process, which must take place outside of work hours.  
 

23.5 Employment End Date 
 
This WWC membership offer will cease upon any employee’s final day of employment 
with the City of Oelwein and the employee is responsible for returning any key fobs he/she 
may have used for 24-hour access.  

 
 23.6 Oelwein Police Reserve Officers & Fire Department Volunteers 
 

The Oelwein City Council has the upmost appreciation and respect for the volunteer work 
of our Oelwein Police Reserve Officers and Oelwein Fire Department Volunteers. As such, 
we offer a single membership to any Oelwein Police Reserve Officer or OFD Volunteer 
who has completed his/her probationary period, is in good standing with his/her respective 
department and been approved for this benefit by the Chief of his/her department.  Each 
eligible member should take an approval sheet signed by his/her Department’s Chief, 
validating eligibility to City Hall in order to begin the membership paperwork.  24-hour 
access is available for Reserves & Volunteers. 
 

Policy 24 – Purchasing Policy 
 

24.1 Overview 
 
 The City of Oelwein Purchasing Policy is hereby created to: 
 

1. Clarify certain procedures and safeguards governing purchases of supplies and 
services by the City. 

2. Provide for increased public confidence in the procedures followed in City purchasing 
decisions. 

3. Ensure the fair and equitable treatment of all persons who are involved with the City’s 
purchasing procedures. 

4. Provide increased economy in City purchasing activities and maximize the purchasing 
value of public monies for the City. 

 
24.2 Spending Limits 
 

The spending limit of the City Administrator is set by Ordinance by the City Council.  This 
limit is $10,000.  Any item over this limit must be brought to the City Council for approval. 
 
 

104

Item 8.



 

 82 

Department Heads’ spending limit is set at $5,000.  Department Heads will be held 
responsible for all purchases in their department.  All receipts turned in must have an 
account number attached where the purchase will be charged. 
 
Any item that is not a reoccurring expense over $10,000 must be sent to the City Council 
for approval. 
 

24.3 Reoccurring Purchases 
 
 For services or products that are required more than once a fiscal year, the aggregate 

total of the purchases will be used to determine the purchasing procedures that should be 
followed.  Reoccurring purchases will not be subject to the competitive sealed bid process, 
unless requested by the City Administrator. 

 
24.4 Budgeted Items 
 
 All items specifically stated in the City Council’s approved budget do not require a second 

council approval.  This includes items over $10,000.  Items over the Department Head 
limit must be approved by the City Administrator. 

 
24.5 Buying Local 
 
 By virtue of statutory authority, preference will be given to products and provisions grown 

and produced within the State of Iowa.  The department supervisors shall make every 
effort to support Iowa products when making a purchase.  Tied responses to solicitations, 
regardless of the type of solicitation, shall be decided in favor of the Iowa products. 

 
 Iowa Code, Chapter 73.1, Preference Authorized: 
 “Every…city, and every person acting as contracting or purchasing agent for any 

such…governing body shall use only those products and provisions grown and coal 
produced within the state of Iowa, when they are found in marketable quantities in the 
state and are of a quality reasonably suited to the purpose intended, and can be secured 
without additional cost over foreign products or products of other states…” 

 
 For purchases over $5,000, if an Oelwein-based company’s bid is within 5% of the low-

bid and all other specifications of the request for proposal are met by both companies, the 
city council may award the contract to the Oelwein-based company.  An Oelwein based 
company is one that sells or produces products in Oelwein. 

 
24.6 Purchase Order Procedure 
 
 Any item purchased over the allowed limit must generate a purchase order.  Purchase 

orders will be generated by the City Hall Secretary and signed off by the City Administrator. 
 
24.7 Credit Card Rules 
 
 Credit card spending limits are $10,000 for the City Administrator and $5,000 for 

Department Heads. 
 
24.8 Allowable Expenses 
 

• Authorized travel and training expenses. 

105

Item 8.



 

 83 

• Authorized expenditures for services or supplies. 

• Reimbursement for alcoholic beverages is prohibited. 

• Elected Officials, City Administrator, or Directors may purchase business meals 
for themselves.  See Section 16.1 for meal spending limits and further restrictions. 

• All expenses must follow the Oelwein Purchasing Policy.  
 
24.9 Documentation 
 
 Original, itemized receipts are required to validate expenses on City issued credit cards.  

Restaurant receipts must include both the itemized bill and the credit card receipt that 
identifies the tip amount.  Conference receipts must include training details for each 
employee attending the training.  Hotel receipts must include daily room rates and itemized 
receipts for any additional room charges.  Transportation receipts should show charges 
for airfare, cab fare and tip amount if applicable. 

 
24.10 Unapproved Expenditures 
 
 Employees and Elected Officials will be responsible for all unapproved expenditures made 

on the City Issued Credit Card.  Expenditure reports will be reviewed by both the 
Department Head or Superintendent and City Administrator for adherence to policy. 

 
24.11 Store Credit Accounts 
 
 It is the understanding of the Oelwein City Council and the City Administrator that in order 

to conduct day-to-day business operations of the City, store credit accounts are needed 
for supplies.  As such, several store credit accounts are made available for employees in 
the local surrounding area at frequented businesses. 

 
 Store Accounts are to be used for items related to city business, each purchase needs to 

be identified at the time of sale by the Department’s name, signed for by an employee 
only.  Receipts for purchases made on store credit accounts must also be returned to the 
City Hall Billing Clerk in a timely manner to ensure statements are paid on time and without 
penalty. 

 
 It is the ultimate responsibility of the Department Head or Supervisor to ensure itemized 

receipts are turned to City Hall with the identified department name or proper billing code. 
 
 Employees using a credit card or a store account can be held personally liable for 

unauthorized purchases. 
 
24.12 Emergency Purchases 
 
 The Oelwein Purchasing Policy may be circumvented if a situation arises that meets any 

of the following emergency procurement conditions: 
 

1. The situation threatens public health, welfare or safety; or 
2. There is need to protect the health, welfare or safety of persons occupying or visiting 

a public improvement or property located adjacent to the public improvement; or 
3. The department must act to preserve critical services or programs; or 
4. The need is a result of events or circumstances not reasonably foreseeable. 

 
 

106

Item 8.



 

 84 

In the event that any of these situations occur, purchases of emergency need items can 
be made without approvals required by this policy.  At the conclusion of the situation, 
formal documentation will be required by staff participating in the event to outline the 
occurrence, and justify the expenditures made under the emergency exemption.  These 
exemptions will be submitted to the City Administrator and if costs exceed $5,000, to City 
Council for approval. 
 

24.13 Quotes and Bidding 
 
 The city will follow all state bid requirements set out in Iowa State code chapter 26. 
 
 Any item over $10,000 must go through a competitive bid process.  This includes a 

minimum of two quotes.  When the city makes request for bids, all requests must include 
a specification sheet that is accurate and detailed. 

 
 All change orders under $10,000 can be approved by the City Administrator 
 
24.14 Signatures in Lieu of Absence 
 
 The City Clerk may sign for an absent City Administrator 
 
24.15 Bulk Purchases 
 
 Whenever feasible, the city will work to buy all items in bulk through a single vendor. 
 
24.16 Purchasing Policy Abuse 
 
 Any abuse of the Oelwein Purchasing Policy can lead to disciplinary action including 

termination. 
 
24.17 Federal Procurement Requirements 
 
 This section is added with guidance from Iowa Homeland Security to abide by federal 

procurement guidelines. 
 

In compliance with Uniform Grant Guidance in Title 2 Code of Federal Regulation (C.F.R.) 
Grants and Agreements, Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, it is the policy of the City of Oelwein to adhere 
to these requirements. For procurement, all non-Federal entities must follow 2 CFR Part 
200 Subpart D Subsections §200.318 through §200.327, and Appendix II to Part 200-
Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards. These 
standards are accessible online at: https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-
idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl, and below.  

107

Item 8.

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl


 

 85 

 
 

CITY OF OELWEIN 
EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM 

(CIVIL SERVICE QUALIFIED) 
 

This Personnel Policy Manual (“the or this manual”) describes important information about 
employment with the City of Oelwein, Iowa (“the or this City”).  It has been prepared to make me 
aware of what I can expect in the way of privileges and benefits; and what the City will expect of 
me in terms of behavior and performance during my employment.  
 
The policies in this manual are intended to apply to all City officials and employees, including 
volunteer firefighters and ambulance employees.  This manual and its policy statements 
supersede and have control over all prior and existing policy statements, representations, 
understandings or agreements, whether verbal or written, dealing with the same subject matter.   
 
Since departments vary in their duties and responsibilities, not all policies and regulations can be 
covered in this manual.  I understand that I may direct inquiries for additional information to my 
department or the City Administrator. 
 
The use of masculine or feminine gender in references or titles shall be considered to include 
both genders and is not a sex limitation.  
 
No policies in this manual shall supersede any provisions of state or federal law or any valid 
Collective Bargaining Agreements (“CBA’s”) entered into by the City and its employees.  Should 
a provision of this manual conflict with either state or federal law or a valid CBA, the state or 
federal law or valid CBA shall supersede this manual.   
 
The City reserves the right to change or eliminate any of the policies or benefits in this manual.  
Since the information, policies, and benefits described herein are necessarily subject to change, 
I acknowledge that revisions may occur; and that such changes will be communicated to me 
through official notices.  Only the City Council can adopt any revisions to the policies in this 
manual.  
 
By signing below, employee provides full authority for the City to withhold the amounts identified 
above in the following policies from his/her final paycheck: Sections 7.13, 1-0.7 and 18.2.  By 
signing below, the employee acknowledges the parties intend this to serve as a valid authorization 
for withholding from a final paycheck under Iowa Code Section 91A.5, as amended from time to 
time. 
 
I acknowledge this manual is neither a contract of employment nor a legal document.  I have 
received the manual and I understand it is my responsibility to read and comply with the policies 
contained in this manual and any revisions made to it. If I have any questions about this manual, 
I understand that I should consult my Department Head or the City Administrator. 

 
 

_______________________________   
Employee’s Name (Printed)  

 
 

_______________________________  __________________________ 
Employee’s Signature     Date 

108

Item 8.



RESOLUTION NO. __________-2023 
 

Resolution Setting a Public Hearing for October 23, 2023 at 6:00 PM in the Oelwein City Council 
Chambers to allow for adoption of the Oelwein Comprehensive Plan 

 
 

WHEREAS, the city has worked for a year to update and refresh their Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan adoption meeting must be published in accordance to Iowa 

code Section 414.3; and   
 
WHEREAS, the city is allowing comment which is above and beyond the state requirements; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Oelwein, Iowa Sets a Public Hearing for 

October 23, 2023 at 6:00 PM in the Oelwein City Council Chambers to allow for adoption of the Oelwein 
Comprehensive Plan 

 
Passed and approved this 9th day of October, 2023. 

 
 
  
 
                          _____________________________ 
                   Brett DeVore, Mayor  

 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Dylan Mulfinger, City Administrator 
 
Recorded October 10, 2023. 
 
 

It was moved by ________ and seconded by ________ that the  
Resolution as read be adopted, and upon roll call there were: 
             AYES           NAYS      ABSENT        ABSTAIN 
Stewart 
Weber                                                                       
Lenz                                                                          
Garrigus 
Seeders                                                                          
Payne 

 

109

Item 9.



RESOLUTION NO. __________-2023 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING TEMPORARY CLOSURE OF PUBLIC WAYS OR GROUNDS FOR  
OELWEIN CHAMBER AND AREA DEVELOPMENT EVENTS 

 
WHEREAS, Iowa Code Section 364. 12 (2) states that " a city shall keep all public 

grounds, streets, sidewalks, alleys, bridges, culverts, overpasses, underpasses, grade crossing 
separations and approaches, public ways, squares, and commons open, in repair, and free from 
nuisance, with the following exceptions "; and  
 

WHEREAS, Iowa Code Section 364. 12 (2) (a) states that "Public ways and grounds may 
be temporarily closed by resolution "; and  
 

WHEREAS, Oelwein Chamber & Area Development have requested temporarily closure 
of streets and parks for the following events, locations and times: 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Oelwein, Iowa that  
 
Oelwein Chamber and Area Development organizers are authorized to temporarily close 

the aforementioned requested streets and park. 
 

Passed and Approved this 9th day of October, 2023. 

        

   

                   _____________________________ 
                   Brett DeVore, Mayor  

Event Location of Street Closures Date & Time 

Olde Tyme 
Christmas 

10 Block of North Frederick to Veridian drive-
through, the 10 and 100 block of South Frederick, 

the 10 block of East Charles to alley and the 10 
block of West Charles 

Friday, December 1, 2023 1:30 P.M. – 10:00 
P.M. 

Parade of 
Lights 

120 North Frederick (VFW) on North Frederick to 
200 South Frederick (Strang's). Then West on 
Second Street and back to the Log Cabin Park. 

Friday, December 1, 2023 8:00 P.M. until 
conclusion of parade 

110

Item 10.



 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Dylan Mulfinger, City Administrator 
 
Recorded October 10, 2023. 
 
 
 

It was moved by ________ and seconded by _______ the  
Resolution as read be adopted, and upon roll call there were: 
             AYES           NAYS      ABSENT        ABSTAIN 
Stewart  
Weber                                                            
Lenz                                                              
Garrigus                   
Seeders                                                                        
Payne  
 

 

 

    

111

Item 10.



September 29, 2023 

Oelwein City Council 

20 Second Ave. SW 

Oelwein, IA 50662 

Oelwein Chamber and Area Development 

Dear Mayor Devore, City Administrator Mulfinger, and City Council Members: 

The Oelwein Chamber & Area Development is requesting permission to close various streets and alleys 

for our 2023 Olde Tyme Christmas event. We would like to request use of city barricades at the event. 

• Olde Tyme Christmas will be Friday, December 1st. We request permission to close the 10

block of North Frederick to Veridian drive-through, the 10 and 100 block of South Frederick,

and also the 10 block of East Charles to alley and 10 block of West Charles, from

approximately 1:30 p.m. until 10 p.m.

• We will also be using ATVs for set-up and during the event.

• As in the past, there will be carriage rides from the alley by Margaret's Crafts and

proceeding to South Frederick to 1st St. SW and then return to the alley by Margaret's Crafts.

• We are also planning a Parade of Lights at 8:00 p.m., which travels from the VFW location

on North Frederick to Strang's on South Frederick. The parade will then progress west on

Second Street and back to the Log Cabin Park. As in the past, we would like to request

additional help from the Police Department with traffic control at the intersections during

the parade.

• All activities will take a break at 6pm while fireworks take place. A permit will be applied for

through the Oelwein Police Department. Fireworks will be shot off from the location near

Oakdale Cemetery.

Thanks much for your consideration in this matter. 

;;;;J� 
Deb Howard, Executive Director 
Oelwein Chamber & Area Development 

112

Item 10.



RESOLUTION NO. ______- 2023 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING SALE AND TRASFER OF CITY’S OWNED REAL  ESTATE 

LOCATED AT 9 – 1st Street SW, OELWEIN, FAYETTE COUNTY, IOWA 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Oelwein, Iowa owns the following described real estate: 

 

The South 64 feet of the East 40 feet of Block 1, Homestead Addition to Oelwein, 

Fayette County, Iowa 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution # 5463-2023 the Council scheduled a Public Hearing on the 

proposed sale of the above-described property for October 9, 2023 at 6:00 p.m., during the 

regular City Council meeting to be held in the City Council Chambers, Oelwein City Hall, 20 2nd 

Ave. SW, Oelwein, Iowa, and 

 

WHEREAS, notice of the Public Hearing was published in the Oelwein Daily Register 

on October 3, 2023, consistent with the requirements of §364.7 and §362.3 of the Iowa Code, 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor opened the Public Hearing, accepted public comment, received 

and considered any written comments received in advance of the Public Hearing, and upon the 

conclusion of the receipt of comments closed the public hearing, and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council discussed the proposed sale of said real estate and found 

that the City did not have a continuing use for the above-described property, that the property did 

not otherwise serve a public purpose, and that the sale of said property would, therefore, be in the 

best interest of the City, and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council also discussed the value of the real estate, the value to the 

community of the potential uses for the property, and in consideration of the above and 

foregoing, determined it to be appropriate and in the best interests of the City to approve the sale 

of said property to Shama Ministries for the sum of $1.00, based upon the understanding that 

Shama Ministries will invest in the renovation and rehabilitation of the property. 

  

 BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the city of Oelwein, Iowa, as follows: 

 

Section 1. That the property described herein shall be transferred to Shama Ministries for the 

sum of $1.00 

Section 2. That the property is being sold as is. 

Section 3. That the property shall be transferred by Quit Claim Deed with no abstract to be 

provided. 

Section 4. That the Quit Claim Deed, and related Clerk’s Affidavit, shall be recorded at the 

expense of the Buyer. 

Section 5. The City Administrator shall be authorized to execute the QCD, and any other 

documents related to the approved transfer of this property as set forth above. 

113

Item 11.



Section 6. Action on this Resolution shall be final upon the delivery of the Deed to the 

Buyer 

Section 8. This resolution shall be in effect upon its passage and approval as provided by 

law. 

 

 

 Passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Oelwein, Iowa, this 9th day of 

October, 2023. 

 

 

 

      

 _____________________________________ 

       Brett DeVore, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Dylan Mulfinger, City Administrator 

 

 

It was moved by ________ and seconded by _______  that the  

Resolution as read be adopted, and upon roll call there were: 

             AYES           NAYS      ABSENT        ABSTAIN 

Stewart  

Weber  

Lenz   

Garrigus  

Seeders   

Payne  

 

114

Item 11.



Offer to Purchase City Properties 

To purchase City-owned real estate, completely fill out this 
form. The timeline is usually about 90 days. Your offer will be 
sent to the Planning, Finance, Enterprise & Economic 
Development committee who will review the application and 
forward it to City Council for approval. At the appropriate time, 
we will schedule a date and time for buyer(s) to sign and 
provide a payment of the offered. 

Property Address 

Deanna S Wenner 

1820402004 

Property Parcel Number 

Buyer's or Buyers' Full, Legal Name(s} and/or Full Legal Business Name and Number 

330 Hinks Court Colorado Springs, Colorado 80911 
Buyer's or Buyers' Address, City, State, ZIP 

dsw407@yahoo.com 319-464-6495
Buyer's or Buyers' Email Address Buyer's or Buyers' Phone 

Are you being represented by a real estate agent or lawyer? Yes x No 

Buyer Representative Name and Contact Information 

DW 
INITIALS 

If you do not have a Buyer Representative: I/we understand that I/we are entering into a legal contract 
and choose to represent my/ourselves, with all the due diligence required being done on my/our part. 

I am writing this to inquire about a potential real estate purchase from the City of Oelwein, IA. I recently purchased 
parcel number 1820402016. My lot is located on 12th Ave SW. There is a lot located directly north of my lot, that is 
owned by the City of Oelwein. It's parcel number 18020402004. It is Lot 6 BLK 6, located on 12th Ave. S.W. If the city 
would be interested, I would like to purchase this lot. My intent for the property is only to enlarge my yard. I am 
currently living in Colorado but will be moving back to Oelwein this spring. I will be building a new home on the lot I 
have already purchased and would appreciate the added space the new lot would provide. When I bought the original 
lot, I was not aware that the SW end of my new lot retains water quite easily during strong storms. If the city would 
sell me the available parcel to the north, it would allow the location of the new house to be farther to the north. This 
would help me further separate the new house from any potential water/flooding issues on the south end of the lot. I 
would certainly appreciate the extra distance the new parcel would provide. I am offering $1500.00 cash for the lot 
which can be transferred immediately upon acceptance. Thank you in advance for your time and consideration. 

Please describe your intentions for the property with a timeline and include your offer (Minimum $1,000 per lot}. 

Deanna S Wenner 

B
jt

er Printed Name (As will appear on deed} Buyer Printed Name (As will appear on deed} 

� 09/22/2023 

Buyer Signature Date Buyer Signature Date 

Buyers' Legal Relationship to Each Other 

---------• ---------. -------

20 2nd Ave. S.W. 
Oelwein, Iowa 50662 

8/23 

buildingadmin@CityofOelwein.org 
www.CityofOelwein.org 

Phone: (319) 283-5862 
Fax: (319) 283-4032 

115

Item 12.



Fayette County, IA

1820402004 on 12th Ave SW 

Developed by

Parcel ID 1820402004
Sec/Twp/Rng 20-91-9
Property Address

Alternate ID n/a
Class R
Acreage 0.19

Owner Address Oelwein, City Of  
City Hall 20 2nd Ave. SW  
Oelwein, IA 50662-

District OELWEIN OELWEIN INC
Brief Tax Description LOT 6 BLK 6 

ARMSTRONGS ADD
(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Disclaimer: Fayette County, the Fayette County Assessor and their employees make every effort to produce and publish the most current and accurate information possible. The maps included in
this website do not represent a survey and are compiled from of�cial records, including plats, surveys, recorded deeds, and contracts, and only contain information required for government
purposes. See the recorded documents for more detailed legal information. Data is provided in ""as is"" condition. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use or its
interpretation. Fayette County and its employees assume no responsibility for the consequences of inappropriate uses or interpretations of the data. Any person that relies on any information
obtained from this site does so at his or her own risk. All critical information should be independently veri�ed. If you have questions about this site please contact the Assessor's Of�ce at (563)
422-3397.

Date created: 9/25/2023 

Last Data Uploaded: 9/25/2023 3:35:44 AM

74 ft

Overview

Legend 

Corporate Limits

Parcels

Major Highways

County Highway

Federal Highway

State Highway

Roads

WENNER

CITY

116

Item 12.



 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ________- 2023 

 

RESOLUTION SCHEDULING PURLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED SALE OF CITY OWNED 

REAL PROPERTY LOCATED ON 12th AVE. SW.  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Oelwein, Iowa, is the owner of real property (“Property”) situated 

in the City of Oelwein, Fayette County, Iowa, located on 12th Ave. SW., Oelwein, Iowa, with no 

specific address assigned, Parcel No. 1820402004, legally described as follows: 

 

 

Lot 6, Block 6, Armstrong’s Addition to Oelwein, City of Oelwein, Fayette County, Iowa 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City acquired title to the Property by Tax Sale Deed dated and recorded 

on September, 28, 2018, in Book 2018 Page 2729, records of the Fayette County, Iowa Recorder, 

and  

 

WHEREAS, the Council has received an offer to purchase said property from Deanna S. 

Wenner, for the sum of $1,500.00, and other good and valuable consideration; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Council finds that continued City ownership of the property serves no 

public purpose, and that the transfer to Deanna S. Wenner consistent with the proposal of Deanna 

S. Wenner, is appropriate and in the best interests of the City of Oelwein; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that a public hearing must be set and held prior to the 

sale and transfer of real property. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF OELWEIN IOWA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1: Public Hearing:  City Council will hold a public hearing as part of its regular 

meeting at 6:00 P.M. on October 23, 2023, at City Hall, 20 2nd Ave. SW, Oelwein, IA, for purposes 

of obtaining public input on the proposed sale of the Property as set forth above. 

 

SECTION 2: Publication of Notice:  The City Clerk is directed to publish notice of said 

public hearing, which publication shall be not less than four (4) nor more than twenty (20) days 

prior to the date set for said public hearing pursuant to the requirements of Iowa Code § 364.7 and 

362.3. 

  

SECTION 3: When Effective.  This Resolution shall be effective upon its passage and 

approval as provided by law. 

 

 

 

117

Item 12.



 

 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 9th day of October, 2023. 

 

_______________________________ 

Brett DeVore, Mayor   

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Dylan Mulfinger, City Administrator 

 

 

It was moved by _____________ and 

seconded by _______________ that the 

Resolution as read be adopted, and upon roll 

call the following votes were cast: 

      Aye       Nay     Absent     Abstain 

Stewart 

Weber 

Lenz 

Garrigus 

Seeders 

Payne 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

118

Item 12.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF OELWEIN 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED SALE OF CITY OWNED REAL 

ESTATE 

 

Notice is hereby given that the City of Oelwein, Fayette County, Iowa, proposes to sell and 

convey by Quit Claim Deed, the following described real estate situated in the City of Oelwein: 

 

Lot 6, Block 6, Armstrong’s Addition to Oelwein, City of Oelwein, Fayette County, Iowa 

 

Located at 12th Ave. SW., Oelwein, Iowa (No specific address assigned.) 

Parcel No. 1820402004 

 

The City proposes to sell the property to Deanna S. Wenner for the sum of $1,500.00 and other 

good and valuable consideration.  

 

Public Hearing on the proposed sale, and terms associated therewith, will be held at 6:00 p.m. on 

October 23, 2023, before the Oelwein City Council, at Oelwein City Hall, 20 2nd Ave. SW, 

Oelwein, IA. After acceptance of public comment, if any, and closing of the public hearing, the 

City Council may act upon the proposal to sell and transfer said property.  

 

Any person may appear at the Public Hearing to comment on the proposed terms of the sale to 

Deanna S. Wenner and/or may submit written comments in advance of the Public Hearing by 

delivery of same to the City Clerk’s Office, at Oelwein City Hall, 20 2nd Ave. SW, Oelwein, IA 

during regular business hours, by mailing to the City of Oelwein at the same address, or by email 

to the City Clerk’s Office at dmulfinger@cityofoelwein.org, on or before the date and time of the 

Public Hearing. 

 

 

 Dylan Mulfinger, City Administrator  

City of Oelwein, Iowa  

 

119

Item 12.

mailto:dmulfinger@cityofoelwein.org


 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF OELWEIN, 

IOWA, BY ESTABLISHING CHAPTER 22 ARTICLE XI GOLF CARTS 

BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Oelwein, Iowa: 

SECTION 1.  Chapter 22, Article XI “Golf Carts” is hereby adopted, same to include the following terms 

and provisions. 

 

22-260  PURPOSE. 

The purpose of this chapter is to approve the operation of golf carts within the City limits under certain 

limited circumstances. 

22-261  DEFINITIONS. 

1.   "Alcoholic beverage" means any beverage containing more than one-half of one percent of alcohol 

by volume including alcoholic liquor, wine, and beer. 

2.   "Golf cart" means motorized flotation-tire vehicle equipped with four low-pressure tires, is limited in 

engine displacement to less than 500 cubic centimeters but a minimum of 200 cubic centimeters, or 

electric powered, and in total dry weight of not more than 1,000 pounds, with seats of a bench design not 

intended to be straddled by the operator and a steering wheel for control. 

 3. "Roadway(s)," as defined by Code of Iowa Section 321I.1 means that portion of a highway improved, 

designed, or ordinarily used for vehicular travel. “Roadway(s)” includes dedicated and improved City 

alleyways. 

22-262  GOLF CART OPERATION. 

Golf carts may be operated on Roadways within the City limits of the City consistent with and subject to 

the following regulations, as allowed by Chapter 321.247 of the Code of Iowa. 

1. Golf Carts shall only be allowed to operate within the City limits from sunrise to sunset, as established 

by the National Weather Service. Golf Carts operated by Ambulance, Fire, and Law Enforcement 

agencies, in the performance of official agency operations, are exempt from the hours of operation 

limitation. 

2. Golf Carts may only be operated when equipped with the following operable equipment: 

A. Adequate brakes. 

B. Slow moving vehicle sign. 

C. An orange safety flag mounted at a flag height of 5 feet from the surface of the roadway. 

D. Rear view or side mirrors. 

E. Adequate exhaust and muffler systems. 

F. Windshield  

120

Item 13.



G. Headlamps meeting DOT standards  

H. Brake lamps meeting DOT standards  

I. Turn Signals meeting DOT standards  

3. Golf Carts may only be operated on Roadways by persons over the age of 18 who possess a valid 

driver’s license. 

4. Golf Carts shall not be operated at speeds in excess of twenty-five (25) miles per hour. 

5. Golf Carts shall not be operated in a careless, reckless, or negligent manner so as to: 

      A.   Endanger any person. 

      B.   Cause injury or damage to person or property. 

      C.  Create unnecessary skidding or sliding or cause any wheel or wheels to unnecessarily lose  

contact with the ground. 

6. No person operating or in the passenger area of Golf Cart shall possess an open or unsealed bottle, 

can, jar, or other receptacle containing an alcoholic beverage.  

7. No person shall operate a Golf Cart while driving impaired from an intoxicating beverage and/or 

narcotic and/or habit-forming drug.  

8. No Golf Cart shall be operated with more persons on the vehicle than it was designed to carry, 

including any appropriately mounted/installed rear facing after-market seat. In furtherance of this 

provision, the following shall apply 

     A. No more than oner person per single seat, or two persons per bench seat shall be allowed. 

     B. Under no circumstances shall more than two persons ever ride in a rear seat, regardless of design. 

     C. Under no circumstances shall any passenger be seated on the lap of another person. 

   D. The operator and all passengers shall be seated at all times during Golf Cart operation. 

     E. No part of any person, operator or passenger, may extend beyond the side of the Golf Cart. 

9. No person under the age of six (6) years of age shall be allowed as a passenger on a Golf Cart. 

10. Any person operating a Golf Cart within the City limits shall adhere to all applicable traffic signs 
and signals, City of Oelwein Ordinances, State Law and regulations, and shall at all times obey the 
orders and direction of law enforcement. 

11. Golf Carts may only park on Roadways in designated parking spots. 

22-263  GOLF CART OPERATION LIMITS. 

1. Golf carts shall not be operated upon any Roadway which is a primary road extension through the 

City but shall be allowed to cross a Roadway which is a primary road extension through the City, at 

approximately a ninety (90) degree angle after yielding the right of way to cross traffic.  Primary road 

extensions shall include all sections of Roadways identified as ________________________. 

 

121

Item 13.



Golf Carts operated by Ambulance, Fire, and Law Enforcement agencies, in the performance of official 

agency operations, are exempt from the above limitations. 

2. Golf Cart operation is prohibited on: 
 

A. Any recreational, bike or walking trail unless the trail is specifically marked as being approved 
for Gold Cart operation. 

B. Sidewalks. 
C. City parks or any other land owned by the City, unless specifically marked as being approved for 

Gold Cart operation or otherwise authorized by the City Council. 
D. Private property without the consent of the property owner. 

22-264  ROADWAY ETIQUETTE 

1. Except when executing a left turn, Golf Carts shall be operated as close as practical to the right-hand 
edge of any Roadway. 
 
2. When necessary to prevent congestion of traffic, Golf Carts shall be pulled off the to the right-hand 
edge of the Roadway and stopped to allow motor vehicle traffic traveling in the same direction to pass. 
 
3. When two or more Golf Carts are travelling in the same direction on the same Roadway, they shall be 
operated in a single file fashion, and shall not pass one another. 

 

22-265  INSPECTION and PERMIT. 

1. Before any Golf Cart may be legally operated on Roadways as permitted herein, the Golf Cart must 

pass an inspection to be performed by the Oelwein Police Department, said inspection to verify that the 

Golf Cart is equipped as required herein.  There shall be an inspection fee paid at the time of the 

inspection to the Police Department in the amount set by Resolution of the City Council. Upon passing 

the inspection, a permit and registration decal will be issued by the Police Department.  The 

identification number shall be prominently displayed on the rear of the Golf Cart located in the middle of 

the slow-moving vehicle sign. All Permits, regardless of the exact date of issue, will expire on the third 

December 31st following issuance. Permit fees will not be prorated based upon the date of issuance. 

Businesses engaged in the retail sale of Golf Carts are exempt from these Permitting provisions. 

    A. The Oelwein City Council may grant exemptions from the requirement to pass an inspection and 

obtain a permit for special events. 

22-266  OPERATING A GOLF CART WITHOUT VALID PERMIT. 

If a person is found to be operating a Golf Cart without a Police Department issued permit or is 

operating a Golf Cart after having said person's privilege to do so suspended under the terms of this 

chapter, they shall be subject to a civil penalty in the amount of $300.00, and shall be prohibited from 

obtaining a permit for a period of 12 months following the date of violation, or conviction, if a hearing is 

requested and held, whichever is later. 

22-267  LIABILITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. 

At minimum a policy with bodily injury at $500,000.00 per person, $500,000.00 per incident and 

property damage of $100,000.00 or combined single limits (bodily injury and property damage) or 

$500,000.00 or equivalent is required for the operation of a Golf Cart.  Upon request the operator is 

122

Item 13.



required to show proof of financial liability meeting the minimum requirements listed above.  A proof of 

financial liability coverage card may be produced in paper or electronic format. 

22-268  SUSPENSION OF PRIVILEGE. 

If, over the course of a 12-month period, the operator of a Golf cart is cited for two or more violations of 

the provisions of this chapter or violation of applicable City or State traffic code violations while 

operating a Golf Cart, said person's privilege to operate a Golf Cart under the terms and provisions of 

this chapter shall be suspended for a period of 12 months. 

22-269 VIOLATION AND PENALTY. 

1. Any person guilty of violating the provisions herein shall be guilty of a simple misdemeanor and shall 

be subject to a fine of Two-Hundred-Fifty Dollars ($250.00) and/or a Municipal Infraction Citation as 

allowed by Chapter ____ of the City Code of Ordinances. 

 

2. Any person guilty of violating this ordinance two or more times  over a period of twelve (12) months, 

shall be guilty of a simple misdemeanor and shall be subject to a fine up to but not in excess of Six 

Hundred and Twenty-Five Dollars ($625.00) and/or a Municipal Infraction Citation as allowed by 

Chapter ___ of the City Code of Ordinances. 

 

3. Persons violating this ordinance may also be prosecuted and subject to the penalties as set out in 

Chapters 321, 321I, and 321J, Code of Iowa. 

 

22-270 INSPECTIONS - WARNING - TERMINATION OF USE. 

A peace officer may stop and inspect any Golf Cart operated or parked within City Limits to determine if 

the Golf Cart is registered, numbered, or equipped as required by the Code of Iowa, the Iowa 

Administrative Code, and/or this Chapter. The officer shall not inspect an area that is not essential to 

determine compliance with the requirements. If the officer determines that the vehicle is not in 

compliance, the officer may issue a warning memorandum to the operator. The warning memorandum 

shall indicate the items found which are not in compliance and shall direct the owner or operator of the 

vehicle to correct the items and return a copy of the warning memorandum with the proof of compliance 

to the Police Department within fourteen (14) days. If proof of compliance is not provided within fourteen 

(14) days, the owner and/or operator will be issued a citation and operation privileges will be subject to 

immediate suspension. 

 

22-271 RESPONSIBILITY OF OWNER 

1. The owner of a Golf Cart shall not permit the vehicle to be used or operated in violation of this 

chapter. 

2. The owner of a Golf Cart operated in violation of this chapter shall be subject to a civil penalty as a 

municipal infraction in an amount not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500.00). 

22-272 NEGLIGENCE and ASSUMPTION OF RISK 

1. The owner and operator of a golf cart are liable for any injury or damage occasioned by the negligent 

operation of the golf cart. 

 

123

Item 13.



2. All persons who operate or ride on Golf Carts on Roadways do so at their own risk and peril. The city 

has no liability under any theory of liability related to the operation of Golf Carts on said Roadways or 

other authorized, or unauthorized, areas. 

22-273 ACCIDENT REPORTS 

1. Whenever a golf cart is involved in an accident resulting in injury or death to anyone shall immediately 

by the quickest means of communication give notice of such accident to the sheriff of the county in which 

said accident occurred, or the nearest office of the state patrol, or to any other peace officer as near as 

practicable to the place where the accident occurred. 

2. Whenever a golf cart is involved in an accident resulting in property damage amounting to one-

thousand five-hundred dollars ($1,500.00) or more, the Owner or the Operator shall take immediate steps 

to notify law enforcement as required by Iowa Code. 

 

SECTION 2. SERVERABILITY CLAUSE. If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be 

adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a 

whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. Effective _______________, this ordinance shall be in effect from 

and after its final passage, approval, and publication as provided by law. 

Passed by the Council the ___ day of ______________, 2023, and approved this ______ day of ________, 

2023.  

______________________________ 

           Brett DeVore, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 

Dylan Mulfinger, City Administrator 

 

First Reading:   ____________ 

Second Reading: ____________ 

Third Reading: ____________ 

I certify that the foregoing was published as Ordinance No. _____ on the ___ day of ________________, 

2023.   

______________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

 

124

Item 13.



Offer to Purchase City Properties 

To purchase City-owned real estate, completely fill out this 
form. The timeline is usually about 90 days. Your offer will be 
sent to the Planning, Finance, Enterprise & Economic 
Development committee who will review the application and 
forward it to City Council for approval. At the appropriate time, 
we will schedule a date and time for buyer(s) to sign and 
provide a payment of the offered. 

Property Address 

Deanna S Wenner 

1820402004 

Property Parcel Number 

Buyer's or Buyers' Full, Legal Name(s} and/or Full Legal Business Name and Number 

330 Hinks Court Colorado Springs, Colorado 80911 
Buyer's or Buyers' Address, City, State, ZIP 

dsw407@yahoo.com 319-464-6495
Buyer's or Buyers' Email Address Buyer's or Buyers' Phone 

Are you being represented by a real estate agent or lawyer? Yes x No 

Buyer Representative Name and Contact Information 

DW 
INITIALS 

If you do not have a Buyer Representative: I/we understand that I/we are entering into a legal contract 
and choose to represent my/ourselves, with all the due diligence required being done on my/our part. 

I am writing this to inquire about a potential real estate purchase from the City of Oelwein, IA. I recently purchased 
parcel number 1820402016. My lot is located on 12th Ave SW. There is a lot located directly north of my lot, that is 
owned by the City of Oelwein. It's parcel number 18020402004. It is Lot 6 BLK 6, located on 12th Ave. S.W. If the city 
would be interested, I would like to purchase this lot. My intent for the property is only to enlarge my yard. I am 
currently living in Colorado but will be moving back to Oelwein this spring. I will be building a new home on the lot I 
have already purchased and would appreciate the added space the new lot would provide. When I bought the original 
lot, I was not aware that the SW end of my new lot retains water quite easily during strong storms. If the city would 
sell me the available parcel to the north, it would allow the location of the new house to be farther to the north. This 
would help me further separate the new house from any potential water/flooding issues on the south end of the lot. I 
would certainly appreciate the extra distance the new parcel would provide. I am offering $1500.00 cash for the lot 
which can be transferred immediately upon acceptance. Thank you in advance for your time and consideration. 

Please describe your intentions for the property with a timeline and include your offer (Minimum $1,000 per lot}. 

Deanna S Wenner 

B
jt

er Printed Name (As will appear on deed} Buyer Printed Name (As will appear on deed} 

� 09/22/2023 

Buyer Signature Date Buyer Signature Date 

Buyers' Legal Relationship to Each Other 

---------• ---------. -------

20 2nd Ave. S.W. 
Oelwein, Iowa 50662 

8/23 

buildingadmin@CityofOelwein.org 
www.CityofOelwein.org 

Phone: (319) 283-5862 
Fax: (319) 283-4032 

125

Item 14.



Fayette County, IA

1820402004 on 12th Ave SW 

Developed by

Parcel ID 1820402004
Sec/Twp/Rng 20-91-9
Property Address

Alternate ID n/a
Class R
Acreage 0.19

Owner Address Oelwein, City Of  
City Hall 20 2nd Ave. SW  
Oelwein, IA 50662-

District OELWEIN OELWEIN INC
Brief Tax Description LOT 6 BLK 6 

ARMSTRONGS ADD
(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Disclaimer: Fayette County, the Fayette County Assessor and their employees make every effort to produce and publish the most current and accurate information possible. The maps included in
this website do not represent a survey and are compiled from of�cial records, including plats, surveys, recorded deeds, and contracts, and only contain information required for government
purposes. See the recorded documents for more detailed legal information. Data is provided in ""as is"" condition. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use or its
interpretation. Fayette County and its employees assume no responsibility for the consequences of inappropriate uses or interpretations of the data. Any person that relies on any information
obtained from this site does so at his or her own risk. All critical information should be independently veri�ed. If you have questions about this site please contact the Assessor's Of�ce at (563)
422-3397.

Date created: 9/25/2023 

Last Data Uploaded: 9/25/2023 3:35:44 AM

74 ft

Overview

Legend 

Corporate Limits

Parcels

Major Highways

County Highway

Federal Highway

State Highway

Roads

WENNER

CITY

126

Item 14.



 

127

Item 15.



 

128

Item 16.



 

Minutes 
Airport Board 
Municipal Airport, 19623 40th Street, Oelwein, Iowa 
September 20, 2023 - 6:30 PM 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
Woodraska called the meeting to order at 6:30PM. 

ROLL CALL 

 Present:  Woodraska, Bagge, Nations 

Also Present:   Council Liaison Tom Stewart, Assistant Airport Manager Tommy Stewart, FBO George 
Tegler 

 Absent:  Bryan, Cantrell 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Approval of August minutes.  

Tegler wanted the minutes changed from “new infrared furnace installed for the backroom” to “new 
infrared furnace to be installed for the backroom.” 

Bagge made a motion to approve the minutes with the updates, second by Nations. All aye. Motion 
carried.  

EXPENSE REVIEW 

2. August Expenses.  

Woodraska questioned the service call from Dicks Petroleum and if they will charge a service call every 
time.  Tommy Stewart said yes.   

Nations made a motion to approve the August expenses, seconded by Bagge. All aye. Motion carried.  

FBO REPORT 

Tegler reported all hangars are filled otherwise it has been quiet. 

OLD BUSINESS 

3. Security/Hangar update. 

A conversation about security cameras or community hangar repair ensued. The board is only able to 
move forward with one.  After discussion it was recommended to move forward with the hangar repair 
and not go forward with the security cameras. The board concluded if a tenant is worried about security 
they can install a keypad lock or install a camera inside their hangar. 

4. Fuel system update. 

Tommy Stewart mentioned the keypad may be covered under warranty.  A new keypad is on its way.  
Dicks Petroleum was out checking the system. 

5. Kitchen counter update. 

Tommy Stewart mentioned the repair is scheduled to be completed soon. The countertops are all that 
will be replaced. 

6. Tractor tire/New tractor conversation. 

129

Item 17.



FBO Tegler mentioned we still need tires for the tractor.  Woodraska asked if it would be financially less 
for the city to buy new tires for the tractor or pay 10% for a new tractor. Bagge says the tractor we have 
is still in good shape, excepting the tires.  The tractor is not scheduled to be replaced for a couple of 
years, but Tom Stewart mentioned the Board can move items around on the list of future projects if one 
becomes more important than another. 

SCHEDULE NEXT MEETING DATE 

October 18, 2023 at 6:30PM 

ADJOURNMENT 

A motion was made by Bagge, seconded by Nations to adjourn the meeting at 7:15 PM. All aye. Motion 
carried.  

 
      

 

130

Item 17.



 
To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Dylan Mulfinger 

Subject: Administrator Memo 

Date: 10/9/2023 

 

 

Consent Agenda 

1. Consideration of a motion approving the September 25, 2023 minutes. 

Public Hearing  

2. Public Hearing on the proposed sale of 9 1st Street Southwest to Shama Ministries.  

Resolutions 

3. Consideration of a resolution approves Pay Application No. 3 in the amount of $304,552.33 

for Oelwein NE Sanitary Sewer Improvements project. 

1. All work on this project has been satisfactory. The City Administrator 

recommends approving the resolution.  

4. Consideration of a resolution approving Final Pay Application No. 4 for Matt Construction on 

Plaza Park Improvements in the amount of $77,480.64. 

1. This is the final pay application for the project. All work has been done 

on the project. Council approved change order number four and it is 

included in this pay application. The City Administrator recommends 

approving the resolution. 

5. Consideration of a resolution accepting the completion of Plaza Park Improvement Project 

with Matt Construction. 

1. All work on the project is completed and satisfactory. The City 

Administrator recommends approving the resolution. 

6. Consideration of a resolution approving Order No. 1 in the amount of $10,862.30 for the 

Event Center Parking Lot Improvement with Bacon Concrete. 

1. Additional concrete was cracked and needed to be taken care of to 

make sure the project was a success. The City Administrator 

recommends approving the resolution. 

7. Consideration of a resolution approving Pay Request No. 1 in the amount of $121,629.02 for 

the Event Center Parking Lot Improvement with Bacon Concrete. 

1. All work on this project has been satisfactory. The City Administrator 

recommends approving the resolution.  

8. Consideration of a resolution amending the Oelwein Personnel Policy Manual. 

1. The City continues to make changes as the dispatch department is 

brought back into the city operations. This change reflects what was 

previously followed by the dispatch employees.. The City Administrator 

recommends approving the resolution.  

131

Item A.



 
9. Consideration of a resolution setting a Public Hearing for October 23, 2023 at 6:00 PM in the 

Oelwein City Council Chambers to allow for adoption of the Oelwein Comprehensive Plan. 

1. Notice is required for adopting a comprehensive plan. We are going 

above and beyond and proving a public hearing. The City Administrator 

recommends approving the resolution.  

10. Consideration of a resolution authorizing the temporary closure of public ways or grounds 

for the Oelwein Chamber and Area Development Old Tyme Christmas on December 1, 2023. 

1. This event has one of the largest draws for Oelwein. The City 

Administrator recommends approving the resolution.  

11. Consideration of a resolution approving the sale and transfer of city’s owned real estate 

located at 9 1st Street SW, Oelwein, Iowa to Shama Ministries. 

1. The city council approved this sale and the resolution makes it official. 

The City Administrator recommends approving the resolution.  

12. Consideration of a resolution setting a public hearing for the sale of Parcel No. 1820402004 

(Lot 6 Block 6 Armstrong Addition) located on 12th Ave SW to Deanna Wenner on October 

23, 2023 at 6:00 PM in the Oelwein City Council Chambers.  

1. Another empty lot is provided to someone who intends to build and 

improve the lot. The City Administrator recommends approving the 

resolution.  

Motions 

13. Consideration of a motion to direct staff to place an ordinance on the agenda for October 

23, 2023 to allow golf carts to operate on city streets.  

1. City council should review the proposed ordinance and make sure it 

follows what council wants for regulations. The City Administrator 

would prefer this go back to public safety but understands the city 

council wants to see this through quickly as the golf cart season is 

almost over. The City Administrator stands firm is not recommending 

golf carts along with Public Safety Chief Jeremy Logan.  

14. Consideration of a motion approving the direction from the Planning, Finance, Enterprise, 

and Economic Development on the sale of Parcel No. 182042004 to Deanna Wenner. 

1. This allows for the City to create a resolution officially selling the land. 

The City Administrator recommends approving the motion.  

15. Consideration of a motion to move the Christmas Eve holiday to December 26, 2023. 

1. Usually Saturday holidays go to Friday, and Sunday holidays go to 

Monday. City staff already has Monday off and upon discussion 

recommend moving the holiday to Tuesday. The City Administrator 

recommends approving the motion. 

16. Consideration of a motion to move the December 25, 2023 City Council meeting to 

December 18, 2023. 

1. We move the last meeting back each year to provide a break for council 

and staff on the last week of December. This year the last meeting 

132

Item A.



 
would fall on Christmas. The City Administrator recommends approving 

the motion. 

133

Item A.



www.cityofoelwein.org Public Works 

Wastewater News:  Aug 2023 - Received non-compliance letter from DNR for Operator Certification.
Matt attended ISG online training for CEU's. Reed Bed pre-construction project meeting was scheduled. The 
purchase agreement for the VFD Blower #1 was sent in. Kam has registered for 30 hr online class through 
DMACC, as prep for Grade 1 exam.

Water / Street News: Crews repaired large main break after hours on E. Charles. (6 hrs.) 

 NON-scheduled work - Worked on Effluent valve actuator, currently not working.  

- Monthly Activities -  Weekend winds created weekend and all day cleanup, the last weekend of June.
*Pumped 21,072,000 gallons water from the wells.
*Completed 102 work orders from City Hall
*Performed 67 locates marking location of city water, sewer, storm sewers and electrical.
*Delivered 27 red door tags giving the final notice of impending shut down services.
*Shut down 14 services for nonpayment.
*Daily water rounds consisting of chlorine residual testing, well and lift station checks.

NON-scheduled work - Crews repaired water line containing lead, in the NE quadrant.

- Scheduled work -
*Drainage issues were addressed and resolved at Great Western & 6th St NW.
*Sewer jetting throughout town were constant.
*Spray patching continues throughout town as crews prep for larger sealcoat project slated to 
begin Sept 14, in the SW quadrant.

*On Call information was updated online, along with updating the alarms to ring to Dispatch.

Upcoming projects - Seacoat is scheduled for 9/14 & 9/15. Hydrant flushing will be Sept. this year, last week.

*Contractors are visiting and approaching bids for the Reed Bed and EQ Basin projects.
*Work continues in coordination with the DOT for speed zone, and upcoming diamond grading of HWY 3 
currently scheduled for 2/24.

- Monthly Activities -
*Treated 22,460,000 gallons of wastewater.
*Largest daily flow was 910,000 gallon.
*Average daily flow was 720,000 gallons.
*Applied 31,500 gallons of bio-solids to the reed beds.
*Achieved a 99.3% Biochemical Oxygen Demand removal.
*Achieved a 98.5% Total Suspended Solids removal.
*Analyzed 493 wastewater samples in the cities state certified lab.
*26 samples submitted to Test America.
*Completed and submitted state Discharge Monitoring Report and the five Industrial reports.
*Completed quarterly safety checklist. Attended Safety meeting luncheon on 7/19/23.

- Scheduled work - off 
*
* erform

- Upcoming work - Getting Matt certified with his Grade 4.
*Changing oil in blowers / maintenance. Two remaining.
*Run new conduit for SBR #2 Dissolved oxygen probe.
*Replace flexible weather conduit on SBR's getting worn. ***Reed Bed Expansion project.

134

Item ii.

Admin Assistant
Cross-Out

Admin Assistant
Cross-Out



 

www.oelweinparks.org 

 

 
September 2023 Park Monthly Report 

 

This month in the park departments the employees have been very busy with various projects. The 
cemetery employees cleaned up the spoil piles and cleaned out some unwanted small trees growing out of a 
bush. We have been busy working on the sand filter at the pool as we are removing the rest of the sand so Mark 
B. and Chris J. can finish cutting the bottom section apart. This week employees moved a tree from Chrysler Park 
to Vets Park as it was in they way of the sewer project coming through. At Platt Park another large ash tree was 
brought down as we have been focusing on this park for ash tree removal. The employees took some time on 
Friday to clean vehicles inside and out. Mark took to the north facing side of the building with the power sprayer 
to keep it clean. On the west trail there was a dead ash tree from the timber area that dropped near Redgate Park 
that we cleared off. With the extremely dry weather we have been watering trees in parks, street trees and for 
other departments. The employees completed a playground project this month. The old safety fiber was 
removed, a new weed barrier was put down and rubber mulch was put down. Carolyn and Craig are doing a great 
job with the campground, Steve S. had a couple more shelter reservations and cleaning bathrooms. I had a 
meeting scheduled with the tree board on Monday as we are compiling our locations for planting trees next 
month with funds received with Trees Forever grant. 

 
The cemetery employees have been working on placing prefab foundations to rotate our extra foundation 

stock. Notice was put in the paper for cemetery foundations this past week as we will complete our fall pour in 
the next couple of weeks. The park employees and cemetery employees have both been busy working on taking 
out dead ash trees out of the parks and grinding stumps. I met with a citizen about a couple locations for a 
possible memorial bench placement. On Friday I learned that we were awarded a grant through the DNR, 
Community Forestry grant for close to $5,000. This matching fund, which we will use funds raised from spading 
trees from the tree nursery will enable us to purchase and plant 70 trees for the park system. Most of the trees 
will be planted at Platt Park as the employees have removed 68 ash trees from this park alone. The rest of the 
trees will be planted at the complex which will complete the tree planting around the front two diamonds. This 
very large tree planting will take place on Wednesday October 4th at 8am in Platt Park and we could use all the 
volunteers possible. On Friday, a few of the tree board members and I travelled to Decorah to talk with their city 
arborists to discuss and swap ideas. Also, on this trip we observed their gravel bed that they built this past year. 
The tree board is considering building a gravel bed so that we can buy bare root trees in the spring at a discount 
price and keep them in the gravel bed then plant the trees in the fall, stretching our funding to buy more trees. 
The employees installed foul poles this week in Wings Park, and an old random utility pole was removed this week 
from Wings Park as well. Marc B. and Chris J. finished removal of the old filtration system at the aquatic center, 
Carrico was put on notice that the facility is ready for them to install the new filter and piping. I sent out the 
agenda for the park and rec meeting for the September meeting. 

 

The employees have been mowing certain areas of the cemetery with the 3” of rain we received on Friday 
evening. The employees have been taking down ash trees in the parks as the end is in sight. There are a few 
smaller ash trees at City Park and 2 large ash trees at Wings Park that Dave Mauer will drop for us next month as 
that will conclude ash trees in the main areas of the city properties. This season the employees have taken down 
136 trees on city properties on top of all their other responsibilities. There are still some along trails and wooded 
areas that we will make sure that they drop the right way. This week the new slides for City Park arrived that are a 
CIP item, which will most likely be installed in the springtime as we are shorthanded staff. This past week all the 
fire extinguishers were collected and serviced. The park employees laid out the soccer field and set the nets for 
the rec soccer program and dragged the parking lot at the complex. The park employees have been slowly 
chipping away at trimming back the plantings downtown as the season is coming to a close. The park employees 
moved a concrete slab to diamond one for the Hoth memorial bench, which will be placed as soon as it gets 
delivered. The cemetery employees removed some rail lines that someone stuck in the ground years ago to 
protect a couple of water valves at Woodlawn. The employees installed two castings that were donated from the 
sewer project in the NE to eliminate anyone running into the rails and easier to mow around. Trail cleaning is 

  
  

  
  

  
P
A

R
K

S
 /
 C

E
M

E
T

E
R
Y

 /
 T

R
A

IL
S
 /
 A

Q
U

A
T

IC
S
 /
 C

A
M

P
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

135

Item ii.

http://www.oelweinparks.org/


 

www.oelweinparks.org 

 

never ending this time of year as the leaves are really starting to drop. The course sign was installed at City Park 
for the disc golf course this week. I have been busy laying out locations for our large tree planting next week at 
Platt Park. Again, we will be planting 70 trees between Platt Park and the Sports Complex next Wednesday Oct. 4th 
at 8am at Platt Park. As always, we can use as many volunteers as possible for this tree board planting. The 
agenda for the tree board meeting on Monday was sent out this week. The aquatic center has been completely 
winterized with all the water lines blown out and drains protected. The employees spent time removing the 
arching tree over the trail at Platt Park as it was time to remove it as the base was deteriorating and they formed 
up a memorial bench foundation for the Delong family. The cemetery employees have been busy preparing 
monument foundations at Woodlawn as the deadline has passed. The employees got a jump on digging out tree 
planting locations at Platt Park so that the tree planting will proceed quicker. T-posts, string, and watering bags 
have been purchased for the planting as we are looking to have a great day improving these great facilities. The 
park employees are cleaning the bathrooms every morning now that Horan Cleaning is done for the season. 
Carolyn and Craig will be wrapping up the season at the campground here in two weeks as they have done an 
excellent job once again. We met with the park and rec commission last Monday as we reviewed the park fee 
schedule and went over progress. 

 

     Tree transplant      ash trees     burials  

 
 

       Power spraying    ash trees         watering 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
  

  
  

  
P
A

R
K

S
 /
 C

E
M

E
T

E
R
Y

 /
 T

R
A

IL
S
 /
 A

Q
U

A
T

IC
S
 /
 C

A
M

P
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

136

Item ii.

http://www.oelweinparks.org/


 

www.oelweinparks.org 

 

Playground mulch-wings 

 

 
 

   Harley rake   tree transplant        burials  

       
     

 

 

  
  

  
  

  
P
A

R
K

S
 /
 C

E
M

E
T

E
R
Y

 /
 T

R
A

IL
S
 /
 A

Q
U

A
T

IC
S
 /
 C

A
M

P
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

137

Item ii.

http://www.oelweinparks.org/


 

www.oelweinparks.org 

 

 Burials         ash removal 

 
      Stump grinding     foul poles installed 

 
Community forestry grant   tree watering 

 
Gravel beds     pole removed 

 

  
  

  
  

  
P
A

R
K

S
 /
 C

E
M

E
T

E
R
Y

 /
 T

R
A

IL
S
 /
 A

Q
U

A
T

IC
S
 /
 C

A
M

P
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

138

Item ii.

http://www.oelweinparks.org/


 

www.oelweinparks.org 

 

Mowing     ash tree removal 

 
Slides arrived   extinguishers serviced

  
Dragging complex   tree trimming 

 
    Downtown               bench foundation                grave prep. 

 

  
  

  
  

  
P
A

R
K

S
 /
 C

E
M

E
T

E
R
Y

 /
 T

R
A

IL
S
 /
 A

Q
U

A
T

IC
S
 /
 C

A
M

P
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

139

Item ii.

http://www.oelweinparks.org/


 

www.oelweinparks.org 

 

 
 

Community Forestry grant plating: 

 

 When: Wednesday October 4th, 8:00am 

 Where: platt park 

 Trees:  70 trees between platt park and complex 

 

 

Castings installed 

   

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

  
  

  
  

  
P
A

R
K

S
 /
 C

E
M

E
T

E
R
Y

 /
 T

R
A

IL
S
 /
 A

Q
U

A
T

IC
S
 /
 C

A
M

P
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

140

Item ii.

http://www.oelweinparks.org/


 

www.oelweinparks.org 

 

more ash tree removal 

 
    

  Trail cleaning      disc golf sign     tree placement 

 
 

winterizing 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
  

  
  

  
P
A

R
K

S
 /
 C

E
M

E
T

E
R
Y

 /
 T

R
A

IL
S
 /
 A

Q
U

A
T

IC
S
 /
 C

A
M

P
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

141

Item ii.

http://www.oelweinparks.org/


 

www.oelweinparks.org 

 

 

Tree removed   foundations     tree planting prep 

 
 

Filter/piping removal completed 

 
 

 
 

 

  
  

  
  

  
P
A

R
K

S
 /
 C

E
M

E
T

E
R
Y

 /
 T

R
A

IL
S
 /
 A

Q
U

A
T

IC
S
 /
 C

A
M

P
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

142

Item ii.

http://www.oelweinparks.org/


 

www.oelweinparks.org 

 

 
 

 

  
  

  
  

  
P
A

R
K

S
 /
 C

E
M

E
T

E
R
Y

 /
 T

R
A

IL
S
 /
 A

Q
U

A
T

IC
S
 /
 C

A
M

P
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

143

Item ii.

http://www.oelweinparks.org/


 

www.oelweinparks.org 

 

 

 

Daily activities 

➢ Clean/organize shop areas 

➢ Pick up downtown areas 

➢ maintaining park, cemeteries 

➢ Maintenance on equipment 

➢ Safety meetings 

➢ Meet with contractors 

 

 

 

➢ Retrieve & upload trail count data 

➢ Woodlawn burials 

➢ Check & clean restrooms/reservations 

➢ Watering depot park 

➢ Drag graveled areas/sweep trails 

➢ Water hanging baskets 

 

 

progress on projects 

➢ Website updating 

➢ Trail easements/grants 

➢ Work on park and rec master plan 

➢ Patch Park/cemetery roads 

➢ Grinding stumps 

➢ Ash tree removal 

➢ Trail maintenance 

➢ Playground Improvements 

➢ Work at depot park 

➢ Pool filter removed 

➢ Castings installed Woodlawn 

➢ Cemetery sign work 

➢ Fall foundations Prepped 

➢ Aquatic Center winterized 

➢ Fire extinguishers serviced 

➢ Install foul poles Diamond 1 

➢ Playground rubber mulch wings 

 

 

Next month and future projects 

➢ Remove old well houses city park 

➢ Replace decking on old bridge 

➢ Grant writing 

➢ Ash tree removal 

➢ Pool filter Install 

➢ Trail segment 2 

➢ Trail segments 4/5 alignment 

➢ Cemetery sign install 

➢ Grinding stumps 

➢ Dirt work complex 

 

➢ Paint accent brick – pool 

➢ Remove primitive at Redgate 

➢ Playground slides – City Park 

➢ Winterizing facilities 

➢ Tree Planting October 4th 

➢ Tree Planting October 18th  

➢ Pour foundations/bench foundation 

➢ Finish downtown trimming 

➢ Flagpole diamond 3 

➢ Close up campground for season 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Joshua Johnson ma 

Oelwein Park Superintendent 

 

  
  

  
  

  
P
A

R
K

S
 /
 C

E
M

E
T

E
R
Y

 /
 T

R
A

IL
S
 /
 A

Q
U

A
T

IC
S
 /
 C

A
M

P
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

144

Item ii.

http://www.oelweinparks.org/


 

 Contact Us: 

 201 East Charles 

 Oelwein, IA 50662 

 319-283-1515 

oelwein@oelwein.lib.ia.us 

www.oelwein.lib.ia.us 

Donor’s Corner 

Oelwein Public 

Library 
Volume 14 

Issue 10 

October 2023 

Library Hours: 

Monday-Tuesday: 

9:00 am-8:00 pm 

Wednesday-Thursday: 

9:00 am-7:00 pm 

Friday: 

9:00 am-5:30 pm 

Saturday: 

9:00 am-3:00 pm 

 

The following people made donations in 

memory of loved ones during the month of  

September: 

In memory of Seth Garceau 

Jens & Joanne Nielsen 

In memory of Frances Potter 

Ellen & Troy Kueker, Ann & 

Dave Schmidt, Shawn Schoultz 

In memory of John McBride 

Pat McBride & Family 

In honor of Kay Julien Jordan 

Betty Damon 

In memory of Butch Grob 

Friends of the Library 

 

The Library Noise 

Did You Know? 

We can fax or scan your documents 
or photographs here at the library.  
The charge for faxing is as follows: 

 .50 cents for sending long distance 

 .20 cents for receiving a fax 

 Toll-free numbers are no charge 

There is no charge for scanning your  
material to an email or USB. This can be 
done in color or black & white. For more information on how you can create 

this lasting tribute to someone you have lost or 
would like to honor, please contact Deann Fox 
at 283-1515.  

October Calendar 

 

10/9   Friends Meeting                               1:30 

10/10  Library Board Meeting                     5:30 

10/12-14  Book Sale during library hours 

10/25  ISU Extension Brain Health            1:00 

10/28  Iowa City Ghost Hunters                 1:00 

10/30  Book Talk                                      10:00 

October book theme: Science-Fiction 

Friends Book & Bake Sale 

Oct. 12th-14th during library hours. Bake sale 

Thursday & Friday only. 

We do accept donations. Must be clean and 

in good condition.  

Please no encyclopedias, textbooks, or 

Reader’s Digest. 

 

To request an accommodation call 319-283-1515 or email oelwein@oelwein.lib.ia.us 

It’s never too early, or too late, to set goals for 
staying independent in mid and later life.  
Learn about the benefits of eating well and 
moving more, avoiding fraud and scams,  
planning for future housing and care needs, 
and more! The Fayette County Extension will 
host a Stay Independent series of programs for 
Seniors over 60 through December. These 
programs are FREE and meet once per month 
in the library's meeting room for one hour. 
Please register with the library by calling  
319-283-1515. Put plans in place now that 
support your ability to continue independent 
living for the years 
ahead. Identify your 
priorities, assess your 
current environment, 
and explore home  
modifications to age  
in place safely. 

Iowa City Ghost Hunters 
Saturday, October 28th at 1:00 p.m. 
Join us to learn about their investigations 
in the paranormal and the techniques 
they use to help others. Iowa City Ghost 
Hunters is one of Iowa's premier teams, 
formed in 2012. ICGH is dedicated to 
helping others gain peace of mind by 
helping to explain what 
is and is not paranormal 
through the use of  
modern techniques and 
documented evidence 
acquired during  
investigations.  
Sponsored by the Friends 
of the Library 

145

Item ii.



New Books on the Shelf 
Fiction  

Traitor’s Gate-Jeffrey Archer 

The Armor of Light-Ken Follett 

Starling House-Alix E. Harrow 

Blessing of the Lost Girls-Judith A. Jance 

Love Me Do-Lindsey Keik 

Santa & Company-Fern Michaels 

The Night House-Jo Nesbo 

Dead Mountain-Douglas J. Preston 

The Girl in the Eagle’s Talons-Karin Smirnoff 

Second Act-Danielle Steel 

Midnight is the Darkest Hour-Ashley Winstead 

Judgment Prey-John Sandford 

Non Fiction  
Trail of the Lost-Andrea Lankford 

Murder in a Mill Town-Bruce Dorsey 

Never Enough-Jennifer Breheny Wallace 

The Six-Loren Grush 

Jackie-Randy J. Taraborrelli 

The Trails of Harry S. Truman-Jeffrey Frank 

Counting the Cost-Jill Duggar 

The Hidden Roots of White Supremacy-Robert P. Jones 

While You Were Out-Meg Kissinger 

Talking to My Angels-Melissa Etheridge 

Why We Love Baseball-Joe Posnanski 

New Young Adult  
Nick and Charlie-Alice Oseman 

The Brother’s Hawthorne-Jenifer Lynn Barnes 

Arazan’s Wolves-John Flanagan 

Secret’s Never Die-Vincent Ralph 

Starfish-Lisa Fipps 

DVD’s  
Air, Spider-Man: Across the Spider-Verse,  

George & Tammy 

Ladybug  
A Very Cranky Book-Angela DiTerlizzi 

A Flag For Juneteenth-Kim Taylor 

Bluey: Sleepytime-Joe Brumm 

Don’t Let the Pigen Drive the Sleigh!-Mo Willems 

A Thought is Just a Thought-Adam Ciccio 

New J  
A Horse Named Sky-Roseanne Parry 

The Lost Library-Rebecca Stead 

The Original Harry Potter Cookbook-Joanna Farrow 

  Stop in the library or visit 

our website at      

 www.oelwein.lib.ia.us  

Theme Thursdays 

4:00 p.m. 

 

10/5    LEGOs 

10/12  No Theme  

           Thursday 

10/19  Launch! 

10/26  Pumpkin Art 

 

Take & Make 

October's take and make 

kit is a pumpkin sun  

catcher  

October 2023 

          Pages & Play Club 
  Join Miss Katie every Wednesday at 10:00 a.m. 

10/4    Rhyme Time 

10/11  Fire Safety 

10/18  Monsters 

10/25  Spooky Stories    

146

Item ii.



 

 

City of Oelwein, IA 
 

PROJECT UPDATE 
Page 1 of 1 

 

PROJECT UPDATE   A Review of MSA Projects in Your Community  

CLIENT LIAISON:  

Jim Holz, AICP  

Phone: 563.584.2884 

Cell: 563.590.6351 

jholz@msa-ps.com 

 

DATE: 

October 2, 2023 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
FLOOD MITIGATION SCOPING – PROJECT #08884010 

 
MSA finalized the existing flood loss value for buildings affected by the floodplain and determined 
the maximum cost of mitigation efforts, with and without property acquisition. Potential mitigation 
alternatives are being modeled to determine new flood boundaries and water surface elevations. 
Next steps are to determine fiscal feasibility of the potential mitigation alternatives. 
 

MISC. 
 
Iowa League of Cities BIL Funding Webinar Oct. 25th – If you haven’t already registered for this 

webinar, you can do so at State and Federal Funding Webinar Registration - IOWA League. 
 
MSA Today – If you haven’t signed up for our quarterly newsletter, you can do so here: MSA 
Today - Autumn, 2023 (constantcontact.com)  The September Issue included articles on the 
EPA Lead & Copper Rule, Planning for Health, Planning Efficiencies, Funding, as well as some 
community spotlights. 

147

Item ii.

https://iowaleague.org/state-federal-funding-10-25/
https://myemail.constantcontact.com/MSA-Today---Autumn--2023.html?soid=1102674071160&aid=hcYYYOWYIT4
https://myemail.constantcontact.com/MSA-Today---Autumn--2023.html?soid=1102674071160&aid=hcYYYOWYIT4

	Top
	Item 1.	September 25 Minutes
	9.25.2023 Council Meeting Minutes - Final

	Item 2.	PH on 9 1st St SW
	Public Notice

	Item 3.	Res - Pay App 3 NE Sanitary Sewer
	Pay Applications No 3 NE Sanitary Sewer
	Pay Request No. 3 - Oelwein NE Sanitary Sewer Improvements

	Item 4.	Pay App No 4 - Matt Construction Plaza
	Pay App four Matt Construction Plaza Park Resolution
	Matt Plaza Park Pay ap #4

	Item 5.	Plaza Park Acceptance
	Project Acceptance Plaza Park Imrpovement Resolution

	Item 6.	Res- Chnage Order EC Parking
	EC Parking Lot Change Order 1 Resolution 2023
	23-500 - Change Order 1 Signed by FG, Contractor

	Item 7.	Res - Event Center Parking Lot
	EC Parking Lot Pay Request One Resolution 2023
	23-500 - Pay Estimate 1

	Item 8.	Personnel Policy
	PERSONNEL POLICY MANUAL Dispatch Resolution Oct 2023
	Personnel Policy 5432-2023 updated 7.24.2023 FINAL

	Item 9.	Setting PH for Comp Plan
	Comprehensive Plan Public Hearing Resolution 2023

	Item 10.	Res - Street Closure
	Resolution - ocad street closing 2023 Old Thyme Christmas
	ocad20230929092143

	Item 11.	Res to Sell 9 1st Street SW
	Resolution Approving (Sale of 9 - 1st Strees SW) (Shama) DDH 10.05.2023

	Item 12.	Res - Set PH for Lot Sale to Wenner
	1820402004 - Lot offer From Deanna S Wenner - COUNCIL PACKET
	Resolution Setting Public Hearing and PH Notice (Deanna S. Wenner) DDH 09.27.2023

	Item 13.	Golf Carts
	Golf Cart Ordinance October 9

	Item 14.	Wenner Lot Sale - PFEED
	1820402004 - Lot offer From Deanna S Wenner - COUNCIL PACKET

	Item 15.	Christmas Eve.
	Change Date - Christmas Eve

	Item 16.	Move Meeting
	Change Date - Meeting

	Item 17.	Airport Board Minutes
	9.20.23 Minutes

	Item A.	City Administrator.
	October 9 Admin Memo

	Item ii.	Additional Information.
	Aug Monthly report
	Park Monthly Update September 2023
	October 2023
	2023 October Oelwein Monthly Update 

	Bottom

